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December 31, 1996

To the People of the State of Illinois:

s O ne of my major responsibilities as Comptroller is to monitor
the fiscal health of the State. There are many ways to

measure the State’s financial vitality. Today I release the audited
Hllinois Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR") for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1996. This report presents the financial
——1 position and results of operations for Illinois in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP") as prescribed in pronouncements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Accordingly, it is a measurement tool to assess
the State's management of its resources. It also shows the State's financial condition on
June 30, 1996.

During fiscal year 1996 the overall financial condition of the State continued to improve.
The fund deficit in the General Fund decreased from $1.204 billion at June 30, 1995 to $952
million at June 30, 1996, a $252 million or 21% improvement. While the trend is heading
in the right direction, there are areas of concern. In those funds that finance the State's
daily operations (called governmental funds), expenditures increased by $800 million while
revenues increased by only $574 million from fiscal year 1995 to fiscal year 1996 on a GAAP
basis. In addition, the State’s pension liability increased by S1.6 billion. 1 will continue
to monitor and report on both the short and long term condition of the State.

This report contains three sections: the introduction, the financial section, and the
statistical/economic section. Responsibility for the accuracy of the data as well as the
completeness and fairness of presentation of this report rests with my Office and other State
agency management. This report necessarily includes certain amounts which are based on
management's best estimates and judgments.

This CAFR includes a copy of the twelfth Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting awarded to the State of Illinois by the Government Finance Officers
Association for the State’s previous CAFR, published in 1995. This certificate is a prestigious
national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state
and local governmental financial reports.

I hope you find this report useful and informative as you assess the fiscal performance by
the State of Illinois in fiscal year 1996.

Sincerely,
Lt ot

LOLETA DIDRICKSON
Comptroller
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State of lllinois

COMPTROLLER

Loleta A. Didrickson

December 31, 1996

The Honorable Jim Edgar
Governor

State of Illinois

207 State House
Springfield, Illinois 62706

Dear Governor Edgar:

It is my pleasure to present to you the State of
llinois Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(*CAFR") for the year ended June 30, 1996. This
CAFR is the State’s official annual report and
provides the financial position of the State at June
30, 1996 and results of operations during the
fiscal year. The report is intended to provide the
State’s managers, investors and creditors,
taxpayers, the legislature, and other users with
information in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The
statements are presented using the “pyramid”
approach to governmental financial reporting as
prescribed in  pronouncements of  the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB"). Responsibility for the accuracy of the
data as well as the completeness and fairness of
presentation of this report rests with my Office
and other State agency management. This report
necessarily includes certain amounts which are
based on management’s best estimates and
judgments.

The CAFR is composed of the following sections:
introductory; financial; and statistical and
economic. The introductory section includes the
table of contents, the Comptroller’s letter of
transmittal, and the State’s organization chart.

The financial section includes the Auditor
General’s report on the financial statements, the
general purpose financial statements, and the
combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules. The statistical and
economic section includes selected demographic
and business data, generally on a multi-year basis.

The accompanying financial statements are
prepared in conformity with GAAP applicable to
State governments as prescribed by the GASB.
This office strongly supports the GASB,
contributed to its formation and participates in the
development of pronouncements, providing
testimony at public hearings and submitting
comments and recommendations as proposed
standards are distributed for exposure.

The accompanying financial statements include
all funds. account groups, elected offices,
departments and agencies of the State, as well as
all boards, commissions, authorities, universities
and colleges for which the State's executive or
legislative branches are financially accountable,
The financial statements distinguish between
primary government organizations and discretely
presented component units.  The primary
government is the nucleus of the financial



reporting entity and is the focal point for the users
of the financial statements. The primary
government of the State consists of all the
organizations that make up its legal entity, All
funds, departments. agencies. offices and other
organizations that are not legally separate are, for
financial reporting purposes, part of the State or
another government’s primary government.
Component  units are legally separate
organizations for which the State is financially
accountable.

The financial activities of the State are organized
on the basis of individual funds and account
groups, each of which is a separate accounting
entity segregated tor the purpose of carrying out
specific activities or attaining certain objectives
in accordance with specific regulations,
restrictions and limitations. The reporting entity,
fund types and account groups are described in
detail in Note 1 to the financial statements.

To ensure readability of the financial statements,
generally only funds with total assets, liabilities,
fund equity, revenues or expenditures greater than

viii

2% of the total for that fund type (except special
revenue funds where .5% is used) are presented
separately in the combining statements.
Combination of funds is necessary due to the
existence of more than 700 funds in the State’s
reporting entity. Funds used by more than one
agency are classified with what is determined to
be the primary administering agency.

Universities, colleges and their related foundations
and alumni associations are reported as “discretely
presented component units.” The Combined
Statements of Changes in Fund Balances and
Current Funds Revenues, Expcndfturcs and Other
Changes for university and college funds are
presented separately within the general purpose
financial statements in conformity with GAAP.

An organizational chart, showing the relationships
of the three branches of Illinois State government
and those of the various agencies, boards,
commissions and colleges and universities which
provide a full range of State government services,
is presented on pages xxxii and xxxiii



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following balance sheet and operating statements have been condensed from the statements included
in the State of Illinois Comprehensive Annual Financial Report utilizing the “memorandum only” column

of the primary government.

State of lllinois
Balance Sheet - Primary Government

Amounts (in millions)

FY1996 FY1995

Assets (and other debits)
Cash 8 7.485% 7,000
Investments 28,083 23,611
Receivables, net 6,154 6,709
Fixed assets 4,654 4,432
Other assets 1,511 1,128
Other debits 20,204 18,065

Total assets and other debits  § 68,091 § 60,945
Liabilities
Payables 3 8,404 § 8,339
Pension liability 11,026 9,446
Bonds Outstanding 8.412 7,898
Depository & Other 5,476 3,603
Other 2,281 2112

Total liabilities 35,599 31,398
Fund Balances/Retai E n
Investment in fixed assets 4,588 4,368
General (952) (1.204)
Special revenue 2,346 2,318
Debt service 530 444
Capital projects 217 21
Proprietary 227 197
Trust 25,536 23,403

Total fund equity 32,492 29,547

Total liabilities and fund

balances/retained earnings  $ 68,091 § 60,945

State of lllinois
Operating Statement - Primary Government

Amounts (in millions)

FY1996 FY1995

Revenues
Taxes -

Income $ 7.350 $ 6,862

Sales 6,520 6,272

Other taxes 5,146 5,406
Federal government 8,410 8,640
Charges for sales and services 2,666 2,495
Interest income 3,055 1,755
Contributions 1,478 1,671
Licenses and fees 1,021 1,001
Other 1,131 1,072

36,777 35,174
Expenditures/Expenses
Health and social services 8,732 8,624
Education 5,753 5,396
General government/Administrative 5,076 4,711
Social Assistance 4,132 3,995
Transportation 2,627 2,713
Public protection and justice 1,481 1,438
Debt service 941 936
Benefit payments and refunds 2,553 2,534
Prizes and claims 839 859
Other 1,112 1,057
33,246 32,263

Net other sources(uses) and

nonoperating revenues(expenses) (728) (573)
Excess of revenues over expendi-

tures and net other uses % 2803 % 2,338




Assets (and other debits)

Total assets (and other debits) of the State of provided” for future pension and other long-term

lllinois at June 30, 1996 were over $68 billion, debt ($2.1 billion) and cash and cash equivalents
This was an increase of $7.1 billion (11,7%) over ($485 million). The State’s receivables decreased
fiscal year 1995, The largest increases were in $555 million.

investments ($4.5 billion) and “amounts to be

Comparison of Total Assets (in millions) *

% change
Account FY1996 FY96 % From 1995 FY1995
Investments b 28,083 41.2% 189% $ 23,611
Cash & cash equivalents 7,485 11.0% 6.9% 7,000
Receivables 6,154 9.0% (8.3%) 6,709
Fixed assets 4.654 6.9% 5.0% 4,432
Other assets 1,511 2.2% 33.9% 1,128
Other debits 20,204 29.7% 11.8% 18,065
Total Assets $ 68,001 100.0% 11.7% % 60,945

*The above numbers include primary government funds only.

Total Assets-Primary Government
June 30, 1996 (in millions)

$28,083
$20,204 Investments
Other debits 41%

30%

$1,511
Other assels
2%
$4,654
Fixed assets $6,154 $7,485

7% Receivables Cash & cash

9% equivalents

11%




Liabilities

Total labilities increased to $35.6 billion at June payable also increased $365 million from fiscal
30. 1996, $4.2 billion (13.4%) greater than fiscal year 1995. The State's

year 1995,  Depository and other labilities included in “payables” below decreased $774
increased $1.9 million (primarily “securities million although payables increased slightly in
lending”) and the State’s pension lability total.

increased $1.6 billion. General obligation bonds

Comparison of Total Liabilities (in millions) *
% change

Account FY1996 FY% % From 1995 FY1995

Payables 5 8,404 23.5% 08% $ 8,339
Pension liability** 11,026 31.0% 16.7% 9,446
General obligation bonds 5,657 15.9% 6.9% 5,292
Special obligation bonds 1,881 5.3% 1.6% 1,852
Revenue bonds 874 2.5% 15.9% 754
Depository & other 5,476 15.4% 52.0% 3.603
Other 2,281 6.4% 8.0% 2112
Total Liabilities $ 35,599 100.0% 134% $ 31,398

*The above numbers include primary government funds only.

**See page xxii for further information.

Total Liabilities-Primary Government
June 30, 1996 (in millions)

$5476 2201 $8,404
; Othe y
Dep05|t105r; & other e d Payables
a 24%

$874
Revenue bonds
3%
$1,881
Special obligation
bonds
5%
$11,026
$5,657 S A
General obligation F’ensm; Li?bmty
bonds L]
16%

Xi

Medicaid payables




Fund Balances and Retained Earnings

The fund balances for all primary government the pension trust funds ($2.1 billion), the General
funds combined was $32.5 billion at June 30. Fund ($252 million), general fixed assets ($220
1996. This was nearly a 10% improvement over million), and capital projects funds ($196 million).
fiscal year 1995, The primary increases were in

Comparison of Total Fund Balances (Deficits)
and Retained Earnings (in millions) *

Fund Types/ % change

Account Group FY1996 FY9 % From 1995 FY1995
General $(952) (2.9%) 209% $ (1,204)
Special Revenue 2,346 7.2% 1.2% 2,318
Debt Service 530 1.6% 16.2% b
Capital Projects 217 0.7% 90.3% 21
Proprietary 227 0.7% 13.3% 197
Trust 25,536 78.6% 8.4% 23,403
General fixed assets 4,588 14.1% 4.8% 4.368
Total Fund Balances $ 32,492 100.0% 10.0% $ 29.547

*The above numbers include primary government funds only.

Fund Balances and Equity
June 30, 1996 (in millions)

$530
$4,588 ($952) . $2|,-’:';46 Debt Service
Y General Special Revenue 1%
| fi l
Genera 1 ztozd assels (3%) 20 o
Capital Projects
1%
$227
Proprietary

1%

$25,536
Trust
79%

xii



General Governmental Functions

The governmental fund types are those through
which most State functions are financed. These
fund types (the general, special revenue, capital
projects, and debt service funds) are presented on
the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Throughout the year, the Comptroller’s Office

and activities.
request,
Revenues
Revenues on the modified accrual basis are
recognized when they are both measurable and
available to finance current operations. Revenues

These reports are available on

publishes a monthly Fiscal Focus which ) 1 i :
summarizes the status of revenues and  (@mounts expressed in millions) from various
expenditures and analyzes various programs  Sources for fiscal years 1996 and 1995 are as
follows:
Increase Percentage
Amount Percentage of Total (Decrease) Iner (Decr)
Revenue Source 1996 1995 1996 1995 from 1995 from 1995
Taxes:
Income $ 7.350 $ 6,862 26% 25% $ 488 7%
Sales 6,520 6,272 23% 22% 248 4%
Motor fuel 1,197 1,154 4% 4% 43 4%
Public utility 1,047 985 4% 3% 62 6%
Other 1.696 1.821 6% 6% (125) (7%)
Federal government 8.387 8.592 29% 3% (205) (2%)
Licenses & fees 1,021 1,001 3% 4% 20 2%
[nterest/investment 240 228 1% 1% 12 5%
Other 1,063 1,032 4% 4% 31 3%
Total hY 28,521 % 27.947 100% 100% $ 574 2%
FY96 Governmental Fund Revenues
$240 Interest/g; oas
$1,021
Licenses & fees lnveﬂzem Other $7,350
3% 4% Income
$8.387 26%
Federal government
29%

$1,696 $1,047

$1,197 Sales
Other Taxes  Public utility Motor fuel 23%
6% 4% 4%



Fiscal year 1996 governmental funds revenues
increased by $574 million (2%) over 1995
revenues. State-imposed taxes including income,
sales, motor fuel, public utility, and miscellaneous
other taxes remained the largest overall revenue
source for fiscal year 1996 and comprised over
62% of total State revenues.

Income Tax

Income tax revenues, the State’s largest tax
revenue source, increased $488 million (7%) from
fiscal year 1995, The increase is generally the
result of an improved economy and resulting
growth in personal and corporate income taxes.

Sales Taxes

Sales taxes remained the second largest tax
revenue source for fiscal year 1996, increasing
$248 million (4%) from fiscal year 1995. The
increase is due to general growth in retail sales in
an improved economy,

Other Taxes

Other taxes decreased $125 million, primarily
from a reduction in the Medicaid provider
assessment program and the corresponding
assessment taxes.

Federal Government Revenues

Federal government revenues decreased $205
million (2%) during fiscal year 1996 but continue
as the second largest revenue source on a GAAP
basis for 1996 (second only to the State-imposed
taxes discussed above), The most significant
decrease was at the Department of Transportation
where Road Fund revenues were $586 million, a
decrease of $279 million from 1995. The
decrease is attributable to the federal highway
program where revenue was “normal” after being
unusually high in fiscal year 1995. Secondly, the
Medicaid assessment tax program administered by
Public Aid, decreased Medicaid reimbursable
costs, and, in turn, federal government revenues
by approximately $111 million. Other large
federal revenue fluctuations occurred as follows:
Emergency Management Agency (Federal Aid
Disaster-decrease $54 million); Children and
Family Services (Children Services’ Fund-
increase $49 million and General Fund increase
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of $74 million, partly due to the Emergency
Assistance Program); Public Aid (Food Stamp and
Commodity Fund-decrease $39 million): Student
Assistance Commission (Student Loan Fund-$29
million decrease). Commerce and Community
Affairs (Job Training Partnership Fund-$28
million decrease): and, State Board of Education
(Special  Education Medicaid Matching-$27
million increase).



Expenditures

Expenditures for governmental fund types are
presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting and are generally recognized when the
liability is incurred regardless of when payment

is made. Expenditures (amounts expressed in
millions) for major governmental fund functions
in fiscal year 1996 and 1995 were as follows:

Percentage Increase Percentage
Amount of Total (Decrease) Incr (Decr)
Expenditure Function 1996 1995 1996 1995 from 1995 from 1995
Health and social services  § 8,732 % 8,624 31% 32% $ 108 1%
Education 5,753 5,396 21% 20% 357 7%
General government 4,914 4,568 18% 17% 346 8%
Social assistance 2,843 2,870 10% 11% (27) (1%)
Transportation 2,627 2713 10% 10% (88) (3%)
Public protection & justice 1,481 1,434 5% 5% 47 3%
Natural resources/recreation 365 388 1% 1% (23) (6%)
Debt service 890 888 3% 3% 2 -
Capital outlays 366 290 1% 1% 76 26%
Total $ 27,971 % 27,171 100% 100% $ 800 3%
FY96 Governmental Fund Expenditures
$365 $366
Natural resources Capital outlays
i aa] ok " $8,732
— Public protection & Demﬂii”'“ Health and social
Transportation jugl;ce services
10% 31%
$2,843
Social assistance
10%

$4,914
General government
18%

Governmental funds expenditures of $28 billion in
fiscal year 1996 increased $800 million (3%)
over 1995 and were $550 million less than
revenues on a GAAP basis.

Health and Social Services Expenditures

Health and social services expenditures of $8.7
billion were the largest expenditure function for
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$5,753
Education
21%

fiscal year 1996, increasing by $108 million (1%)
over fiscal year 1995. This expenditure function is
31% of total spending on a GAAP basis, dropping
slightly from 32% in fiscal year 1995. Significant
fluctuations were: Department of Mental Health-
increase of $310 million in General Fund
expenditures primarily for payments to Medicaid
recipients at intermediate care facilities; Public



Aid-decrease of $238 in the Medicaid Provider
Assessment  Program  (mainly  hospitals);
Department of Children and Family Services-
increases of $94 million in the General Fund
(foster care) and $74 million in the Childrens’
Services Fund (ongoing efforts to improve and
professionalize child welfare services),

Education Expenditures

Education expenditures were once again the
second largest expenditure function in the
governmental funds for fiscal year 1996.
Education expenditures increased $357 million
(7%) from fiscal year 1995 on a GAAP basis.

Significant education expenditure increases reflect
the budgetary emphasis on education in fiscal year
1996 as follows: State Board of Education-$134
million increase in the General Fund, $58 million
increase in the Education Assistance Fund, and
$27 million increase in the Special Education
Medicaid Matching Fund: and Teachers’
Retirement System  (approximately $63 million
increase in the State's contribution for retired
teachers).

An education expenditure decrease occurred in
the Common School Fund (an account within the
General Fund) at the State Board of Education. for
a decrease in general State aid or “apportionment”
to local school districts ($241 million decrease)
paid from that fund. This was merely a “shifting”
of appropriations between General Fund accounts,
however, as total “apportionment” to local school
districts increased. There was also a decrease in
the Student Assistance Commission Student Loan
Fund for fewer defaults on loans ($27 million
decrease) in fiscal year 1996.

General Government Expenditures

General government expenditures increased $346
million (8%). Higher spending by the Department
of Revenue was one of the contributing factors to
the increase as tfollows: $112 million increase in
the Local Government Distributive Fund,
primarily for income taxes distributed to local
governments; $66 million increase in the Personal
Property Tax Replacement Fund for grants to
taxing districts; and, a $55 million increase for
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more sales taxes paid to local governments
reflecting higher collections in an improved
economy. Department of Central Management
Services General Fund support of the State’s
health insurance program also increased $79
million.

Significant general government expenditure
decreases occurred in 1) reduced support for the
Metropolitan Pier and Exposition Authority
(“McPier”)-$34 million decrease and 2) at the
Department of Commerce and Community Affairs
in the Job Training Partnership Program-$29
million decrease.

Other Expenditures

Other expenditure functions remained relatively
stable from fiscal year 1995 to 1996. Social
assistance remained the fourth largest expenditure
function on a GAAP basis, decreasing $27 million
or 1%.

Next, Transportation expenditures decreased $86
million (3%) due to reduced construction at the
Department of Transportation.

Capital outlay expenditures increased $76 million
(26%) but still constitute only 1% of total general
governmental fund expenditures.

Internal Control

Each State agency’s management is responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal control
designed to ensure that the assets of the State are
protected from loss. theft or misuse, and to ensure
that adequate accounting data are compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. The State’s internal control is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost
of a control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

On October 31, 1989 the Fiscal Control and
Internal Auditing Act (“FCIAA") became law,



requiring all State agency chief executive officers
to annually certify the adequacy of internal control
in place within their agencies. The first annual
certifications by State agency CEOs were due
November 15, 1990. Subsequent certifications are
due May 1" each year. The FCIAA also requires
that certain agencies have a chief internal auditor
with a specified minimum level of professional
competency.

Budgetary Controls

The Comptroller’s Unitorm Statewide Accounting
System (“CUSAS”) provides the basis for receipt,
expenditure and encumbrance reporting of all
State treasury held funds with specific budgetary
controls maintained on line-item expenditures for
all appropriated funds. Appropriations (budget)
and actual expenditure analysis tor significant
individual funds is provided in the Budgetary
Schedules section of this report. A reconciliation
between the GAAP and budgetary basis of
accounting is presented in Note 2 of the financial
statements. The budgetary system (i.e., CUSAS)
classifies funds into traditional groupings which
do not conform with the fund type classificarions
set forth by the GASB: therefore, a reclassification
of budget categories to GAAP financial statement
fund types also is presented in Note 2.

Illinois currently operates with a three-month
“lapse period,” July 1 to September 30. during
which  State agencies can expend funds
appropriated in the prior fiscal year if encumbered
by June 30, For all fund types, goods or services
received prior to June 30 are recorded as liabilities
and expenditures or expenses, whichever is
appropriate. For governmental fund types, lapse
period expenditures for goods or services
encumbered as of June 30 and received prior to
September 30 are reported with  other
encumbrances as reservations of June 30 fund
balances and not as liabilities or expenditures.

Investment Management

The Illinois State Treasurer is responsible for
investing all cash resources of the State, with the
exception of those held by the retirement systems
and certain debt service, enterprise, agency,
universities’ and colleges’ endowments and other

locally-held funds. Of the five retirement systems.
three pool their resources for investment and two
invest their resources under investment master
trustee arrangements with individual investment
managers. The universities and colleges are
granted independent powers to invest their funds
which are held outside the State Treasury. Interest
income earned on the cash resources received and
invested by the State Treasurer is allocated to the
various funds (where specified by law) based on
the average daily cash balances invested. A
comparison of the State’s investments at June 30,
1996, 1992, and 1988 is presented on page xviii.

State agencies had $5.3 billion more invested at
June 30, 1996 than at June 30, 1995, Interest and
investment income increased $1.3 billion. This
increase can be attributed in large part to the
State’s pension systems, Their gains on
investment sales increased $1.013 billion and
earnings on real estate investments increased $144
million.

An agreement signed on July 2, 1993, between the
State of Illinois and the Financial Management
Service of the U. S. Treasury (“FMS") set out
procedures for drawing federal funds and methods
for computing interest liabilities for programs
subject to CMIA 90 reporting during the first year
of the Act. A follow up agreement signed on July
15, 1994, extends CMIA provisions to additional
major federal programs and applies for fiscal years
1995 through 1999. Illinois submitted the CMIA
Annual Report for fiscal year 1995 on January 3,
1996. Following a review of this report by the
FMS, the Illinois interest liability for fiscal year
1995 was determined to be $2.5 million and the
balance was paid by the March 1, 1996 due date.
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Comparison of Investment Portfolios at June 30,
(In millions)

1996 1992 1988

Investment Type Amount % Amount % Amount %
Corporate Equity Securities............. $ 8747 24% $ 6862 29% $ 4,576 31%
Mutual Funds......cccceevviiiievereeinieeniens 8,458 23% 1,508 6% 1,724 12%
U.S. Treasury & Agency Obligations 6,849 19% 4197 18% 3,737 25%
Corporate Debt Securities............... 4,741 13% 5160 22% 1,966 13%
Tangible Property........cccccovevveeeeennn. 2,767 6% 2176 9% 933 6%
Repurchase Agreements................. 3,164 9% 2495 10% 1,665 11%
Commercial Paper.........ccevserenesenss 1,291 3% 380 2% 199 2%

Investment Contracts.............cccov.... 956 3% 906 4% - - - -
Totals $ 36,973 100% $ 23,684 100% $ 14,800 100%

Cash Management General Fund

The State of Illinois’ daily activities are operated
on a “cash basis”, where bills are paid with the
available balances of cash on hand.  The
Comptroller, chief fiscal officer of the State of
Illinois, maintains the State's central fiscal
accounts and is responsible for ordering all
payments into and out of the funds held by the
State Treasurer, The State’s cash flow problems
improved again during fiscal year 1996, The
General Fund's available balance at June 30, 1996
was $426 million. This was $95 million greater
than the balance at June 30, 1995. The cash
balance generally is atfected by the same events
that are discussed in the General Governmental
Functions Section.

The General Fund includes the three school and
General Revenue Fund accounts which administer
about 52% of the transactions and nearly 42% of
the State’s annual expenditures. The General
Revenue Fund is also the State’s basic operating
fund, funding at least a portion of the operating
budgets of every major agency. All of the $95
million improvement occurred in the General
Revenue Fund account,

Many State programs are accounted for in the
General Fund. As demonstrated by the following
tables on page xix (in millions), the State’s GAAP
basis financial position at June 30, 1996 improved
from fiscal year 1995. The fund deficit in the
State’s General Fund decreased by $252 million
on a GAAP basis (from a deficit $1.204 billion to
a deficit $952 million). (On the budgetary basis,
there was a $292 million fund deficit at June 30,
1996 compared to a $341 million deficit at June
30, 1995, a $49 million improvement).

The undesignated fund deficit on a GAAP basis
also decreased by $274 million from a deficit of
$1.404 billion to a deficit of $1.130 billion.
Revenues and transfers-in exceeded expenditures
and transfers-out in the General Fund by $252
million in fiscal year 1996.

An analysis of the General Fund improvement
revealed several contributing factors. A
signiticant decrease in Medicaid payables ($774
million) was offset by a decrease in federal
government receivables for the 50% Medicaid

reimbursement (8392 million) and
expenditures/transfer-out  increases that out-
stripped  revenue/transfer-in  increases ($130
million),
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Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
Fund Balance **Undesignated (under) expenditures and net other
(deficit) Fund (deficit) at June financing sources (uses) for the year ended
at June 30 30 June 30
1987 5 (587) § (757 $ (326)
1988 (355) (51D 232
1989 (74) (256) 281
1990 (557) (745) (482)
1991 (1,368) (1.537) (806)
1992 (1,656) (1,825) (306)
1993 (1,916) (2.060) (26()
1994 (1,595) (1,731 321
1995 (1,204) (1,404) 388
1996 (952) (1,130 252
#¥ The amount in fund balance available (unavailable) for appropriation.

General Fund Deficits
FY 1987-96 (in millions)
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Expendable Trust Funds

Total revenues for the State’s expendable trust
funds decreased $203 million (13%) from $1.580
billion in fiscal year 1995 to $1.377 billion in
fiscal year 1996, Total expenditures increased
$160 million (14%) from $1.133 billion in 1995 to
$1.293 billion in 1996,

By far the largest expendable trust fund is the
State Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund
(“Trust Fund”). The unemployment insurance
(“UT") system 1s a joint state-federal program

1992
5(1,368) $(1.656) §(1,916) $(1,595) $(1,204)

1996
$(952)

1993 1994 1995

designed to provide cash assistance to
involuntarily unemployed workers regardless of
need. During fiscal year 1996, the Ul system
provided 6.0 million weeks of benefits to laid off
workers at an average weekly stipend for
recipients of regular benefits of $212. The State is
responsible for determining benefit levels and
eligibility criteria, and for setting State Ul tax
levels sufficient to pay the benefits. The federal
government provides all administrative funding
and mandates minimal coverage requirements. A
separate federal unemployment tax is assessed by
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the federal government to finance these
administrative costs, provide a source of funds for
states to borrow against during periods of high
unemployment, and to pay the federal share of
extended and emergency unemployment benefits.

Because of the solvency problems experienced
with the Trust Fund in the late 1970’s and early
1980°s, the members of the General Assembly
have worked closely with leaders of lllinois’ labor
and business communities to ensure the solvency
of the fund for its workers while guarding against
rapid growth of taxes on the employer community.
In 1987 and again in 1992, business, government,
and labor set out to revisit the issues surrounding
the administration of the Ul system. In 1992, most
of the language from the landmark 1987
legislation was carried forward. However, Illinois
employers will have realized tax savings of nearly
5215 million over the life of the new agreement,
while benefits to unemployed workers will
steadily increase. Benefits over the life of the
agreement were $1.2 billion dollars higher
through 1996 than without the renegotiation.

Current year revenues exceeded expenditures by
$40 million and the fund continues to be in a
fiscally sound position, as demonstrated by its
$1.928 billion fund balance at June 30, 1996. In
fact, the fiscal health of the fund was so good that
the Department of Employment Security was able
to decrease employer rates even though there was
a $161 million increase in expenditures.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are the State’s “business-type”
activities and include enterprise and internal
service funds, Combined operating revenues for
the State’s enterprise funds were $1.911 billion in
fiscal year 1996, increasing $113 million (6%)
from fiscal year 1995. Combined operating
expenses were $1.281 billion, up $81 million
(7%) from fiscal year 1995, Most of the increase
relates to the Teacher Health Insurance Security
Fund administered by the Department of Central
Management Services (“CMS”). This fund was
established in fiscal year 1996 to finance the
health benefit program for retired teachers. During
the year. it generated $90 million of operating
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revenues which were offset by $75 million of
operating expenses,

The State’s internal service funds which provide
data processing, motor pool vehicles, telephone
communications, printing services, self insurance
and other services to State agencies, operated on a
profitable basis for fiscal year 1996. Combined
internal service funds revenues and expenses for
fiscal year 1996 were $896 million and $721
million, respectively. This represents an increase
of $58 million (7%) in revenues and a decrease of
$112 million (13%) in expenses from fiscal year
1995 to 1996. The expenditure decrease is
attributable to the Health Insurance Reserve Fund.
GASB Statement 24 required that $169 million of
benefit payments, made “on behalf” of the State-
sponsored university component units. be
reclassified to operating transfers. If these on
behalf payments are added to operating expenses,
the fund actually shows increased expenses of $57
million (9%).

In an effort to streamline government, the State
abolished the Office Supplies Revolving Fund.
CMS liquidated the fund’s assets during the year
and its activities were privitized. As a result, $773
thousand was transferred to the General Fund. In
many cases, privatizing government services
improves efficiency and saves tax dollars.

Component Units

Universities and Colleges. lllinois operates a
comprehensive program of higher education,
including 9 State universities and support for a
statewide network of 49 community colleges, 103
private, not-for-profit institutions, 20 proprietary
institutions, and a student financial assistance
program. During fiscal year 1996, university and
college expenditures increased $399 million
(11%) over 1995. General Fund financial support
to the State’s universities increased by 5.4%, to
$1.206 billion, from fiscal year 1995 to fiscal year
1996. All of this increase is attributable to pension
contributions made by the State’s primary
government for the universities. Such support was
not reflected in the prior year financial statements,
but is now required by a recent GASB
pronouncement. If viewed in the same manner as



the past, general fund support to the universities
decreased $16 million (1%),

Proprietary. Certain business-type activities that
are not a part of the primary government are
included as component units.  The largest
proprietary component units in terms of assets are
the Illinois Toll Highway Authority and the
Illinois ~ Housing  Development  Authority.
Combined proprietary fund component unit
operating revenues and expenses for the fiscal
year were $682 million and $676 million,
respectively. This compares to revenues of $506
million and expenses of $527 million for fiscal
year 1995,

Debt Administration

On February 3, 1995, the Illinois general
obligation bond rating was lowered from “Aa” to
“Al" by Moody's Investors Service. Standard &
Poor’s Corporation (“S & P”) rating remained at
“AA-".  General obligation bond ratings had
previously been adjusted downward in August
1992, from “Aal” to “Aa” (Moody's) and from
“AA” to “AA-" (S & P) to reflect the Illinois cash
shorttall. Special  obligation bond ratings
remained the same, ranging from “AAA” byS &
P for Build Illinois bonds to “A™ by Moody’s for
Civic Center bonds. Among the states, Illinois

is a moderate debt state with outstanding general
and special obligation bonds at June 30, 1996
totaling $7.538 billion. Bonds have been issued
primarily to provide funds for acquisition and
construction of capital facilities for higher
education, public and mental health, correction
and conservation purposes, and for maintenance
and construction of highway and waterway
facilities, Bonds also have been issued to provide
assistance to municipalities for construction of
sewage treatment facilities, port districts,
aquarium  facilities,  local  schools,  mass
transportation and aviation purposes, and to fund
research and development of coal and alternative
energy sources.

General and special obligation bonds aggregating
$975 million and $80 million, respectively, were
issued during fiscal year 1996 at average interest
rates ranging from 5.1% to 5.7%. During fiscal
year 1995, general and special obligation bonds
totaling  $650 million and $135 million,
respectively, were issued at average rates ranging
from 5.9% to 6.3%. Debt service principal and
interest costs of $440.1 million and $352.9
million, respectively were paid in fiscal year 1996,
The dramatic increase since fiscal year 1980 is
displayed below and on page xxii.
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In addition to general and special obligation
bonds, Illinois has $4.445 billion of revenue
bonds, $104 million of notes payable and $1.876
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Pension Funded Status
(in billions)

$44.39
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Total
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Retirement Systems

Total net assets of the State's five pension frust
tunds, on a market value basis, aggregated $27.6
billion at June 30. 1996 ($23.6 billion at cost).

The most current actuarial valuations of the
pension trust funds indicated that the actuanal
present value of credited projected benefits (i.e.,
the pension benefit obligation) was $44.4 billion,

exceeding net assets of the funds by $16.8 billion
on a market basis ($20.8 billion at cost). On a
market value basis, the funding ratio for all funds
combined increased to 62% at June 30, 1996 from
59% at June 30, 1995, On a cost basis, the
funding ratio increased slightly to 53% at June 30,
1996 from 52% at June 30, 1995,



For many years, including fiscal year 1996 the
State has not funded the pension systems in
accordance with actuarially  determined
contribution requirements.  This resulted in
underfunding of GAAP pension expense by $1.58
billion for fiscal year 1996 and by $11 billion on a
cumulative basis since 1981. During August,
1994, the Governor signed into law Public Act 88-
0593, This law, which became effective July I,
1995 (i.e., fiscal year 1996) will have a significant
impact on the future of the State of Illinois’
pension liability and unfunded pension obligation.
This law provides for a 50-year funding plan with

a IS5-year phase-in and a “continuing
appropriation,”  The continuing appropriation
provides the Comptroller’s Office with the

authority to automatically provide funding to the
pension systems based on actuarial cost
requirements and amortization of the unfunded

liability without being subject to the General
Assembly’s appropriation process.

Risk Management

The State’s risk  management  program

encompasses a wide range of State government
activities.  Generally, the State has elected to
retain most exposures to risk, with only limited
purchase of commercial insurance. Among the
exceptions are coverage for real property at the
James R. Thompson Center in Chicago. the State
Retirement Systems building, and the Regional
State Office complex in Collinsville. Limited
commercial coverage for personal property
includes a small portion of the State’s fleet of
motor  vehicles, certain telecommunications
equipment, the fixed and rotary wing aircraft fleet,
some State watercraft, selected items of electronic
data processing equipment, a portion of the State's
collection of fine art, as well as a small number of
other property and liability exposures,

The State retains workers’ compensation and auto
liability exposures, including claims management,
Other major retained risks include employee
fidelity and surety, as well as general liability.
The State’s risk management program also
includes legal representation and indemnification
of employees sued for violation of civil and
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constitutional rights and other tort liabilities while
acting in an official capacity.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

For the Year. Major initiatives for the year
generally reflect the priorities set in the budgetary
process. Education, welfare reform, and prisons
were some of the “initiatives” mandated by the
General Assembly for fiscal year 1996. Other
initiatives are less visible but are nonetheless
important to state government. Some initiatives
undertaken by the State are discussed below.

Receivables Reporting

The Comptroller’'s Office has reported gross
receivables of $5.8 billion at June 30, 1996. for
statutory compliance reporting. Of that amount,
over $2.6 billion (46%) was estimated as
uncollectible. Of the net receivable (53.2 billion),
$2.9 billion is over 180 days past due. The
Comptroller’s Office will use recently enacted
legislation to improve debt collection in Illinois.
(See “House Bill 22517, below). Also, the
Comptroller has initiated efforts to benchmark
State agencies collection efforts and report the
results of those efforts. The Comptroller’s Office
is also supportive of legislation to allow State
agencies the capability to write off debts up to
$5,000 without certification by the Attorney
General's Office.

House Bill 2251

On July 11, 1996, House Bill 2251 was signed
into law, This package of fiscal tools will have an
important impact on State government budgeting,
spending, revenue and debt collection practices.

A major component of the bill is the reduction of
the State’s “lapse period”, the time following the
end of the fiscal year used for paying bills incurred
by June 30th. This legislation reduces the lapse
period from 3 months to 2, ending the practice of
allowing fifteen months of State spending out of
twelve months of revenue. The State will be able
to close its books sooner, allowing more timely
financial reporting to State lawmakers, policy
makers and other users.



The legislation also requires professional and
artistic and certain other contractual services to
meet the “GAAP” definition of a liability in order
to be paid during lapse period. That is, the
services must be both contracted and performed
by June 30 to be paid from the expiring
appropriation,

Another major focus of the legislation is
management of debt collection activities. Under
the new legislation’s last call provisions, the Debt
Collection Board is establishing timetables and
procedures for uncollected debt that is not subject
to a repayment plan. These new measures will
assist State agencies in doing a better job of
bringing in delinquent dollars.

Pension Legislation

The State’s pension liability for the five state
sponsored retirement systems recorded in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group at
June 30, 1996 was over $11 billion. This is the
amount recorded since the State started reporting
on a GAAP basis in 1981. Another measure of
the pension liability, the unfunded pension benefit
obligation, is based on actuarial data and is
disclosed in the note 10 of the financial statements
as nearly $21 billion at June 30, 1996.

P.A. 88-0593, effective for fiscal year 1996,
provides for a systematic 50 year funding plan
with an ultimate goal to fund the cost of
maintaining and administering the pension
systems at an actuarial funded ratio of 90%. The
legislation allows for a 15 year funding phase-in
period and  establishes a  “continuing”
appropriation, removing the appropriation of these
funds from the annual budgetary process and
requiring “automatic” funding in accordance with
the actuarial amounts. The Comptroller’s Office
considers this a positive step and will monitor
compliance with this new law.

State Agency Consolidations

In an effort to simplify organizational structure,
improve accountability, increase accessibility, and
to achieve efficiency and effectiveness in
operation, several State agencies were restructured
during fiscal year 1996. The consolidations were
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accomplished by “Executive Orders™ and statutory
law as explained below.

1. Executive Order Number 2 (1995),
effective July 1, 1995, changed the name of
the Department of Conservation to the
Department of Natural Resources and
transterred to it various rights, powers, duties
and functions of the Department of Natural
Resources (“ENR"), the Department of Mines
and Minerals, the Abandoned Mined Lands
Reclamation Council and the Division of
Water Resources of the Department of
Transportation. Other divisions of ENR and
Conservation were transferred to  the
Department of Commerce and Community
Affairs, Environmental Protection Agency,
and Historic Preservation Agency.

2. Effective January 1, 1996, the governance
and control of the Board of Governors of State
Colleges and Universities (“BOG”) and the
Board of Regents ("BOR") was transferred to
the individual universities that were formerly
part of those boards (except for Sangamon
State University (“SSU”) which became part
of the University of Illinois). The legislation
abolishes the BOG and BOR and with the
SSU merger, eliminates three State agencies.

3. Executive Order Number 1 (1996),
effective June 1, 1996, changed the name of
the Commissioner of Banks and Trust
Companies to the Office of Banks and Real
Estate and transferred to it the rights, powers,
duties, and functions of the Office of
Commissioner of Savings and Residential
Finance.

4. The State Community College of East St.
Louis was abolished as a State agency
effective July 1, 1996 (110 ILCS 805/4-1) and
established as a self-governing community
college.

For the Future. Statewide accounting
changes, education, corrections, devolution of
federal  programs and  human  services
reorganization are some of the areas where future
initiatives are anticipated. These future initiatives
are discussed below.



Statewide Accounting Managemenf System
(“SAMS™)

SAMS will replace the Comptroller's Uniform
Statewide Accounting System ("CUSAS") on July
1, 1997. Initially, the conversion will be as
transparent as possible to other State agencies.
After the initial year, agencies will see additional
changes as the Comptroller’s Office begins to take
full advantage of the capabilities of the new
system.  Some of these capabilities include
electronic report delivery, electronic commerce,
information warehouse queries, electronic data
interchange. electronic benefits transfer, and use
of the Internet and World Wide Web.

Year 2000

One immediate benefit of SAMS will be that it
provides a solution to the year 2000 problem.
This is a common issue all organizations must
address related to their computer systems. As a
space saving convention, most computer systems
have been developed using a two digit fiscal year.
When the year 2000 arrives, these systems will not
be able to accommodate the four positions needed
to specify the new millennium. The cost for the
State to convert 85 separate accounting and
information systems is astronomical and it
becomes more expensive as time progresses. This
represents a large, unplanned expenditure that
State agencies must quickly address.

Education

During the 1996 school vyear, 1.886 million
students were enrolled in Illinois public
clementary and secondary schools. The State
Board of Education projects that public school
enrollments will increase to 1.944 million pupils
by the 2005 school year.  With increasing
enrollment and the need for a more educated work
force, State funding for education is a critical
issue. The Governor’s Commission on Education
Funding has recommended that the State provide
at least 50% of funding for public elementary and
secondary education while at the same time
providing substantial local property tax relief.
Implementing the Commission’s
recommendations will be a challenge considering
the State’s share of education funding was 32% in
school year 1995-96.
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Corrections

The Department of Corrections predicts that its
current adult capacity “ceiling” of 41,314 prison
inmates will be exceeded in fiscal year 1997.
Prison overcrowding will be exacerbated when the
prisons begin to feel the effects of the new Truth-
in-Sentencing law. The law requires murderers
and those convicted of other serious crimes to
serve all or most of their court-imposed sentences.
The Department of Corrections estimates that
Truth-in-Sentencing will cost the State $320
million over the next ten years. These costs may
be mitigated if the State can develop new
alternatives for prison housing.

Devolution of Federal Programs

As the federal government continues to downsize,
the State stands to inherit the responsibility for
programs that used to be administered from
Washington. While devolution will most likely
result in more effective programs, there is a
danger. If the federal government transfers
programs to the State without returning a
sufficient amount of tax dollars to adequately pay
for them, the State’s finances will suffer.

Superagency

Planning efforts continue to combine the State’s
human services agencies. The State will gain
many operating efficiencies when the merger
becomes a reality. One example is a common
information services system. This will enable the
State to use a single point of entry to collect data
once from each person who may use multiple
programs. Such uses of technology allow the
State to do more with less.

Receivables

With an increasing demand for State resources,
the State must manage the resources it has in a
smarter fashion. Receivables, money owed the
State, is an often overlooked resource. The
Comptroller’s Office 1is sponsoring several
initiatives to improve receivables management.
One of these initiatives would require agencies to
submit receivables to the Comptroller’'s Offset
system more quickly. Another will require
agencies to transfer old debts to a Debt Collection
Board which can either collect the debt, write it
off, or return it to the agency.



ECONOMIC AND FISCAL
OUTLOOK

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Growth in foreign trade offers Illinois companies
extraordinary opportunities for new sales, but
opens lllinois markets to a World full of
opportunistic foreign companies. The true test of
an cconomy's competitiveness is how well it
meets this international competition.  Once
derogatively referred to as part of the rust belt,
Illinois has instead developed a dynamic economy
that is a serious world trade participant.

Home to such major exporters as Caterpillar,
Motorola, and Abbott Labs, Illinois exports totaled
$30.5 billion during 1995 - fifth highest among
the states. And Illinois exports have grown
rapidly in recent years. The value of [linois
exports increased 49.8% between 1993 and 1995
which was the ninth largest rate of increase among
the states.

Manufacturing exports were led by industrial
machinery and computers with $7.7 billion in
exports in 1995 followed closely by electric and
electronic equipment ($6.8 billion). Four other
manufacturing sectors also had exports valued
over $1 billion including chemical products
($4.2 billion), transportation equipment
($2.0 billion), food products ($1.7 billion), and
scientific and measuring instruments
($1.3 billion).

Illinois also ranked third in agricultural export
sales in 1995 with total agricultural exports valued
at $3.4 billion. Specialization in corn and soybean
production is reflected in Illinois’ rank as the
second largest exporter of each crop.

Illinois’ success in international trade has been
based on technical expertise and a strong resource
base rather than low labor costs as the state has
maintained its position as one of the country's
wealthiest states. Illinois per capita income during
fiscal year 1996 stood at $25.847, 8.5% or $2,035
greater than the national average.
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The Illinois economy takes advantage of its many
natural strengths. During 1995 the state was the
second largest producer of corn and soybeans and
the third largest producer of hogs. Illinois
agri-business has developed to add value to these
products.  Illinois is the number one ethanol
producer among the states. and with such major
[llinois companies as Archer Daniels Midland and
A.E. Staley (both headquartered in Decatur, the
soybean capital of the world), produces a wide
variety of specialized products based on corn and
soybeans.

[llinois continues to be home to major producers
of heavy equipment including agricultural
equipment (such as the Deere plants in the Quad
Cities), construction equipment (Caterpillar,
which is based in Peoria and is the world's largest
earth moving equipment company), and machine
tools (a specialty of the Rockford area). Although
manufacturing payrolls have been trimmed in
recent years, an average of 974,000 Illinoisans
held manufacturing jobs during fiscal year 1996.

Illinois' central location makes it the logical
transportation hub for the nation. As home to
O'Hare airport, the nation's largest, and excellent
highway and railroad networks, the low
distribution costs from basing an operation in
[llinois allows for the continued generation of new
jobs in transportation and merchandising. During
fiscal year 1996, 327,000 Illinoisans were
employed in the transportation, communications,
and public utilities sector, while 1.3 million were
employed in wholesale and retail trade.

The state's role as the central distribution point for
agricultural commodities caused it to develop as
the world's leading futures market.  Illinois
continues to be a national leader in financial
industries such as banking, derivatives trading.
and insurance and is corporate headquarters for
many of the country's leading companies. During
fiscal year 1996, finance, insurance, and real
estate employed an average of 384,000 Illinoisans.
As home to 40 of the Fortune 500 companies,
[llinois ranked third among the states, trailing only
New York and California.



Maintaining  its  reputation  for  technical
innovation, [llinois is home to major government
research laboratories such as the Argonne
National Laboratory and the Fermi National
Accelerator Lab, major private research labs such
as those operated by Amoco OQil and Tellabs,
major private universities including Northwestern
University and the University of Chicago, and the
state's network of nine public universities
including the University of Illinois, home of the
Beckman Institute. The brainpower generated
from these institutions continues to make [llinois a
major center for technological advancement and a
logical location for the production of advanced
products.

Forecast for the Future

The most recent economic forecast for the Illinois
economy prepared by the consulting firm of
DRI/McGraw-Hill ~ sees Illinois  employment
growing at an annual rate (1.2%), slightly below
the national average through 2001, Across the
nation, employment growth is estimated at
between 1.5% and 1.6% during the same period,
The study notes that the Midwest economy,
including Illinois, has benefited from the
continuing emergence of high-tech manufacturing
activities.

The longer term forecast expects continued growth
in the [llinois economy. particularly in the service
and trade sectors. Between 1996 and 2012,
[llinois is expected to add 894,000 jobs, a 16%
increase. Over 550,000 of these new jobs are
expected to be in services where employment is
expected to increase 34.6%. An additional
207,000 new jobs are expected in retail and
wholesale trade for a 15.4% increase. In contrast,
manufacturing employment is expected to decline
by 68.000 jobs or 7.0% over the next sixteen
years.

The long term forecast is vulnerable to unexpected
economic fluctuations. Traditionally, the Illinois
economy, with its emphasis on durable
manufacturing, has been extremely sensitive to the
business cycle. However, the increased emphasis
on services and finance in the Illinois economy
and  better control over inventories by
manufacturers are likely to reduce the impact of
economic downturns on Illinois.

Long-Term Demographic Trends

The steady increase in the [llinois population is
expected to continue into the twenty-first century.
U.S. Census Bureau estimates released in 1996
predict that the Illinois population will increase
from 11.5 million in the 1990 census to
13.1 million in 2020.

However, a significant increase in the percentage
of older Illinoisans may have an impact on the
types of services demanded from state
government. In 1970, 9.8% of the Illinois
population was age 65 or over. In 1995, this
group had increased to 12.5% of the Illinois
population. The Census Bureau projection for
2020 is for 14.9% of the Illinois population to be
age 65 or older. In contrast, the share of
[llinoisans in the 18 to 64 group is expected to
drop from 61.0% to 60.1% and the share of
[llinoisans in the 17 or under group is expected to
drop from 26.4% to 25.0% between 1995 and
2020.

FISCAL OUTLOOK

For the third consecutive year the state's General
Fund GAAP balance improved, rising from a
$1.204 billion deficit in 1995 to a $952 million
deficit in 1996. Fiscal year 1996 also marked the
fourth straight year of improvement in the state’s
General Funds budgetary balance (measured on a
cash basis) as the balance rose from a $341
million deficit in fiscal year 1995 to a $292
million deficit in 1996,

The state’s daily cash availability also improved.
Building on the progress of the prior three years,
overdue payables from the General Funds were
reduced steadily throughout the year. Although
payment delays were still commonplace, those
delays were shorter than during the previous five
years.

The GAAP and cash basis improvements were
made possible by two factors. First, due to the
continued strength of the economy, Illinois’
General Funds saw an increase of $934 million or
5.5% in “base” revenue (total revenue excluding
short-term borrowing) in fiscal year 1996 - the
third largest increase on record. Second, the state
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was able to significantly reduce the level of
unpaid Medicaid bills carried over from the prior
year, This marks the second year in a row that
such liabilities were reduced.

Between 1994 and 1995, Section 25 General Fund
liabilities payable out of future year appropriations
declined by $451 million. Of that amount, $8
million was attributable to the state’s group health
insurance program for employees, retirees, and
their dependents administered by the Department
of Central Management Services. The remaining
$443 million reduction in liabilities can be traced
to the Medicaid program,

In 1996, Section 25 deferrals dropped by $648
million. ~ While deferrals for group health
insurance grew $87 million, Medicaid deferrals
fell by $737 million. This brings the two year
reduction in the Medicaid deficit to a remarkable
$1.180 billion. reflecting the cumulative impact of
increased appropriations, program cuts and an
extended freeze on reimbursement rates.

While there have been improvements across a
broad spectrum, the fact that Illinois still has both
GAAP and budgetary deficits as well as persistent
problems in paying bills in a timely manner
suggests that there is room for further
improvement. Although the magnitude of needed
improvement may be subject to debate, a
comparison to benchmarks suggested by the
financial community is useful in placing the
state’s fiscal health in perspective.

Those involved in evaluating the fiscal health of
governments generally believe that the ability to
maintain working balances in the range of 4%-5%
of 15-month budgetary expenditures indicates a
strong fiscal position. As evident in the chart on
page xxix, the state’s General Funds end-of-month
balances have not been near the 4% threshold
since fiscal year 1990,
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Comparison of General Funds Cash Balances
and 4% of 15-Month Expenditures (in millions)
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In order to continue to improve its fiscal health,
the state faces several challenges. To build
balances to more acceptable levels and reduce
overdue bills, resources must continue to be
directed to these purposes. This will not be easy.
The ability to allocate resources will be
constrained on one hand by revenue growth and
on the other by the competing budgetary needs of
programs such as education and those
administered by the Departments of Mental
Health, Corrections, Children and Family Services
and Public Aid.

Since revenue growth will mirror the strength of
the economy, the record revenue growth of fiscal
years 1995 and 1996 is not likely to be repeated in
the near future. In fact, fiscal year 1997 General
Funds base revenue growth is currently estimated
at $724 million, $210 million less than in fiscal
year 1996 and barely more than half the 1995
Increase.

Although Section 25 deferred liabilities appear to
be largely under control, continued efforts will be
required to keep deferrals from again becoming a
budgetary black hole. This is especially
applicable to the Medicaid program.

The size, scope and demographics of Medicaid are
not static but are driven by several dynamic
factors. Advances in medicine have resulted in
new and beneficial, but often extremely costly
treatments. The aging of the population in
general, and in Illinois in particular, means that
one of the fastest growing and most expensive to
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treat segments of the population will exert even
stronger influence on the demand for health care
services. In addition, fundamental changes in the
Medicaid program at the federal level will have a
profound effect on the state’s budget. All of these
pressures and more will also result in significant
changes in the way health care services are both
paid for and delivered.

Future budgets will also have to address longer-
term issues, particularly funding for the state’s
pension systems. In the past, adequate pension
funding was deferred to future years in order to
make room in the annual budgets for other more
immediate program needs. With the enactment of
P.A. 88-593, Illinois began to seriously address its
public pension funding problems in fiscal year
1996.

Unlike past funding legislation which was largely
ignored in the budget process, one of the key
provisions of the new law provides the
Comptroller with  continuing  appropriation
authority to make sure that required pension
contributions are made each year. In fiscal year
1996, the first year of the new funding legislation,
state employer contributions totaled $552 million
in accordance with the funding plan. Assuming
no increase in pension benefits and also assuming
that the law is not changed to allow the funding
plan to be deferred, the state’s annual contribution
is estimated to nearly double to $1.1 billion over
the next five years.



Independent Audit

The Illinois Auditor General has elected to
perform a “department by department” single
audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Single Audit Act of 1984 and the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-128, Audits
of State and Local Governments. and, for State
universities, Circular A-133, Audits of Institutions
of Higher Education and Other Nonprofit
[nstitutions. Separate departmental financial
reports for those State agencies subject to the
Single Audit Act include the schedule of federal
financial assistance, findings and
recommendations, and the auditor’s reports on
internal control and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The Illinois Auditor General
has performed an audit of the accompanying
general  purpose  financial  statements in
accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, and his unqualified opinion is
presented herein.

Certificate of
Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of
the United States and Canada (“GFOA") awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to the State of Illinois for its
comprehensive annual financial report (“CAFR")
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995. This is
the twelfth consecutive year that the State has
received this prestigious award in governmental
financial reporting. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, the State of [llinois
published an easily readable and efficiently
organized CAFR whose contents conform to
program standards. This report satisfied both
generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of
Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.

We believe our current report continues to
conform to the  Certificate  Program's
requirements. [ will be submitting this report to
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.
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FINANCIAL SECTION

The Financial Section which follows includes the auditor’s report, the
general purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund
and account group statements and schedules.






STATE OF ILLINOIS
WILLIAM G. HOLLAND
AUDITOR GENERAL
Honorable James “Pate” Philip, President of the Senate
Honorable Lee A. Daniels, Speaker of the House
Members of the General Assembly
Honorable Jim Edgar, Governor
Honorable Loleta Didrickson, Comptroller

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the State of Illinois as of and
for the year ended June 30, 1996 as listed in the foregoing Table of Contents for Section II. These general-purpose
financial statements are the responsibility of the State’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general-purpose
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general-purpose financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall general-purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

our opinion.

In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements listed in the foregoing Table of Contents for
Section II present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of Illinois as of June 30, 1996,
and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds for the
year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements
taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and budgetary
schedules, listed in the Table of Contents for Section II, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements of the State of Illinois. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the general-purposefhancial statements taken as a
whole.

The statistical and economic data listed in the Table of Contents for Section III were not audited by us, and

accordingly, we do not express an opinion thereon.

WILLIAM G. HOLLAND
Auditor General
State of Illinois
Springfield, Illinois
December 31, 1996

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL * ILES PARK PLAZA + 740 EAST ASH - SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62703-3154 - 217/782-6046

RECYCLED PAPER - SOYBEAN INKS
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GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Purpose Financial Statements provide a summary overview of the
financial position of all funds and account groups and of the operating
results by fund type. They also serve as an introduction of the more
detailed statements and schedules that follow.
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State of Illinois

Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types, Account Groups

and Discretely Presented Component Units
June 30, 1996 (Exprassed in Thousands)

Proprietary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Types
Special Debt Capital ) Internal
General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise Service

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

727,303 331,342
487,269 1,168,794 2 7.762 354

Bue from primary govemnment _
inventories ' 24,875 40,179 6,605 12,537

Other debits: B .
Amount avallable in debt semce funds for:

pr
. Retirement of general obhgahon bonds
Rghrement of special obligation bonds

LIABILITIES, EQUITY and OTHER CREDITS

Liabilities:
Accounts ble and accrued liabilities $ 1857024 § 480,710 $ 75225 § 55846 $ 153,249
¢ ? it T Ry § ¥ .

1 component units
Due to prmary government
Deferred revenues ’ 169,646 269,982 6,511 " 10,256
Liabilities payable from restricted assets - :

General obiigation bonds payable
Special obligation bonds payable

Revenue bonds payable 859,348

cap
Investment in fixed assets
Retained eamings:

104,878 1,489,062 395,751

desig i ) 04,262
Undesignated (1 129,683) 70878 (173 918)
- Total eqmty {deficit) and other credits (951 31 5) 2 345 790 529 762 216 833 140,68? 86,117

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fiduciary Total Total

Fund Type Account Groups {(Memorandum {Memorandum
Trust General General Only) Only)
and Fixed Long-Term Primary Component Reporting
Agency Assets Obligations Government Units Entity

311,286 1,369,931 1,369,931
12,720 1,681,917 61,995 1,743,912

s i

5,289,308 5,289,308 5,289,308
1,748,894 1,748,894 1,748,894
55,0 :

$ S 3301672 S 620661 § 3922533
2,328 ~ 458723 70,640 520363

28,423 28,423

1,880,992 1,880,992 1,880,992
15,019 874,367 3570650 = 4445026

33,530 52,490

18,
$ 4588214 4,588,214 4,553,962 9,142,176

295 . . #9039, 58,211 2,048,197
1,927,945 , R . 1,927,945

504,262 9,657 513,919
21,681 (1,216,042) (52,282) (1,268,324)

25,535,896 4,588,214 ] 32,491,983 7,183 427 39,675,410




State of lllinois

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund

.Types, Expendable Trust Funds and Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands) ‘

Total
. ‘ Fiduciary (Memorandum
Govermnmental Fund Types Fund Type Only)
Special Debt Capital Expendable Primary
General Revenue Service Projects Trust Government

REVENUES

1047 020
$ 1,205,838 2.901.397
8,409,885

821,718
Other taxes 1,237,935
Federal government 4.092,0_54

L

‘ ‘Tohl rovonues

EXPENDITURES

General govemment 1,061,247 3.826,734 403 25,946 3,005 4,917,335
" Social assistance 1,426,459 1,416,404 _ . 1,288,811 4,131,674

Transportation 28,801 2,417,543 180,826
iblic’proteckionand justice: : 1.184,700° s L

“ Principal . 11,456 4179 440,715 456,350
Interest 59,444 19,142 355,001 , 433,587
Capital outtays 73,894 85,251 207,083 290 366,518

4 : L e & % SANE PSS B R RSN Y i TR 3% e
over (undor) oxpondltum i (397,439) (755,491) (494,290) 83,878 634,270
OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL _ o N

s from general/special ‘ ) : . .
obligation bond refunding issues : 318,040 318,040
Operating transfers-in 1,161,512 2,342,386 888,191 281 2,678 4,395,048

Proceeds from certificates of pamapanon ‘ ' ‘ 90,052 90,052
Payment to refunded bond &cmw agent - . (318,040) . (318,040)

SRR

Excess (doﬁcioncy) of revenues over
(under} expenditures and net
qthor sources (usos) of

et ot (a “—\«;;«x«w:». b et 52 e e SRR SR A e s s o SR = % 3 & &
previotsly reported (1,203,944) 2,317,544 444198 21276 1805791 - 3,484,865
Restatementireclassification of fund balances (78550) - - . (884) . 884 363 (78.187)
Fund balances (defict), July 1, 1995, as restaled — (120308) 2238064 443314 22160 1,006,154 3,406,678
A&ﬁ,’z{ e 5 ;s 2 % 't

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an ihtegral part of this statement,
6



Total

{Memorandum
Only)
Component Reporting
Units Entity

$ 18819
20,701

52,
15,616 4,932,951
53 4,131,727
2,627,170
m e

29,184 3,514,049
78,187 -
107,371 3,514,048

.




State of Mlinois |
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

All Budgeted Fund Groups (See Note 2)
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

General Funds Highway Funds

Final Variance Final .
Budget Actual Qver (Under) - Budget Actual QOver (Under)

“Public utiiity taxes “801.000 833080 32,080
Federal govemment 3,078,000 3257726 179,726 624,100 647,738 . 23,638
Other o 1182000 11035 115 752383 (9,906)

8, 36,677, CTEL 192}
@17 2,112,252 (63,470)
(38,601) 1,440 -
(17,541) 52,733




University Funds Spacial State Funds . Bond Financed Funds
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over {Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

25 67,449

414,781 (5,678) 120,117

T (15,783)
@11)
(41,931)

35,356 30,061 (5,295) 27,704 27,217 324,825 318,667 (6,158)
423,556 406,644 (16,912) 6,463,203 5,762,487 641,590 624,005 (17,585)
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State of Illinois ‘
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

All Budgeted Fund Groups (See Note 2)
For the Yeor Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

(continued)
Debt Service Funds Federal Trust Funds
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over(Under) = Budget Actual - Over (Under)

SIS

Federal government ’ $ 338 $ 98 $ 2,391,491 $§ 2,054,145 § (337,346)
Other e 29,842 20,796 . e 22085 27362

intorost . ' 258,061 558,061

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
h iy e e e

reclassified 301,888 301,888 - (149,571) (149,571) -
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Total

Revolving Funds State Trust Funds ' (Memorandum Only)
Final Variance Final Variance " Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under) - Budget Actual Over (Under)

R

1,080,657 . 35674
7.520,199 (126,292)
6,621,367 258,041

227,776 167,894 (59,882)
98,975

e A s o £ R e M.ALM.V.;M
2,701,040 2,616,563 (84,477)

(37,967) 1,851,604 1,712,796 (138,808)

(2,021 1,628,100 1,513,790

2,482 (35,916)

(1,956,782)

18,220 15,515 (2,705)
255,196 224,210 (30,986)

1,847 (535)
359,922 (133,247)

i

(467,464) (467,464) -= (564,965) (584,565) -

7,937 7,937 - 70,013 70,013 - 847,960 847,960 -—
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State of llinois

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained
Eamings/Fund Balances - All Proprietary Fund Types, Nonexpendable
and Pension Trust Funds, and Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Total Total
Proprietary Fiduciary (Memorandum {Memorandum
Fund Type Fund Type Only) Only)
Intemnal Nonexpendable Pension Primary Component Reporting
Enterprise Service Trust Trust Government . Units Entity

Employee : - 744,236 744,236 744,236
‘Other ' 36,128 36,128
Interest apd other investment income - 35 ) 17? 2,629 527 157 744 2, 861 391

! o
OPERATING EXPENSES

. ‘Costs of sales and services 164,536 177,226 . ) 341,762 5,279 347,041
Benefit m&nts and refunds 19!.5“.“7:.5“8 490,375 ) 1,955,601 2,552,714 32,820 2,585,534
Depreciation 1,596 17.205 2,163 20,964 68,237 89,201
Other 9,486 7,794 44 925 | 18,249 47,389 65,638

Total oporating expenses 1,280,583 721,085 65 1,980,759 3,982,492 676,049 4,658,541

Investment income . 3,031 ‘ 1,773 4.8@4 37,250 42,054
Irllerest expense (2,941) (755) (3,696) (63 (3.759)

o s

Sanaay
3,020,660

140 2,090,661 2,895,026 125634

R R T R A s
Income before operating transfers

Operating transfe;rs-in 191 191 12,403 12,594

Net income ' 26.040 4,678 .86 2,080,661 2,121,465 153,957 2,275,422

Residual equity transfers-out T @73 773 B T TT3)
RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCE, ' ;

The accompanying notes to the ﬁnéncial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of lllinols

Combined Statement of Cash Flows - All Proprietary Fund Types,

Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Year Ended Junae 30, 1996 (Expressad in Thousands)

Total Total
Proprietary Fiduciary (Memorandum (Mermorandum
Fund Type Fund Type Only) Only)

(62)  (1,081,100)
 Net cash provided by (used in) operating activites @) 676,955

A s e
m
11,074

pE f 4,369, ‘ x : LS80}
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 1996 S 186391 § 7049 § 2478 § 259050 § 442447 3 T01.506
Reconciliation of operating mcometonetush ) i ‘
)

18,801 68,237 87,038
47 434
(103,795) (81,187 (184,962)

AR e o ( . ;v,m : it Poweribrt AL i 2 %
Increase (decrease) in due to primary govenment 605 605
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues ' (142) (3) 8 (139) (112) {251)
! ’ 6

Increase (decrease) in other fiabilities
- inereass (dacrease) KL TS

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Sl et

Theamn;mngmmbmwmﬂmmtegdpmofmm
13



State of Illinois

Combining Statement of Changes in Fund Balances -

University and College Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Component Unit
Chicago Eastern Western liiinois Northemn Southern
State . inois- {linois State Winois Hllinois

University University University University University University

REVENUES AND OTHER ADDI'HONS

~Other State sources 363

Private gifts, grants and contracts-restricted : 152" 2,747 2,887 5728 - 7.204 25,629
lnvestment income i 44 843 758 1,480 901 2,896

¥ e e (i) e s Tt by i : 2 omvet i 32 KasRaR e R SRR RRR RN SRR mm
Current funds . 4,661 6,135 9,479 12,626 18,121
Plant funds 5453 3,174 1,435 - 3,208 14,824 37,189

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS

Eduwhonal and general expendnures 67,530 9, ' 110,064 211,208 208,752 449,212
"“Foundation expendntutes 680 2,032 2,127 4,126 3,348 13,458
Indirect costs recovered 631 321 497 . 833 1,700 4,184

Refunds of grams and adyustments to grams ' ) ) ‘ N 313

Expended for piant facilities (inciuding _
_noncapitalized expenditures of $30,490) 37 5,087 5,169 4,769 15,942 ‘46,137
Reﬁremem of long-tefm obhgahons 1,524 4,870 3,664 4,372 5,853 4,859

TRANSFERS—ADDITIONS(DEDUCTIONS)
Nonmandatory:

Operahng.n-ansfersto pnrnary govemment T : sy
Other | , | 1,862
Total transfers 66,643 107,285 123,779 278,281

LFund balances, July 1, 1995 ' ‘ 737,881
Residual equity transfers-infout 55,241 135,149 192,929 327,009 . 374,162 54

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Component Unit (continued)
University Non-Major
of Component
Illinois Units Total

M sy
(18)

1,861

813,291 73,895 1,555,980

"3.068.299

1,324,641 5,130,821
76,468

(1,161,012) -
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State of Illinois

Combining Statement of University and College Current Funds -
Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes .
University and College Component Units

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

Unrostricto_g _
Chicago Eastern Westem llinois Northemn Southern
State Hinois lllinois - State lllinois Ilinois

University University University University University University

Private gms granis and contracts
Investment income
Sales and services

1,303
756 2,518
63,633 113,869

Educational and general:
lnsﬂucﬁqn

Ry

10,596
7,526

Institutional support 8,715
Opemhqn and mamtenanoe of plant

gy

Hospitals
lndependent operations
Mzm«wwlawm KPR S

““Retirement of long-term obligations e 555 3,664 2690 4205 5346 4430
Student loan matching grants , 267 25 4 35 192
Renewals and replacements © 662 2,550 2122 462

Total expenditures and mandatory transfers 56,470 103,319 - 127,521 196,176 243,849 436,196
OPERAT_IHG TRANSFERS AND

it atndoats Boprtnfveth \»-.Qw
Transfers-out to component units
Operating transfers to primary govermnment

Other u'ansfers (130) (1,496) (1,453) (1.373) (548) (3,269)
% .»'»v«r. 4 5 oo 2 Fo R I L RS N 5 oo e boxeo e

*“Total operating transfers and additions

(deductions) 34,137 46,356 57,823 86,876 111,859 225,588

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Unrestricted {continued)
University Non-Major
of Component
Ilinois Units Total

316 14312
280 7,592
3,799 802,958

507,747 40,229 952,167

-

45,521 6,875 142,599
109,285 37,495 322,743
134,270

e oo

i :
110,736 2,885,451

(324) (8,593)

729,424 44,828 1,336,891
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State of Hlinois

Combining Statement of University and College Current Funds -
Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes

University and College Component Units

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 {(Expressed in Thousands)

Restricted _
(continued) Chicago Eastemn Westemn lllinois Northem Southern
State llinois Ilinois State Ilinois Ifinois

University University University University University University

Private gifts, grants and contracts
Investment income
Sales and services ‘ . o 79

A A s A A L

EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS
" Educational and general: ‘ »
Instruction 1,297 693 2,491 2,312 1,871

- =
Student services , 1,184 12 1,340 31
Institutional support 288 116 78 1,703 264 4114
Operation and maintenance of plant 33 21 29 2 229

hips and p

AT E ; SRS i 2 ISR AR
Auxiliary enterprises - 189 19 650
Hospitals . ‘

Independent qperaﬁpns

"~ Retirement of long-term obligations 121
Student loan matching grants o - (222)
Rf and reacements

fers

Transfers-out to component units (52; (30) = e . (406)
Operating transfers to primary government 3) (15)

Other transfers o 177 (285) (63) (179) (472) 600

v fonbe ittt bl A LA L &é@ bt o AR it s s maienane
Total operating transfers and additions
(deductions) 5 572 2,751 1,915 3,013 832 13,880

18



Restricted (continued)

University Non-Major Total
of Component Current
linois Units Total Funds

9 909, AT140 1 50,80
145,572 1,343 181,343 195,655
13,862 143 17,260 24,852

»ﬂ R i m:-cf‘;w:» 4
1,642 6,668 11,672 154,271
1,895 572 5,327 328,070
1,259 2 1,575 242,396

62,

28 28 244,494

“@3) A8)  B4) - (84d)
(18) (18)

6.146)

e

cese 28 . (589

18,722 2,255 43,940 1,380,831
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STATE OF ILLINOIS

Notes fo the Financial Statements
June 30, 1996

1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES
A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements of the State of
Illinois have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) as prescribed
in pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (“GASB™).

B. Financial Reporting Entity

The financial statements distinguish between the
“primary government” and its “component units.” The
State’s participation in a joint venture, related
organizations, and jointly governed organizations are
separately disclosed below. The primary govemment

" which consists of organizations that make up the State’s

The State of Illinois is a “primary government” whose

financial statements consist of the primary government,
organizations for which the primary government is
financially -accountable, and other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship
with the primary government are such that exclusion
would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. The financial
statements include all funds, account groups, elected
offices, departments and agencies as well as boards,
commissions, authorities, and universities and colleges
for which the State’s elected officials are financially
accountable. Financial accountability exists when the
State’s governing body appoints a majority of am
organization’s governing board and (1) the State can
impose its will upon the organization or (2) there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefit to, or impose specific financial burdens
on the State. '

The State’s governing body consists of the legislative,
executive, and judicial branches of government. The
legislative function is controlied by an elected General
- Assembly composed of a 59-member Senate and a 118-
member House of Representatives. The executive
branch consists of the Governor, the chief executive of
the State, the Lieutenant Governor, Attorney General,
Secretary of State, Comptroller, and Treasurer. The
judicial branch is composed of a seven-member
Supreme Court, five districts of Appellate courts and
twenty-two Circuit Court judicial districts including
Cook County.
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legal entity, is the nucleus of the State’s reporting entity,
and is generally the focal point for users of the financial
statements. Component units are legally separate
organizations for which the State is financially
accountable. An overview of the State’s component
units is presented in the financial statements by
“discrete” presentation (i.e., columns  presently
separately from the primary govenment). Condensed
financial statements for the State’s discretely presented
component units are displayed in note 18.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Component units are reported in separate columns to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the State.
Complete financial statements of the individual
component units can be obtained from the respective
component unit administrative offices (as listed in
parenthesis below). Except for the Board of Trustees of
the University of Illinois whose current board is elected,
the major component units presented below have
governing bodies appointed by the governing board of
the State. The State is financially accountable for these
comuponent units, and, therefore, .they are reported in
separate “discrete” columns in the State’s financial
staterents.

1. IHlinois Grain Insurance Corporation
(“Corporation”). The board of directors of the
Corporation consists of five State officials who
administer the Illinois Grain Insurance Fund. The
State can impose its will on the Corporation and is
obligated to provide funding to satisfy claims when
corporate funds are insufficient. (Administrative
Offices: PO Box 19281, Springfield, Ilinois
62794-9281). - .



Notes to the Financial Statements

State of lllinois
East St Louis Financial Advisory Authority
(“Authority”). The Authority was created to

provide a secure financial basis for and to furnish
assistance to the city of East St. Louis. The State
substantively approves the Authority’s budget.
(Administrative Offices: 10 Collinsville Ave., East
St. Louis, Illinois 62201).

lllinois Medical District Commission
(“"Commission”). The Commission was created to
maintain and expand a designated “medical
district.” The State substantively approves the

Commission’s budget. (Administrative Offices: 600

S. Hoyne, Chicago, Illinois 60612).

Comprehensive Health Insurance Plan (“CHIP”)
Board. The CHIP provides an alternate market for
health insurance for eligible Illinois residents
having a preexisting heaith condition. The State
provides significant operating subsidies to the
CHIP.. (Administrative Offices: 400 West Monroe
Street, Suite 202, Springfield, Illinois 62704).
Hlinois. - Farm Development Authority
(“Authority”). The Authority provides loan
programs for acquisition and development of
agricultural facilities. The State guarantees certain

debt of the Authority in the event of default by the

debtor. (Administrative Offices: 427 East Monroe
Street, Suite 201, Springfield, Illinois 62701).
Hlinois Health Facilities Authority (“IHFA”). The
IHFA provides assistance and alternative methods
of financing to health institutions to aid them in
providing quality care. IHFA issues tax-exempt
debt to finance its operations.. (Administrative
Offices: 180 North Stetson Avenue, Suite: 1100,
Chicago, Illinois 60601).

Hlinois Development Finance Authority (“IDFA").
The IDFA provides funding for industrial,
commercial and manufacturing development in
areas of Illinois with critical unemployment. The
State appropriates funds - for certain IDFA
programs. (Administrative Offices: 233 South
Wacker Drive, Suite 5310, Chicago, Dlinois
60606).

" Hlinois Housing Development Authority (“IHDA”).

The IHDA issues notes and bonds to make loans |

for the acquisition, construction and rehabilitation
of housing and to make loans to encourage home
ownership. The State approves bonds and notes
issued by the IHDA and is secondarily liable for its
debt if there are not sufficient IHDA monies to pay
principal and interest. (Administrative Offices: 401
North Michigan Avenue, Suite 900, Chicago,
‘Tlinois 60611).
. llinois Rural Bond Bank (“Bond Bamk”). The
- Bond Bank provides assistance to rural
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10.

11.

12.

governmental units by providing adequate capital
markets and facilities for borrowing money and
financing public improvements at low interest rates.
The State is secondarily liable for payment of
principal and interest on the Bond Bank debt.
Excess reserves of the Bond Bank must be returned
to the State’s General Fund. (Administrative
Offices: 427 East Monroe Street, Suite 202,
Springfield, Illinois 62701).

Ilinois State Toll Highway Authority (“THA"”). The
THA operates a toll highway system to promote the
public welfare, and to facilitate vehicular traffic by

‘providing convenient, safe, modern and limited

access highways within Illinois.  The State
approves new toll highways and issuance of bonds.
(Administrative Offices: One Authority Drive,

' Downers Grove, Illinois 60515).

Southwestern 1llinois = Development Authority
(“Authority”). The Authority was created to
promote and enmhance economic development in
Southwestern Ilinois. The State approves bonds
issued by the Authority.  (Admimistrative Offices: 1
Eastport Plaza Dr., Collinsville, Illinois 62234).
Boards’ of Trustees of Eastern Illinois University
(“EIU”), Western lllinois University (“WIU"),
Chicago State University (“CSU”), Northeastern
lllinois University (“NEIU”), Governors Siate
University (“GSU”), Hlinois State University
(“ISU"), and Northern Illinois University (“NIU”)
(“boards”). = The boards of the respective

_ unijversities operate, manage, control and maintain

the schools. Until January 1, 1996, these
universities were legally controlled by the Board of
Governors and Board of Regents which have been

* abolished The State provides significant financial

support to the boards of the universities.

(Admmlstranve Offices:

® (CSU, 9501 South King Dr., Chicago, Illmo:s
60628 '

® EIU, 113 West Old Mam Charleston, Illinois
61920

® GSU, Route 54 & Stuenkel Rd, Umverslty
Park, Hlinois 60466

® NEIU, 5500 N. St. Louis Avenue, Chicago,
Illinois 60625

® WIU, 1 University Circle, Macomb, Illinois
61455

® ISU, Campus Box 1100 Normal, Dlinois
61790-1100

® NIU, Altgeld Hall 104, DeKalb, Ilinois

60115).



State of Illinois

Notes to the Financial Statements

13. Board of Trustees of Southern Hlinois University
(“SIU Board”). The SIU Board operates, manages,
. controls and maintains Southern Illinois University.
The State provides significant financial support to
the SIU Board. (Administrative Offices: Colyer
Hall, Carbondale, Illinois 62901).
Board of Trustees of the University of lllinois (“U
of I Board”). The current U of I Board is an
elected body and manages the University of
Illinois. As existing board members’ terms expire,
they will be appointed by the Governor. The State
provides significant financial support to the U of I
Board. {(Administrative = Offices: 346
Administration Building, 506 South Wright Street,
Urbana, Illinois 61801).
State Community College of East St. Louis Board of
Trustees (“Board”). The Board operates the State
Community College of East St. Louis. The State
provides significant financijal support to the Board.
(Administrative Offices: 601 James R. Thompson
Boulevard, East St. Louis, Illinois 62201).

14.

15.

Condensed financial statement information is presented
in note 18 for each of the State’s discretely presented
component units.

Joint Ventures

The State is a participant with the states of Michigan,
Minnesota, New York, Ohio, Pennsylvania, and

Wisconsin in the Great Lakes Protection Fund (“Fund”),

an Illinois not-for-profit corporation. The nation’s first
multi-state environmental endowment was established
in 1989 for furthering Federal and State commitments to
programs that restore and maintain the Great Lakes
water quality. This purpose is achieved by providing
grant money for projects that promote the objectives of
the regional Great Lakes Toxic Substances Control
Agreement and the bipational Great Lakes Water

Quality Agreement.

A state becomes a member of the organization by.

agreeing to contribute an amount set forth in the articles
of incorporation. Illinois’ required contribution is $15
miltion of which $10.8 million has been paid. Ilinois
currently is in default under the articles of incorporation
and is subject to various sanctions. The required
contributions from all member states at December 31,
1995 was $81 million of which $76.8 million has been
paid. The Fund’s net assets on that date were $81
million.

Once a state agrees to make the required contribution,
that state’s governor becomes a “member” of the
corporation. Each member is entitled to elect two
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individuals to the board of directors. Budgetary and
financial decisions rest with the board of directors
except where restricted by the articles of incorporation.
Two-thirds of the Fund’s income is used to finance
projects compatible with the organization’s objectives
as set forth in the articles of incorporation. The
remaining one-third of income is paid to member states
in proportion to the amount and period of time that each
state’s contribution was invested with the Fund (“state
shares™). Illinois’ state share was $90 thousand in 1995
and nearly $1.1 million since the Fund’s inception. The
affirmative vote of all of the members is required for all
actions of the Fund. Complete financial statements of
the Fund can be obtained from the Fund’s
administrative offices at 35 East Wacker Drive,
Chicago, Illinois 60601.

Related Organizations

The State’s officials are also responsible for appointing
the majority of the boards of other organizations, but
the State’s accountability does not go beyond making
the appointments. The State, generally the Governor, in
certain instances with the advice and consent of the
Senate, appoints the members of the following boards:

® (Central Midwest Interstate Low-Level Radioactive

Waste Commission
Havana Regional Port District
Kaskaskia Regional Port District
Mt. Carmel Regional Port District
Shawneetown Regional Port District
Southwest Regional Port District
" Tri-City Regional Port District
‘Waukegan Port District
‘White County Port District
Illinois Community College System Foundation

The State maintains accounting records for the Central
Midwest & Interstate Low-Level Radioactive Waste
Commission. The Ilinois Community College Board
provides nominal support services for the Illinois
Community College System Foundation. These are the
only related-party activities that the State has with the
above organizations.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The State’s officials, in conjunction with various other
state and local government officials, are members of the
boards of other organizations. However, the State has
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no ongoing financial interest or responsibility except the
role of a participant in the organization’s purpose and,
in certain instances, pays annual dues or assessments.
The Governor, sometimes with the advice and consent
of the Senate, appoints the number of board members
(as indicated in parenthesis below) of the following
organizations: -

® BiState Development Agency of the

Missouri/Illinois Metropolitan District (5 of 10)
Education Commission of the States (7 of
approximately 350) ’
Hlinois/Indiana Bi-State Commission (2 of 12)
Illinois/Indiana Bridge Commission (5 of 10)
Tlinois Valley Regional Port District (2 of 5)
Interstate Mining Commission (1 of 17)
- Jackson/Union Counties Port District (4 of 23)
Joliet Regional Port District (3 of 7)
Lawyers Trust Fund (3 of 9) ,
Midwestern Higher Education Commission (5 of
60) |
Northeastern Illinois Planning Commission (5 of
33)
Ohio River Valley Water Sanitation Commission (2
of 18) '
Southwestern Illinois Metropolitan & Regional
- Planning Commission (8 appointed)
Wabash Valley Interstate Commission (7 of 14)

" The State has no significant related-party activities with
the above organizations.

C. Fund Accounting
Financial activitiés of the State are organized on the

Notes to the Financial Statements

-General Fund. These services include, among others,

social assistance; education (other than institutions of
higher education), and health and social services.
Certain resources obtained from federal grants and used
to support general governmental activities are accounted
for in the General Fund consistent with applicable legal
requirements. The State’s Geperal Fund contains four
primary sub-accounts (General Revenue, Education
Assistance, Common School, and Medicaid Provider
Assessment Program) with numerous secondary
sub-accounts.

Special Revenue - Transactions related to resources
obtained from specific revenue sources (other than for
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes
are accounted for in special revenue funds. Special
revenue funds account for, among other things, federal
grant programs, taxes levied with statutorily defined
distributions, and other resources restricted as to
purpose.

Debt Service - Transactions related to governmental
resources obtained and accumulated to pay interest and
principal on general long-term obligations (other than
capital leases, compensated absences, workers’
compensation, and unfunded retirement costs) are
generally accounted for in debt service funds.

" Capital Projects - Transactions related to resources

basis of individual funds and account groups, each of .

which is a separate accounting entity segregated for the
purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining
certain objectives in accordance = with specific
regulations, restrictions or limitations. The financial
activiies of the State accounted for in the
accompanying financial statements have been classified
into the following fund categories and account groups:

Governmentﬂ Fund Types

General - Transactions related to resources obtained
and used for those services traditionally provided by a
state government which are not required to be
accounted for in other funds are accounted for in the
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obtained and used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities, including those provided to
political subdivisions and other public organizations,
which are charged to expenditures (other than those
financed by proprietary, fiduciary, and university and
college fund types) are accounted for in capital projects
funds. Such resources are derived principally from
proceeds of general and special obligation bond issues.

Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise - Enterprise funds account for. operations
where the intent of the State is that the cost of providing
goods or services to the general public on a continuing
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges, or where periodic measurement of the results
of operations is- appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control, accountability, or
other purposes.

Internal Service - Internal service funds account for the
operations of State agencies which render services and
provide goods to other State agencies or governmental
units on a cost-reimbursement basis.
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Fiduciary Fund Types Chicago, are managed by the University of Illinois
Board of Trustees,

Trust -

Expendable - Expendable trust funds account for assets
held by the State in a trustee capacity where the
principal and income may be expended in the course of
the funds’ designated operations.

Nonexpendable - Nonexpendable trust funds account
for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity where
only the income may be expended in the course of the
funds’ designated operations.

Pension - Pension trust funds account for transactions,
assets, liabilities and met assets available for plan
benefits of the various State public employee retirement

systems.

Agency

Agency funds account for the various taxes, deposits,
deductions, and property collected by the State, acting
in the capacity of an agent, for distribution to other
governmental units or designated beneficiaries.

Universities and Colleges

University and college funds account for the operations
of State universities and colleges, including their related
foundations and associations (referred to as university
related organizations or “UROs”). The UROs are
component units of their related universities and the
universities are, in tum, component units of the State.
The discrete presentation of the universities and
colleges within the State’s financial statements is in
accordance with NACUBO accounting and reporting
principles. The universities are reported in the financial
statements based upon their legal ownership as follows:

® Chicago State, Eastern Illinois, Governors State,
Northeastern Illinois, - Western Illinois, Illinois
State, and Northern Illinois are managed, operated,
controlled, and maintained by individual boards of
trustees at those universities.

Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University -
Southern Illinois University at ~Carbondale,
Edwardsville, and the Medical School at
Springfield are operated, managed, controlled, and
maintained by the SIU Board of Trustees.

University of Illinois Board of Trustees - The
University of Ilinois at Champaign-Urbana,
Chicago, Springfield, and the Medical Center at
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Account Groups

General Fixed Assets. General fixed assets
acquired or constructed for use by the State in the
conduct of its activities, other than those accounted
for in proprietary, fiduciary and umiversity and
college fund types are accounted for in the General
Fixed Assets Account Group.

General Long-Term Obligations. Unmatured
general and special obligation bonds, unfunded
retirement costs, and other long-term obligations
not recorded in proprietary, fiduciary and universi-
ty and college fund types are recorded in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

D.  Basis of Accounting and

Measurement Focus

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Governmental Fund and Expendable Trust Funds.
The accounts of the general, special revenue, debt
service, capital projects and expendable trust funds are
reported wusing a current financial resources
measurement focus and modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this measurement focus only
current assets and current liabilities are normally
included on the balance sheet. Fund balance represents
a measure of “available spendable resources.” Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they
become both measurable and available to finance .
expenditures of the fiscal year). “Measurable” means
when the amount of the transaction can be determined
and “available” means collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. = Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund lLiability is incurred.
Significant revenue sources which are susceptible to
accrual include individual and corporate income taxes,
sales taxes, public utility taxes and motor fuel taxes.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to
intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual
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requirements of the numerous individual programs are
used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two
types of these revenues. In one type, monies must be
expended on the specific purpose or project before any
amounts will be paid to the State; therefore, revenues
are recognized based upon the expenditure recorded. In
the other type, monies are virtually unrestricted as to
purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only
for failure to comply with prescribed compliance
requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues

at the time of 'receipt or earlier if the susceptible to.

accrual criteria are met.

Modifications to the accrual -basis of accounting
include:

®  Self assessed taxes, principally income, excise and
wealth taxes, are recognized as receijvables and
revenues in the period to which they apply subject

to their availability.

Fines, penalties, licenses and other miscellaneous
revenues are recognized when received since they
normally are only measurable at that time.

Interest on long-term obligations reflected in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group is
recognized in. the debt service funds when it
becomes payable.

Proprietary Funds, and Nonexpendable and Pension
Trust Funds. The accounts of the enterprise, internal
service, and nonexpendable and pension trust funds are
reported using the capital maintenance measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this
measurement focus all assets and liabilities associated
with the operation of these funds are included on the
balance sheet.  Fund equity is segregated into
contributed capital and retained earnings components.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
_ recognized when eamned and expenses are recognized
when incurred. ‘

As permitted by GASB Statement 20, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Propriétary Fund
Accounting, generally, the State has elected to apply
only statements and interpretations of the Fimancial
Accounting Standards Board, Accounting Principles
Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of
the Committee on Accounting Procedure issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Agency Funds. The accounts of agency funds are
reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting
as described above for governmental and expendable
trust funds. Agency funds do not measure nor report -
-operations. Instead, changes in assets and hablhtles are
presented for agency funds. -

University and College Funds. The accounts of the
university and- college funds are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting with the following
exceptions:

® Depreciation expense related to plant fund assets
generally is not recorded.

Revenues and expenditures of an academic term
encompassing more than one fiscal year are solely
reported in the fiscal year in which the program is
predominantly conducted.

E. Eliminations ;
Eliminations have been imtegrated into the report to
eliminate those items which would significantly
overstate the financial activities of certain funds and
intrafund accounts within the related fund type.

Total (Memorandum Only)
Columns

Total columns represent an aggregation of the fund type
and account group financial statements. They are
presented for informational purposes and do not
represent consolidated financial information.

F.

G. Budgetary Process
The State Constitution requires the Governor to prepare

- and submit to the General Assembly an Executive
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Budget for the ensuing fiscal year. The budget covers
most funds held by the State, but excludes all locally
held funds and various treasury held funds which are
not subject to appropriation pursuant to State law, The
General Assembly enacts the budget through passage of -
specific line-item appropriations (i.e., personal services,
contractual services, equipment, etc.), the sum of which
must not exceed estimated revenues pursuant to the
Staté Constitution. The Govemnor has the power to
approve, reduce or veto each appropriation passed by
the General Assembly. Transfers in/out contained in the
Executive Budget are not a part of the General
Assembly’s appropriation process. The actual amounts
are determined either by State law or by discretionary
action available to the Governor. The Comptroller’s
Uniform Statewide Accounting System (“CUSAS”)
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controls expenditures by line-item as established in
approved appropriation bills aod insures that
appropriated expenditure amounts are not exceeded.
The level of legal control is reported in a publication
titied Illinois Detailed Annual Report of Revenues and
Expenditures. A separate document is necessary since
the State has over 9,200 appropriated line items.
Administrative transfers between certain appropriation
line-items within the same treasury held fund canmpot
exceed 2% of the aggregate amount appropriated to an
agency from that fund. Legislative action is required
for more substantial transfers. Unexpended
appropriations at June 30 are available for subsequent
expenditure to the extent that encumbrances have been
incurred at June 30, provided they are presented for
payment during the succeeding 90 day “lapse period.”
Certain appropriations referred to as “reappropriations”
represent the continuation of a prior year’s program
which requires additional time for completion.

Budgeted revenues in the accompanying Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources
and Uses of Financial Resources and Changes in
Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-
GAAP) represent original estimates, while budgeted
expenditures represent original appropriations modified
by supplemental and amendatory and. continuing
appropriations aggregating $567 million. Budgets are
essentially on the cash basis, modified for expenditures
during the lapse period (beginning and end of year) as
described in the preceding paragraph.

CUSAS establishes the following budgetary fund
groups to account for the State’s budgetary activities:

General - funds established to account for those
services traditionally provided by a state
government which are not required to be accounted
for in other funds; :

Highway - funds established to receive and
distribute assessments related to transportation, and
to support the construction and maintenance of
transportation facilities and activities of the State;

University - funds established to receive revenues
such as fees, tuition and excess income from

auxiliary enterprises at State-supported institutions
of higher education;

Special State - funds designated by statute as
special funds in the State Treasury and not
elsewhere classified;

Bond Financed - funds established to receive and
administer the proceeds of various bond issues of
the State;
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Debt Service - funds established to finance and
account for the payment of principal and interest
generally associated with the general and special
obligation bond issues of the State;

Federal Trust - funds established pursuant to grants
and contracts or under statutory authority between
State agencies and the federal government;

Revolving - funds established to finance and
account for intra-governmental services; and,

State Trust - funds established by statute or under
statutory authority for nonfederal programs which
are not deemed to be a traditional governmental
activity or elsewhere classified.

H. Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible to cash with
original maturities of three months or less. Cash
equivalents consist principally of certificates of deposit,
repurchase agreements, U.S. treasury bills and food
stamps, and are stated at cost.

A Investments

Investments are stated on the basis of cost except for
those of the State Employees’ Deferred Compensation
Fund, and investments in mutual funds which are stated
at market value. Investment income is recorded as
revenue in the General Fund, except for resources of
retirement systems and certain other individual funds
which are statutorily authorized to be separately
invested and specifically credited with the income
realized thereon. The State financial statements contain
certain investments that meet the definition of
“derivatives”. Derivative investments are included in
the pension trust funds as disclosed in note 4.

J. Inventories

Inventories for governmental funds are valued at cost,
principally on the first-in, first-out consumption
method. '

K Interfund Transactions

The State has the following types of interfund

transactions:
Quasi-external transactions - Charges for services
rendered by one fund to another are treated as
revenues of the recipient find and expenditures or
expenses of the disbursing fund.
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Reimbursements - Reimbursement of expenditures
made by one fund for another are recorded as
expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a
reduction of expenditures in the reimbursed fund.

Residual Equity Transfers - Nonroutine -or
nonrecurring transfers between funds are reported
as additions to or deductions from fund equity.

Operating Transfers - Legally authorized transfers
other than residual equity transfers are reported as
operating transfers.

L.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Fixed assets are recorded at cost or, for donated assets,
at fair market value at date of acquisition.

General Fixed Assets - Fixed asset records are used
by the State primarily to assure accountability.
Historical cost records for certain general fixed
assets are incomplete or mnot available.
Accordingly, estimated historical costs have been
used. Public domain (infrastructure) general fixed
assets such -as highways, bridges, and lighting
systems are not capitalized. Depreciation is not
provided on general fixed assets and interest
expenditures incurred during the construction
period are not capitalized.

Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Types - It is the
State’s policy to capitalize interest expense incurred
on significant assets during their construction.
Generally, property, plant and equipment,
excluding land, are depreciated on the straight-line
method over the estimated service hves of the
respectlve assets as follows:

Years -
Land improvements - 20-50
Buildings and building improvements 20-50
Equipment B 310

University and College Funds - Generally, public
domain -(infrastructure) assets such as streets,
sidewalks, and lighting systems are not capitalized.
Depreciation generally is not provided on property,
plant and equipment.

M.  Retirement Costs

systems (see Note 10). The State also maintains and
funds public employee retirement systems for
employees of the various State supported universities
and colleges, and for public school teachers in cities
other than Chicago. It is the State’s policy to fund
retirement costs without regard to amounts calculated
under the provisions of Accounting Principles Board

_ (APB) Opinion No. 8. Based on actuarial consultations,

the State’s. contributions have been less than the
retirement benefits paid during the year for the last
fifteen fiscal years. Prior to fiscal year 1982, the State
had funded the retirement costs at a level at least as
great as the retirement benefits paid during the year.

Effective July 1, 1980 the State prospectiﬂrely adopted

“the provisions of APB Opinion No. § to determine

pension cost. Accordingly, calculated pension cost
comprises normal cost plus interest on unfunded prior
service cost and amortization of prior service costs over
forty years. For the period of change and subsequent
years, the excess of pension cost so calculated over
amounts funded represent long-term obligations of the
State and have been reflected in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group.

Capital Appreciation
(“deep-discount”) Bonds

Capital appreciation bonds are those bonds which are
issued at stated interest rates significantly below their
effective interest rate, resulting in a substantial discount.
The implicit interest (i.e., discount) is not paid until the
bond matures. . Therefore, the net value of the bonds
“accretes” (ie., the discount is reduced) over the life of
the bonds. For general and special obligation bonds, the
accreted amounts are included in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

N..

0. Compensated Absences

The amounts of vested unpaid vacation and sick leave
accumulated by State employees are accrued when
incurred in proprietary and university and college funds,
which use the accrual basis of accounting. In the
governmental funds, only the amounts that normally
would be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources are accrued as current-year expenditures.
Employees are charged for the earliest sick leave earned

- when the leave is used, and they are compensated for

Substantially all State employees, including members of -

the General Assembly and Judicial Branch, participate
in one of three State public employee retirement
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one-half of sick time accumulated after January 1, 1984
which is unused upon termination of employment. The

-State’s liability for unused vested sick leave and

vacation time, including salary related costs (e.g., social
security and medicare tax), is recorded in the
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accompanying financial statements at the employees’
current salary level. Unless it is anticipated that
compensated absences will be used in excess of a
normal year’s accumulation, no additional expenditures
are accrued. Therefore, the entire unpaid liability for
the governmental funds is recorded in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

P. Workers’ Compensation Liability

The fund liabilities of the General Fund, Road and
Mental Health (Special Revenue) Funds include the
amount of workers’ compensation claims that would
normally be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources. The remaining liability, based on
the State’s workers’ compensation laws, is reported in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group and
University and College Funds.

Q.  Encumbrances

The State employs encumbrance accounting for all
governmental fund types. All confracts, purchase
orders and other commitments for goods or services that
bave not been receivedfrendered by June 30 are
reported as reservations of fund balances, not as
expenditures.

R~ Reservations/Designations of
- Fund Equity
Reservations

Governmental and Fiduciary Funds - Fund balances of
governmental apd fiduciary fand types which are
legally restricted to a specific future use or that are not
available for appropriation or expenditure are reported
as reservations of fund balances. .

funds indicate the State’s plan for use of financial
resources in future periods.

S. Risk Management

Insurance in force on State-owned assets is limited
except for certain university facilities. Further, the State
makes no provision for anticipated losses in the event of
involuntary conversions..  The State’s liability
exposures, including workers’ compensation, vehicle,
employee fidelity and surety, legal representation and
employee indemnification, general liability, and other
tort liability are retained. Liabilities for claims,
including claims incurred but not reported, are recorded
in the funds or the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group as appropriate. The State has met its

- financial obligation associated with losses sustained

University and College Funds - Fund balances of -

university and college funds which are legally
restricted by outside sources to specific future use are
reported as reservations of fund balances. )
Proprietary Funds - Reserved retained earnings of the
proprietary funds are legally restricted for the payments
of capital maintenance and debt service related to
revenue bonds and bond anticipation notes and for other
purposes.

Designations
Designations of unreserved fund balances in
governmental, fiduciary and university and college

from its current resources in the past, even though
limited insurance coverage is purchased.

The State administers two public entity risk pools for

non-state employers - .one for local governments and"
another for school districts. The Local Government

Health Insurance Reserve Fund offers a health insurance

program to local governments and its employees and

retirees and the Teacher Health Insurance Security Fund

offers health insurance for school district teachers and

retired teachers. These funds are included as enterprise

funds in the State’s CAFR. Detailed information on

these programs can be obtained from the Department of
Central Management Services which administers both

plans. Separate audit reports are issued for both plans

and include the required pool supplementary

information. -

T. Financial Reporting Standards

GASB Statement 24, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for.. Certain Grants and other Financial
Assistance, provides guidance on pass-through grants,
food stamps, and on-behalf payments for fringe benefits
and salaries and has been implemented for fiscal year

-1996.
~ ."In November 1994, the GASB adopted Statement No.

27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employers. The statement requires the
State to measure and disclose the annual pension cost on
the accrual basis and * recognize governmental
fundpension expenditures on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. This statement establishes a new

. financial reporting framework that will result in
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significant changes to the financial statements, notes,
and add required supplementary information. The
requirements of the Statement are effective for periods
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beginning after June 15, 1997 (ie., fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998) with earlier implementation encouraged.
The State intends to early adopt the provisions of this
standard in the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997.

GASB Statement 28, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Secwrities Lending Tramsactions, is
effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after December 15, 1995. Generally, the State will
implement the standard in fiscal year 1997 and, except
for the Teacher’s Retirement System, included in the
State’s financial statements as a pension trust fund, has
not implemented Statement 28 in the current fiscal year.

BUDGETARY BASIS VS.
GAAP:

The accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial

2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund
Balances-Budget and Actal (Non-GAAP), Al
Budgeted Fund Groups, presents comparisons of the

" legally adopted budget (more fully described in Note

1-G) with actual data on a budgetary basis.

Since accounting principles applied for purposes of
developing data on a budgetary basis differ significantly
‘from those used to present financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, a reconciliation (amounts expressed in
thousands) of resulting basis, perspective, entity and
timing: differences in the excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under) expenditures/expenses and other -
sources (uses) of financial resources for the year ended
June 30, 1996 is presentéd below: '

Primary Government

Spaciat Bond Debt Federal

Fi Service Trust

BUDGETARY FUND GROUPS

y

|FnanciaL sTaTement Funp TYpes General

Special Capital Debt

Service

|E.ulu (aeficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures snd other sources (uses) of
financial resources (budgetary DES).....c... e 48779 $
Adjustmants:
To adjust
and

, related

{210,104}

To adjust expenditures/expenses and
reiated liabilities.

- 438954

To adjust for lapss panod expenditures

which wers 1ot (9COred s Sabloes.... ... (19,154)

43232

(48,225}

7 24.155)

Revenue Projects

7789 § 221919 § 104,949 5§ 74402 15,322

80 528,971 41,945 12247 3,209

S @ eesmon  @3sey (2990 (106.706)

(318) 10917 2,781 {1) 108,593

) of

over (undasr)
axpenditures/expenses and other sources
(uses) of financial rosources N0

financial msources (GAAP basis) -

Yy classifications.

256,475

sifications & adH '
Ta iy axcess (defick ) of
. revenuss over (under) sxpenditures/
P and other (uses) of
M | into fnanck
satoments fund types.

R

(7.805)

To record excess (deficiancy) of revenues
over (under) expenditures/expensas and
other sources (uses) of fnancial resources

for nonbudgaind funds and sctounts_............ 3,186

(27.464)

2

7.849 114,001 125711 s3gse 20,498

454 349 (289 e @7 0498

124 63.994 3197

|Exeess (deficiancy) of revenues over (under)
axpandituresfexpanses and other scurces

{uses) of financial resources (GAAP basis)—....._. $

251,856 S

106,796 § 194673 § 36443 S
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Primary Gavarnment (Continuad) Componant Units
Siate
Revolving Trust
Non- . .
internal Expendable Expendable University
Service Enterprise Trust Trust Governmental Propristary & College
$ €1,063) § 12,302
15,104 (417,478)
(8.587) 410,843
(28) 9.504 )
5428 15,173
(388) (15.173) 3,414 % 48 S 39 $ 20,493 87 A 8,082
(360) 22,626 41,701 47 (775) 153.956 323,158
$ 4,678 § sme s $ 26,040 § - 41,749 § 36 $ 19,718 § 153,857 § 331,240
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3. RESTATEMENTS/

RECLASSIFICATIONS OF
FUND BALANCES:

The fund balance of the ESCO COP Debt Service Fund,
a primary govemment debt service fund, has been
restated to reflect unrecorded fiscal year 1995
transactions. These transactions relate to energy service
agreements into which various agencies entered that
_have been classified as certificates of participation.

The fund balance of the ESCO COP Capital Projects
Fund, a primary government capital projects fund, bas
been restated to reflect unrecorded fiscal year 1995
transactions. These transactions relate to energy service
agreements into which various agencies entered that
have been classified as certificates of participation.

The Affordable Housing Trust Fund has been
reclassified from a primary government special revenue
fund to a component upit governmental fund. This
reclassification reflects that the programs financed by
the fund are administered by the Illinois Housing
Development Authority, a component unit of the State.

The Quincy Veterans’ Home Benefits Fund has been
reclassified from - a special revenue fund to an
expendable trust fund to better reflect the nature of the
fund.

The July 1, 1995 fund balances (amounts expressed in
thousands) have been restated/reclassified as follows:

Primary Component
Government Units
Fund Types Discretsly Prasented
Spacial Debt Capital Expendable
Revenue Service Projects Trust Governmental
Fund Batance, June 30, 1995 .
a3 previously stated. $ 2317544 $ 444,198 $ 21276 § 1905791 § 29,184
Restaternents: '
To adjust for unecorded activily...............cere...... - (684) 884
Reciassifications:
To reciassify the fund balancs of the Ilinois .
Affordable Housing Trust Fund ... (78.187) 78,187
To raclassify the fund balance of the
. Quincy Vaterans' Home Benefits Fund.................... (363) 363 -
Furxd Balance, July 1, 1995 asrestated....coervovoeeeeee. $ 2238994 § MIIN4 5 22160 0§ 1,906,154 $ 107,371

DEPOSITS AND
INVESTMENTS:

The State Treasurer is the custodian of the State’s cash,
cash equivalents, and investments for most funds
maintained in the State Treasury. Funds maintained
outside the State Treasury (locally held funds) have
independent authority to manage their own cash and
investments. As described later, the funds of the State’s
retirement systems are invested separately.

’

Investment Policy -
General
Statutes authorize public agencies, including the State

of Illinois Primary Government and its Component
Units, to. engage in a wide variety of investment
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activities. These include bonds, notes, certiﬁcaies of

~ indebtedness, treasury bills or other securities

guaranteed by the United States; interest-bearing
savings accounts, certificates of deposit,
interest-bearing time deposits or any other investments
that constitute direct obligations of any bank; short-term
obligations of certain qualified United States
corporations; short-term discount obligations of the
Federal National Mortgage Association; shares or other

. securities legally issued by certain state or federal

savings and loan associations; insured dividend-bearing
share accounts and certain other accounts of chartered
credit ‘unions; certain money market mutual funds;
Public Treasurer’s Pool; and repurchase agreements that

meet certain instrument and transaction requirements.

or
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Statutes require that investments purchased must mature
or be redeemable prior to the date they will be needed to
pay expenditures.

The investments of the State’s five retirement systems
(classified as pension trust funds) are governed by the
State Pension Code. Authorized investments consist of
bonds, equities, real estate, venture capital and other
activities that are consistent with the “prudent person”
rule. The “prudent person” rule, as adopted by the
Illinois General Assembly in 1982, states that
fiduciaries must discharge their duties with the care,
skill, prudence and diligence which a prudent person
acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters
would use under conditions prevailing at the time.

In addition to statutory requirements, Primary

Government agencies and Component Units have.

adopted their own supplemental investment practices
which further regulate such activities.

Derivatives

Certain State agencies, principally Teachers Retirement
System (TRS) and State Universities Retirement System
(SURS), invest in derivative securities. A derivative
security is an investment whose payoff depends upon
the value of other assets such as commodity prices,
bond and stock prices or a market index. In general, a
derivative is used to modify exposure to undesirable
risks, to increase portfolio liquidity and flexibility, or to
enhance investment yields within the level of risk
defined in the agency’s investment guidelines.

Derivative transactions involve, to varying degrees,
credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the possibility
that a loss may occur because a party to a transaction
fails to perform according to terms. In order to
elimnipate credit risk, all derivative securities of TRS and
SURS are done through a clearinghouse which
guarantees delivery and accepts the risk of default by
either party. Market risk is the possibility that a change
in interest or currency rates will cause the value of a
financial instrument to decrease or become more costly
to seftle. The market risk associated with derivatives,
the prices of which are constantly fluctuating, is
regulated by TRS and SURS by imposing strict limits as
to the types, amounts and degree of risk that investment
managers may undertake. These limits are approved by
governing bodies and senior management, and the risk
positions of the investment managers are reviewed
periodically to monitor compliance with limits.

TRS and SURS invest in the following types of
derivatives: foreign currency forward contracts,

collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO’S), financial
futures, and financial options.

Foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge
against the currency risk in agencies’ foreign stock and
fixed income security portfolios. Foreign currency
forward contracts are an agreement to buy or sell a
specific amount of a foreign currency at a specified
delivery or maturity date -for an agreed upon price.
Fluctuations in the market value of foreign currency
forward contracts are not recognized until the maturity
or the settlement date of the contract. Foreign currency
forward contracts represent an off-balance sheet
obligation because there are no balance sheet assets or
liabilities associated with those contracts. As of June
30, 1996, SURS foreign currency forward contracts
purchased were fully off-set by foreign currency
forward contract sold, resulting in a net book value of
$0. As of June 30, 1996, the net unrealized gain on
foreign currency forward contracts totaled $5,597
(expressed in thousands). As of June 30, 1996, TRS
had a net unrealized gain on the foreign currency
forward contracts totaling $17,068 (expressed in -
thousands).

Financial futures are an agreement to buy or sell a
specific amount of an asset at a specified delivery or

- maturity date for an agreed-upon price. As the market
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value of the futures contract varies from the original
contract price, a gain or loss is recognized and paid to
the clearinghouse. Financial futures represent an off-
balance sheet obligation because there are no balance
sheet assets or liabilities associated with those contracts.
The cash or securities to fulfill these obligations are
held in the investment portfolio.

Financial options are an agreement that gives one party
the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell a specific
amount of an asset for a specified price, called the strike
price, on or before a specified expiration date. As
writers of financial options, TRS and SURS receive a
premium at the outset of the agreement and bear the risk
of an unfavorable change in the price of the financial
instrument underlying the option. Premiums received
are recorded as a liability when the financial option is
written, and gains or losses are recognized at the time
the options are exercised or when they expire. As
purchasers of financial options, TRS and SURS pay a
premium at the outset of the agreement and the
counterparty bears the risk of an unfavorable change in
the price of the financial instrument underlying the
option. Premiums paid are recorded as an asset when
the financial option is purchased and gains or losses are
recognized when the options are exercised by the
agency or they expire.
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Contractual Principal Outstanding*
{expressed in thousands)
Teachers Universities
Retirement Retirement
Type of Derivative Contract System System
Domestic Interest Rate Products ' :
Fixed income futures purchased feternnserseanneranes $ 1,745,698 $ 331,600
Fixed income futures sold 3 : 8,700
*Fixed income witten put options 1,138,682 71,750
Fixed income purchased put options. . 1,000
Fixed income written call options, 61,939 o
Intemnational Interest Rate Products .
Intemnational fixed income futures purchased....................... 4,105 500,000
Intetnational fixed income bond call Options........vceveveeeiiens 3,302
Intemnational fixed income written put options..........ccceveuen... ‘ 1,237,000
Eurodollar purchased put options 1,237,000
Domestic Equity Products
S&P 500 index futures purchased 696,766
. Wiritten S&P 500 index call options 100,302
Written S&P 500 index put options. 38,916
Stock written cal! options. 15,214
Stock written put options 983
Intemnational Equity Products
Index futures purchased..... 128,057 74,755
Index international equity written call options.........cc.ceveeernnee 815
Index intemational equity written put options........................ 1,098
Foreign Currency Products
Currency futures 45,358
Written call options. 78,896
Written put options 102,384
*The contractual principal amounts listed above represent the market value of the underlying assets the
derivative contracts control. Contractual principal values do not represent actual balance sheet values.

As of June 30, 1996, SURS book and market values
(expressed in thousands) of option contracts written
were ($1,907) and ($3,397), respectively. As of June
30, 1996, TRS book and market values (expressed in
thousands) of option contracts written were ($11,330)
and .($7,071), respectively. The book value of option
contracts written represents the premiums received, and
the market value. represents the amount to be paid to
close all positions as of that date. '

As of June 30, 1996, SURS book and market value
(expressed in thousands) of option contracts purchased
were $47 and $31, respectively. The book value of
option contracts purchased represents the premiums
paid, and the market valué represents the amount to be
received to close all positions as of that date.

The above table represents the derivative positions held
by TRS and SURS at June 30, 1996 in financial futures
and financial options. Additional information
concerning the derivative investments of TRS and

SURS can be obtained from their separately issued
annual reports. .

‘Contractual principal amounts are often used to express

the volume of these transactions but do not reflect the
extent to which positions may offset one another. These
amounts do not represent the much smaller amounts
potentially subject to risk. ‘

Deposits
Primary Government

On June 30, 1996, the carrying amount of the State’s
Primary Government cash deposits (amounts expressed
in thousands) was $1,144,963 and the bank balance was
$1,716,844.  Of the bank balance, $1,580,994 was
covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral
held by the State or the State’s agent in the State’s
name, $2,008 was covered by collateral held in the
pledging bank’s trust department or by its agent in the
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State’s name, and $133,842 was uninsured and

uncollateralized.
Component Units

On Jupe 30, 1996, the carrying amount of the State’s
Component Units cash deposits (amounts expressed in
thousands) was $252,498, and the bank balance was
$243,087. Of the bank balance, $138,081 was covered
by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by
the State or the State’s agent in the State’s name,
371,905 was covered by collateral held in the pledging
bank’s trust department or by its agent in the State’s
name, and $33,101 was uninsured and uncollateralized.
At June 30, 1996, the State Treasurer held $413 of the
component unit agencies bank balances.

By statute, public monies deposited in financial
institutions must either be collateralized; insured by an
agency of the federal government; or not exceed 75% of
the capital stock and surplus, 75% of the net worth, or
50% of the unimpaired capital and surplus of a financial
institution,

Iinvestments

Investments (amounts expressed in thousands), are
categorized below to give an indication of the level of
custodial credit risk assumed by the State at June 30,
1996. Category 1 includes investments that are insured
or registered or for which the securities are beld by the
State or its agent in the State’s name. Category 2
includes uninsured and unregistered investments for
which the securities are held by the counterparty trust
department or agent in the State’s name. Category 3,
inciudes uninsured and unregistered investments for
which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by
a trust department or agent but not in the State’s name.
All of the amounts shown below in category 3, pertain
to the enterprise fund type.

The master repurchase agreements utilized by the
Treasurer require the broker or financial institution to
maintain the market value of collateral securities at
102% of the agreement. The carrying amount, accrued
interest, was approximately $1,376,840 and the market
value of the.collateral securities to be resold based or
commitments under the repurchase agreements was
approximately $1,404,810 as of June 30, 1996.

Primary Government
Category ' Carrying Market
1 2 3 Amount Value
Repurchase agreements $ 2,874,372 $§ 2874372% 2,874,372
U.S. Treasury and Agency obllgahons .................. 6,054,720 $ 4263 6,058,983 7,351,373
Commercial paper....... 1277201 $ 2,944 1,280,145 1,280,185
Corporate debt securities.............oo..oeevereenecvnennce 4,583,578 ' 4,583,578 4,640,149
Corporate equity securities. 8,673,225 8,673,225 10,718,199
$ 23,463,096 % 29448 4,263 23,470,303 26,864,278
investment contracts 487,104 520,183
Tangible property. 2,754,910 2,585,910
Investments in mutual funds 7,992,803 10,028,094
’ $ 34705120 % 39,998,465
Component Units
Category Carrying Market
) 1 2 3 Amount Value
Repurchase agreements $ 276,835 ¢ 12,829 § 289,664 $ 289,664
U.S. Treasury and Agency obligations.................. $ 723,436 46,944 20,011 790,391 766,279
Commarcial paper. 111 10,643 10,754 10,781
Corporate debt securities 132,280 7.978 17,543 157,801 . 156,622
Corporate equity securities 48,753 848 24,059 73,660 87,044
] 904,580 § 332,605 § 85,085 1,322,270 1,310,390
Investment contracts. 468,675 468,675
Tangible property. 11,924 28,195
Investments in mutual funds...........oc.oemeeecrcnenene. 465,343 514,892
$ 2,268,212 § 2,322,152

Of the amounts shown above in category 3, the university funds cbnstinités 83%.
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Reconciliation to Balahce Sheet

The balance sheet account cash and cash equivalents
contains. certain short-term investments (included as
investments above) to reflect their liquidity. In

addition, the disclosures related to deposits and
investments above include certain items that the balance
sheet shows as restricted assets or other assets. A
reconciliation is provided below.

Deposits . Investments

Amount Per Note:,

1 Primary Govermment $ 1,144,963 $ 34,705,120
Component Units 252,498 2,268,212
Cash Equivalents 6,829,703 (6,829,703)
Restricted Assets....... .o eseeeeec e rnees (107,086) (377,483)
Other ASSetS.......cceveeecieeieeriee e censesenennesssasnsnres ©1)

Amount Per Balance Sheet . '
Total (Memorandum Only) Reporting Entity..................... $ 8,119,987 $ 29,766,145

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 28

In May 1995, the GASB issued Statement 28,
“Accounting -and Financial Reporting for Securities
Lending Transactions.”  The Statement provides
guidance on the appropriate accounting for securities
lending transactions. The Statement requires cash
received as collateral on securities lending transactions
to be reported as an asset on the Balance Sheet along
with any liabilities resulting from the related
transactions. ~  Securities lending transactions
collateralized by letters of credit are not reported as
assets or liabilities in the financial statements. The
Statement also requires additional disclosures relating to
these transactions. The State is required to adopt GASB
Statement No. 28 for the fiscal year ending June 30,

1997. TRS, reported as a pension trust fund, elected to

early implement this statement.  Therefore, the
mvestments and depository and other liabilities
reflected on the Combined Balance Sheet for the
fiduciary fund type include $1,517,642 (expressed in
thousands) related to collateral received from securities
lending transactions. The- interest and other investment
income reflected on the Combined Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained
Earnings/Fund Balances includes gross security lending
income of $50,378 (expressed in thousands) and
securities lending  interest . expemse of $47.448
(expressed in thousands).

5. TAXES RECEIVABLE:

Taxes receivable (amounts expressed in thousands) at

June 30, 1996 consmted of the following:

Fund Types Total
Special Expendable (Memorandum
" General Revenue Trust Agency Only)
Income taxes. [ 641,056 § 79,142 S 1,864 § 722,062
| Sales taxes. 584,445 265,934 58,883 909,262
Motor fuel taxes. 191,243 - 559 191,802
Public utiity taxes. 25,037 70,186 95,223
Unemployment .
COMPENSALON LAXBS.... ..o eeeeenceearccananne : £ 244,382 244,382
Other taxes 243,914 15,408 5,598 264,920
1,494,452 621,913 244,382 66,904 2,427,651
Less: Allowance for
uncoliectible taxes 767.149 290,571 . 1,057,720
Taxes Receivable, net. oo, $ 727,303 $ 331,342 § 244,382 § 66,904 $ 1,369,931
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6. DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS:

The following balances (amounts expressed in  balances among all funds and componentumts
thousands) at Jume 30, 1996 represent due from/to

Dus From Due To
Other Component Primary Other Component Primary
Fund Type/Fund Funds Units Government Funds Units Government
Primary Government
General $ 205879 § 27623 $ 300111 § 151,153
State Construction A 47515 4
Local Govemment Distributive 80,211 625
Pubkic Transportation. 34221
Motor Fuei Tax 21,727 73,396
Roed 42925 7% ‘ 33,721 5850
Grade Crossing Protection 1500
Unempioyment Compensation Special _
Administration 3935 12,000
Title IIl Social Security and Employment
Services " 42408 2743 5
Personal Property Tax Replacement............cco..comereer 78,834
State and Local Sales Tax RefOM......vewseereee 29356
County and Mass Transit Distfict ... oeeeereeceeore 17633
Build Rinos. ‘ 9450 -
Drivers Education. : 1816 s
Special Purposes Trust "7 es0s 1,497
State Gaming 26,471
Child Support Enforcement Trust........c...-v..coorcvorrre. ' 2,875 22
Other . 35475 871 24,571 13,036
~257.788 950 303,731 18,922
Debt Service, ) 884
ESCO COP c:apnd Projects.... vt 8632
Other. : 719 42
’ T — sgaz 719 2
Enterprise: . :
State Lottary , . 16,108 ‘ : 1,501
Other. 243 .. 3454
, T T M5
Intemal Service: -
COMMUNICAHONS REVOVING.c.oouesmessssassisisie s 17.800 2954 s 5
Statistical Services Revolvi 16,124 ) 379
State Garage Revolving 6,196 15 442 1
Health insurance Reserve. 100.426 2267 884 '
WOXKNG COpital ROVOIING....vsrssmsrsesmessasassssssesresen 3588 7 %24
Other. 486 7 384
' 144720 5373 3348 7
Trust and Agency:
Expendable Trust -
Unempiloyment Compensation Trust _.........cccccceeree.. 2,588 ™ 3.945
Other. 185 104 58
2753 79 4,049 58
Pension Trust -
State Employee’s Retirement System.......w..ccomeuen-.. 11,605 83
State Universities Ret System. 8 245
Other. 968 %
12,601 2,945 = 185
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Note 6 (continued)
Due From Due To
: Other Component Primary Other Component Primary
Fund Type/Fund . ‘ : Funds Units Govemnment Funds Units Government
Agency ' $ 203% $ 108 $ 83230
Total Trust and Agency. 35,690 3,132 87454 § 58
Total (Memorandumn Onty)
Primary Government 700,428 45,810 700,428 171,066
Component Units ' :
Governmental $ 91 3 5 s 7§1 $ 4
Proprietary:
Housing Development Authority 15,178 14,518 1
Toli Highway Authority. ‘ 4,418 841
Other. 4511 2 4,509 10
University and College: ;
Chicago Stato University.... 2,347 413 - 2370 21
Easten lflinois University ‘ 12 4,709 ‘ 4,097
Westemn Binois University 2,695 14 _ 250
Northern lincis Universit 1,247 2,849 1,933 122
Southem ilincis University 6,400 7111 6,108 . 6,101
University of llinois 11,296 145,843 10,875 ' 33,649
Other. 33 2,968 336 " 453
Total Component Unit TTAAT 171,066 4,415 T 45610 ]
Total (Memorandum Only} - Reporting Entity. $ AL § 45810 § 171,066 § 74,043 $ 174,066 § 45,610 |

7. LOANS AND NOTES

RECEIVABLE: _ ] .
Loans and notes receivable (amounts expressed in  thousands) at June 30, 1996 consisted of the following:
Fund Types Total
(Mamorancum
Only)
Special Debt Primary Componant
General Revenge Service  Enterprise Government Units
133 $ -242% 1580940
1,085 $ 700473 717,550 103,311
17,043 69,013 298
15,628
358788 25500 63,776 1,832
54,149 25,500 70473 . B9 1686381
6247 2,525 35600 ‘32844
479125 255005 TOGMBS 0695 16835%

" In the accompanying financial statements, the General
and Special Revenue fund types reflect loans and notes
receivable of $98.2 million. Fund balances in the
amount of $87.9 million have been reserved to indicate
their long-term nature and that they are not available to
meet current appropriation or expenditure needs.

A portion of the General Fund’s business loan programs
(8342 million) represents various fimds’ pooled

Hotel Loans - Effective January 12, 1987, two of -
the General Fund program’s outstanding mortgage
loans aggregating $28.9 million were restructured.

" One of these loans with an original balance of

resources that the State has invested in a pilot mortgage

program.
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$15.5 million was restructured again effective
January 1, 1990. The remaining loan totalling
$13.4 million in original value was restructured
effective January 1, 1991. Through June 30, 1996,
the Treasurer recorded a provision for the write-
down of $17.1 million for these two properties
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based on independent valuations. These two loans
have been classified as nonperforming assets.

Commercial Loans - During fiscal year 1989, two
of the remaining business loans outstanding, with
balances aggregating $6.0 million, were
restructured. During fiscal years 1993 and 1994,
the Treasurer recorded write-down - provisions
totalling $1.9 million (i.e. $1.7 million and $150
thousand, respectively). On August 24, 1994 one
of these loans, with an original loan balance of $3.3
million was declared in default, and as such, has
been classified as a nonperforming asset. On
October 28, 1994, the other business loan was
restructured. :

In 1995, the Treasurer authorized the Trustee to
sell the mortgage notes. However, the Attorney
General opined that both his and the Governor’s
consent were required, which was not provided.
Affiliates of the owners of the hotel loans filed a
lawsuit against the Trustee and the Treasurer
seeking specific performance of the buy-sell
agreement on the agreed to terms. This lawsuit is
still pending and the ultimate outcome of this
proceeding is not presently determinable.

The write-down of the above Hotel and Commercial

loans is not considered forgiveness of the obligations
and collection efforts will continue for the entire loan
balance, including  principal and  ioterest.

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT: ’
Property, plant and equipment (amounts expressed in  thousands) at June 30, 1996 consisted of the following:
Fund Types
General Total
Fixed {Memorandum
Assets Non-  Only)
Account internal Expendable Pension Primary Component
Group = Enterprise  Service Trust Trust Government Units
Land and land improvements....... $ 566,307 $ 335 § 104 $ 1,850 § 568,596 § 2,761,178
Buildings and building - : -
improvements............c.cceeccennnn 2,671,526 16,691 13,714 2,701,931 2,881,334
Equipment 1,270,154 ¢ 11,636 175,948 19,100 1,476,838 1,946,979
Construction in progress.............. 80,227 80,227 322,611
4,588,214 11,636 192,974 104 - 34,664 4,827,592 7,912,102
Less: Accumulated
depraciation............c...coeerereeaeeen ' 7,208 153,932 12,559 173,699 1,001,044
$ 4,588,214 § 4,428 $ 39,042 § - 104 § 22,105 § 4,653,893 §$ 6,911,058
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Changes in general fixed assets (amounts expressed in  presented below:
thousands) for the year ended June 30, 1996 are

Builings and building

Land and land improverhents .......

improvements................cccccccoueenn.
Equipment...........coovvrrrreercerneen.
Construction in progress...............

Balance Deletions/ Balance
July 1, . Net June 30,
1985 Additions Transfers 1996
$.. 58707 $ 107798 3179 $ 586307
..... 2559,113 27,509 (84904) 2671526
..... 1177717 139,987 47550 1,270,154
..... 72384 . 189723 181,880 80,227
4367921 $ 67998 § 147,705 § 4588214

Construction in progress (amounts expressed in  units as of June 30, 1996 is composed of the followmg
thousands) for general fixed assets, and component '

Project

General Fixed Assets Account Group -

TAMMS Super Maximum Facility.........ccccoceeeeveerevennas

Forensic Unit, Eigin MHC

Adutt Psychiatric Ctr - Elgin MHC

Forensic Unit, Alton MHC

Other.
Total

Component Units - S
State Toll Highway improvements.............ccc.ccveiern.
Chemical Life Sciences Laboratory - U of I...............
Ambulatory Care Facility - Uofi..........ceeee.e..
Science Building - ISU

Steam Plant Addition/Remodeling - SIUC.................
Faraday Hall Addition - NIU

Total....

Projects less than $10,000
Total

Faraday Engineering Building - NlU.......................... o

Engineering & Tedmology Building - SIU.....cccrunneus - '

_-Expondod
Project . through . Available
Authorization June 30,1996 Committed  Authorization
$ 50,791 § 19917 $ 30554 § 320
28,025 6,127 19,070 2,828
15,631 5,652 9,005 974
14,624 12,668 1,625 331
" 310,208 35,863 89,089 185,256
$ 419,279 § 80,227 § 149,343 § 189,709
$ 261,260 § 136;551 $ 124709 § -
. 58,760 55,032 -= 3,728
55,000 1,994 2,059 50,947
29,400 20,719 8,681 - L -
28,138 25234 712 2,192
27,786 25,074 2,072 640
$ 460,344 264604 § 138,233 § 57,507
: 58,007
$ 322,611
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9. NOTES PAYABLE:

The State agencies listed below generally issue
short-term notes, normally secured by specific revenue
sources, to provide temporary financing. Outstanding

notes payable (amounts expressed in thousands) at June
30, 1996 were as follows: '

Amount Interest Annual
Fund Type/Agency Outstanding Rates Maturity To
Primary Government -
Enterprise:
lliinois Student Assistance Commission.........ccccoceeeeenennn. $ 95,954 See Below Demand
Component Unit -
Proprietary: ; | . :
Southwestern IL Development Authority..............ccccceeerenee 700 0% to 6% 2008
Universities and Colleges:
Northem lllinois University . 2,656 5% to 9% 2002
‘Northeastern [liinois University............ccoe..oecueeeeceseeunecmneees 370 6% 2020
Southern lliinois University 1,803 3% to 7% 2009.
University of HliN0is.........ccecceenicerecrrcaerinensn. - 2,705 6% to 9% 2000
7,534
Total Component Unit 8,234
Total (Memorandum Only) Reporting Entity  ......cce.eu. $ 104,188

Hllinois Student Assistance
Commission (Commission) -

The Commission is authorized to issue Student Loan
Revenue Notes. The ‘notes -and related interest are
payable solely from the revenues and other resources of
the Commission. On June 30, 1996, the Commission
had $96 million of notes outstanding due 2005 or upon
demand. The interest rate is 69.875% of the weekly
91-day U.S. Treasury bill rate, with a minimum interest
rate of 3.38% and a maximum interest rate of 11.725%.

Southwestern lllinois Development
Authority (SWIDA) -

The SWIDA has obtained notes payable from the
Danforth Foundation and the Pulitzer Publishing
Company in the amounts of $500 thousand and $100
thousand, respectively. These notes have interest rates
ranging from 5.5% to 6% and mature on December 31,
1996. The proceeds from these notes are to be used to
purchase and perform the necessary development
requirements imposed by the National Park Service and
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the Department of Interior on the real property that the
SWIDA will donate to the National Park Service of the
Department of Interior. This property is to be used by
the National Park Service in extending the Jefferson
National Expansion Memorial Historic Site to the East
St. Louis Riverfront In addition, the SWIDA has
obtained a note payable from the Department of
Commerce and Community Affairs in the amount of
$100 thousand, the proceeds of which were used for
start-up costs. This note is non-interest bearing and
matures on July 1, 2008. As of June 30, 1996, the total
amount of notes payable outstanding was $700
thousand.

Universities and Colleges -

Universities and colleges have issued notes payable
aggregating $7.5 million at June 30, 1996. The notes
are generally secured through revenues (i.e., lease
payment agreements) derived from the operations of the
projects constructed, although portions of the notes
outstanding are unsecured.
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10. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS:

The State of Illinois sponsors five defined benefit public
employee retirement systems (“PERS”) which are
included in the State’s financial statements as pension
trust funds.

Plan Descriptions -

® State Employees’ Retirement System (“SERS”) is
the administrator of a single-employer PERS
established in 1944 and governed by Article 14 of
the Illinois Pepsion Code. SERS provides coverage
to most State employees who are not eligible for
another State sponsored plan. Employees who retire
at or after age 60 with 8 years of credited service
(or at age 55 with at least 30 years of credited
service with reduced benefits) are entitled to an
annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life,
in an amount based upon final average
compensation and credited service. Employees with
35 years of credited service may retire at any age
with full benefits.

Teachers’ Retirement System (“TRS™) is the
administrator of a cost-sharing, multiple-employer
PERS established in 1939 and govemed by Article
16 of the Illinois Pension Code. TRS provides
coverage to teachers employed by public school
districts in Illinois (excluding Chicago). The State
of Illinois is legally mandated to make
contributions by appropriations to the TRS, even
though most covered employees are not State
employees. Members may draw a retirement
annuity at age 62 after 5 years of service; at age 60
after 10 years; and at age 55 after 20 years (with a
reduction in the annuity of ¥%2% for each month the
member is under age 60 if less than 35 years of
service). '

State Universities Retirement System (“SURS™) is
the administrator of a  cost-sharing, muitiple-
employer PERS established in 1941 and governed
by Article 15 of the Illinois Pension Code. SURS
provides coverage to faculty and staff of State
universities, community colleges and related
agencies. The State of Ilinois is legally mandated
to make contributions by appropriations to SURS,
even though some covered employees are not State
employees. Members are eligible for normal
retirement at age 62 with 5 years .of covered

service, age 55 with 8 years of covered service, or
at any age with 35 years of covered service. Police
and fire fighters are eligible for normal retirement
age 55 with 20 years of service, or at age 50 with
25 years of service.

Judges’ Retirement System (“JRS™) is. a
single-employer PERS established in 1941 and
governed by Article 18 of the Illinois Pension
Code. - The System covers judges and associate
judges of the Illinois courts. Participants -have
vested rights to full retirement benefits beginning at
age 60 with 10 years of service credit, or reduced
retirement benefits beginning at age S5.
Participants also have vested rights to benefits at
age 62 upon attaining 6 years of credited service or
at age 55 upon completing 28 years of credited
service.

General Assembly Retirement System (“GARS”) is
a single-employer PERS established in 1947 and
governed by Article 2 of the Illinois Pension Code.
GARS provides coverage to members of the
General Assembly and certain elected State
Officials. - Participants have wvested rights to
retirement benefits beginning at age 62 with 4 years
of service credit or at age 55 with 8 years of service
“credit.

Participation in the SERS, TRS and SURS plans by
respective eligible employees is generally required.
JRS participation is mandatory unless an election not to
participate is filed within 30 days of the option
Participation in the GARS is optional.

Although specific benefits of the above PERS vary by
plan, they include periodic annuity payments with
automatic annuity increases after retirement, survivors
benefits, and under specified conditions, lump sum
death benefits. In some plans, group health insurance
and disability benefits are provided. Participants who
terminate service may receive, upon application, a
refund of their total contribution. The State has not
expressed any intention to discontinue its contributions

"and close the plans’ enrollment. However, it would be

able to do so, subject to the constitutionally vested
rights of plan participants, by appropriately amending
State law. Table I summarizes information by plan

"(dollar amounts only expressed in thousands) at June
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Table | ' _
SERS TRS SURS JRS GARS Total
Employee Groups
Retirees and heneficiaries
currently receiving benefits............ 39,232 59,664 25,091 719 353 125,058
Terminated employees
entitied to benefits but not
yet receiving them......................... 3,138 37,072 34,446 35 108 74,799
Active employees:
Vested 50,655 132,545 42,324 576 106 226,206
Nonvested 28,557 33,764 290 75 62,686
Total active employees 79,212 132,545 76,088 866 181 288,892
Total pasticipants 121,582 229,281 135,625 1,620 642 488,750
Employer
Covered payroll.............cceeerreeecunees $ 2871501 § 4734000 $§ 2330038 $ 75996 $ 8825 $ 10,020,380
Total payrofl $ 3058481 § 5789,000 § 2626525 $ 91343 § 10620 $ 11,575,969
Funding Status and Progress

The amounts shown in Table II as the pension benefit
obligation (“PBO”) are standard disclosure measures of
the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the
effects of projected salary increases and step-rate
benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a result
of employee service to date. The standard measure is

intended -to help users assess the funding status of the _

systems on a going concern basis, assess progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when

projected benefits and is independent of the funding
method used to determine contributions to the systems.

The pension benefit obligations were computed as part
of the actuarial valuations performed as of June 30,
1996. Significant actuarial assuwmptions used in the
valuations include (a) rates of return on investment of
present and future assets of 8% per year, (b)
postemployment benefit increases of 3% per year and (c)

due, and make comparisons among employers. The projected salary increases as follows:
measure is the actuarial present value of credited '
] SERS TRS SURS JRS GARS
Salary increase due to inflafion........_............... 4.5% 4.0% 4.5% 4.5% 4.5%
Salary increase due to seniority/merit................. * 3.4% " 2.5% 1.0% 1.5%
Total salary increase aséumption.. ............ 5.0%-9.2% 7.4% 7.0% **6.0% **6.5%

* Varies with age, increasing in increments (1/2% every
five years) from .5% at age 65 to 4.7% at age 20.
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** Includes a .5% “general” salary increase assumption
in addition to inﬂation'and seniority/merit.
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During fiscal year 1996 there were no changes in
benefit provisions or actuarial assumptions which
affected the pension benefit obligation of the retirement
systems. The total unfunded pension benefit obligation
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and related information (amounts expressed in
thousands) applicable to each retirement system at June
30, 1996 is disclosed in Table II below.

TABLEN
SERS ™S SURS JRS - GARS Total

Pension Benefit Qbixgation For;

currently receiving berefits

and terinated enrployees _

not yet receiving benefits..........cocooveeevsiceinann $§ 3457051 $ 13838067 $§ 4169106 § J5I1V $ 95488 $ 21.884.9)1
Current ermployees -
-1 Acamvulated enmployee

cortributions inciuding allocaed ‘ ‘

investment eamings 1,856,443 3,002,052 2676703 71,463 78R 7.6143:'

Employerfinanced vested...........cocoevsmemennees 1,875,980 3,890,372 3097.776 104,447 13738 8.%.31

Employer-financed non-vested..................... 197418 541133 211,454 76,690 10537 5,907,402
Total Pension Benefit Oi_:ligation ..................... 7,380,892 2,141,794 10,155,039 577 - 1273865 ‘ 44,30 820
Inetassets avaabie for | |

benefits, at cost.... 4,356,969 13,829,711 5,082,801 232433 42625 23,584,629
Unfunded Pencion Benefit

Obligation $ 29098 $ 12312083 § 507248 § 34530 $ - 84740 § 20808253} -
| Not assets avallable for benofits,

at market value $ 5173680 $ 15091720 § 691816 $ 277099 $ 51405 $ 27558720

Contributions Required and Contributions Made

The systems’ funding requirements have been
established by statute (Public Act 88-593, effective. July
1, 1995) and provides for a systematic 50 year funding
plan with an ultimate goal to achieve “90% funding” of
the systems’ liabilities. In addition, the new funding
plan provides for a 15 year phase-in period to allow the
© State to adapt to the increased financial commitment.
Once the 15 year phase-in period is complete, the
State’s contribution will then remain at a level
percentage of payroll for the next 35 years until the
90% funded level is achieved. ‘

- Prior to the new legislation, Public Act 86-273,
effective August 23, 1989, required that, starting with
fiscal year 1990, the employer contributions made by
the State shall be increased incrementally over a seven
year period so that by fiscal year 1996 the minimum
State employer contribution shall be an amount that is
sufficient to meet the normal cost and amortize the
unfunded actuarial liability over forty years as a level
percent of payroll as determined under the projected

unit credit actuarial cost method. The State
contribution, as a percentage of the applicable employee
payroll, shall be increased in equal annual increments
over the seven year period until the funding requirement
specified above is met. Generally, the State did not
meet its required contributions under this Act.

'Employee contributions are based on fixed percentages
ranging from 4% to 11.5% applied to an employee’s
annual compensation, supplemented by contributions
provided by the State. The State’s actual funding of the
retirement systems is governed by appropriation law
and the State bas met its funding requirement
established by statutory law for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1996. The current statutory law includes a
“continuing appropriation” which means that the State
must automatically provide funding to the pension
systems -based on actuarial cost requirements and
amortization of the unfunded liability without being
subject to the General Assembly’s appropriation
process. The statutory funding requirement and the
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actual amounts funded (expressed in thousands) by
retirement system for fiscal year 1996 are presented in
Table III below. Neither the new legislation nor Public

Act 86-0273 funding plans conform with official -

accounting pronouncements, particularly APB 8. The
requirements of both Public Acts are significantly
different than the APB 8 funding requirements shown in
Table V.

TABLElN
SERS TRS - SURS JRS GARS
Statutory funding requirerrent _

(Public Act 88-593)..........cccoceuuene. $..146260 $ IB/HI8 $ 1B9M1 § 12129 § 2400
Contributions made by the State of liiinois............ 146,38 330,074 123911 12129 2400
1996 Statutory (Excess) $ 3® $§ (148 $ -—- $ — $ -

——————— === =y

All retirement systems use the projected unit credit
actuarial cost method There were no current year

changes in the method used to calculate or establish

retirement costs. Table IV summarizes contribution
information by plan (amounts expressed in thousands)
for the year ended June 30, 1996,

TABLEIV
By employees....... $..137220 § 399084 § 197005 § 9785 § 114
% of current year covered payroll............ 4.8% 84% 85% 129% 12.%
|By employers...........cveeereereeeceerns $..146308 § 382 $ M7TBE § 12123 § 2400
% of covered payroil: 1996 5.1% 82% 63% 16.0% 2T2%,
: - 1985 50% 135% 57% 14.8% 2.3%
1994 4.9% 11.0% 6.2% 152% 246%

Net funding deficits are the amount by which retirement
costs calculated in accordance with APB 8 exceed
contributions made by the State. These amounts,
aggregating $1,580.6 million for the year ended June
30, 1996, are reflected in the General Long-Term

Obligations Account Grouprand Changes in Long-Term
Obligations (see Note-15). Table V presents the 1996
net funding deficits (amounts expressed in thousands)

by pension plan.

TABLEV

JRS TOTAL

19965 retireert cosis
(calculated in accordance
with APB 8)

Contributions made by employers

$ T2 § 2778207
2400 697,657

§ 1307230 § 50105 § I/

1996 net funding deficits included
in the accompanying financial
statements as accrued
rotirement costs.

389,362 147,368 12129

——— ————— — ————
s e —— e ————— i

TRS and SURS are the State’s two cost-sharing,
multiple employer PERS. As referred to above under
plan descriptions, most covered employees of the TRS
are not State employees.  Also, some covered
employees of the SURS are pot State employees. The

actuarial required contribution by the State expressed
as a percentage of the actuarial required contribution for
all empioyers for the TRS and SURS approximated
96% for both of those systems for fiscal year 1996.
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Trend Information

Trend information gives an indication of the progress
made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due. Required 10-year trend information is
presented in each of the retirement systems’ annual

reports. Table VI presents the required three-year trend
information except for employer contributions
expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll
which is presented in Table IV of this note.

TABLE Vi

Net a#sets available for
benefits (at cost) expressed
as a % of the pension benefit

obligation (percentage funded): 1996
‘ 1985
1994
Unfunded pension benefit
obligation expressed as a %
of annual covered payroli: 1996
1995

1984

| Poétemployment Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, the State
Employees Group Insurance Act requires that the State
pay the cost of basic noncontributory health and dental,
and life insurance benefits to annuitants who are former
State employees. This includes annuitants of all of the
State’s retirement systems, excluding the Teachers’
Retirement System.

Legislation transferring the administration of the TRS
health insurance program to the Ilinois Department of
Central Management Services (“CMS”) took effect
January 1, 1996. It established a funding mechanism
consisting of a one-half of 1 percent contribution from
active teachers and matching appropriations from the
State to pay the subsidy portion of participating
annuitants during fiscal year 1996. Persons enrolling in
TRS managed ‘care or residing in areas with no
managed care receive a 75% premium subsidy. All
others receive a 50% subsidy. At June 30, 1996, 31,356
TRS annuitants were enmrolled in the health plan,
receiving $43.4 million in direct cash subsidies. TRS
will continue to be responsible for program enrollment
and eligibility determination. CMS will be responsible

SERS IRS SURS JRS GARS
59% 53% 50% 40% 33%
56% 1 53%- 50% 41% 34%
57% 55% - 52% 43% 37%

104%  260%  218%  454%  960%

111%  257% - 210%  411% 897%

106%  221% 193%  382% 812%
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for providing information and consultation to plan
participants. Substantially all of the State’s employees
may become eligible for postémployment benefits if
they eventually become an annuitant. Health and dental
benefits include basic benefits for annuitants under the
State’s self-insurance plan and insurance contracts
currently in force. Life insurance benefits are limited to
five thousand dollars per annuitant age 60 and older.

For fiscal year 1996, the State did not segregate
payments made to annuitants from those made to
current employees for health and dental, and life
insurance benefits. ~The total cost of all members
including postemployment health and dental, and life
insurance benefits is recognized as an expenditure in the
accompanying financial statements as claims  are
reported and are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.
For fiscal ‘year 1996, the cost of providing
postemployment health and dental, and life insurance
benefits for approximately 64,000 annuitants was
estimated to be $104 million and $11.8 million,

respectively.
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11. | GENERAL OBLIGATION
- BONDS:

General obligation bonds have been authorized and
issued primarily to provide funds for acquisition and
construction of capital facilities for higher education,
public and mental health, correction and conservation
puwrposes and for maintenance and construction of
highway and waterway facilities. Bonds also have been
issued to provide assistance to mumicipalities for
construction of sewage treatment facilities, port
districts, aquarium facilities, local schools, mass
transportation and aviation purposes, and to fund
research and development of coal as an energy source.
In addition, bonds have been authorized to refund any
general obligation bonds outstanding.

The State Constitution provides that the State may issue

general obligation bonds for specific purposes in such
amounts as provided either by the General Assembly
with a three-fifths vote of each house or by a majority
of voters in a general election. The enabling acts
pursuant to which the bonds are issued provide that all

bonds issued thereunder shall be direct obligations of
the State of Illinois and pledge the full faith and credit
of the State. General obligation bonds are redeemed
over a period not to exceed 30 years, from available
resources in the debi service funds. However, the State
of Illinois has generally issued 25 year serial bonds with
equal amounts of principal maturing each year except
for capital appreciation and refimding bonds which -
mature in varying amounts. Additionally, Illinois
offerings, with the exception of anti-pollution bonds,
generally have call provisions providing for early
redemption at the option of the State, beginning 10
years following the date of issuance, in whole or in part,
in such order as the State shall determine and at a
redemption price not to exceed 102% of par value.

General obligation bonds outstanding and bonds
authorized but - unissued (amounts expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1996 were as follows:

Outstanding Authorized

Pupose - - interest Rates Amount but Unissued
Capital development............................ 325%t0115% . $ - 1972479 $ 554,041
Transportation... 3. 50%10 11.5% 1,810,053 237,627
Anti-Pollution...............coooeeeerereeveenes 3.50% 10 120% 325370 4928
School construction 3.50%1t0 11.5% R 642 - 59,225
Coal development............ccovvervrereerrrnens 355%1t0 11.5% 39211 106,514
Refunding.. 39%to 6.7% 1,416,774 440,856

$ 5656529 § 1,403,191
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Changes in general_obiigation bonds during the year Future general obligation debt service requirements

ended June 30; 1996 are summarized in Note 15.

(amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1996 were
as follows:

‘Year Ending

June 30 Principal interest Total
1997 $ 4636855 208382 S 672037
1998 463,025 190,842 653,867
1999 452,500 174420 627,320
2000 450,625 158,787 609,412
2001 457,055 143,735 600,790
Thereatter . 4458080  1,000288 5450368
_ $ 6745340 § 1,876454 § 6,622,794

Less: Unaccreted eppreciation (1,089,811) -
$ 565,50

On December 5, 1995, the State issued $315.8 million-

in general obligation bonds with an interest rate of
5.13% to advance refund $303.4 million of certain
callable maturities of previously issued general
obligation bonds which had interest rates ranging from
525% to 11.75%. The principal of the refunded bonds
is to be redeemed on various dates through 1998 at
redemption prices ranging from 101% to 102%. The
net proceeds of $318.0 million (after including the
reoffering premium) were used to purchase U. S.
governmental securities. Those securities were
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to
provide for all future debt service payments on the
refunded bonds. As a resuit, the refunded bonds are
considered to be defeased and the liability for those
bonds has been removed from the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. At June 30, 1996, the
outstanding balance of the defeased bonds was $241.1
maillion.

The refunding transaction has saved the State aggregate
debt service payments of $38.4 million and will result in
an economic -gain or present value savings of $25.7
million over the life of the refanded bonds. '

In prior years, the State defeased certain callable
maturities of general obligation bonds by placing the
- proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide
for all future debt service payments on the old bonds.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the hablhty for
the defeased bonds are not included in the
accompanying financial statements. ~ At June 30, 1996,
the outstanding balance of the defeased bonds was
$327.4 million. These bonds have interest rates ranging
from 5.8% to 12% and their principal is to be redeemed
on various dates through 2001 at redemption prices
varying from 100% to 102%.

Subsequent to June 30, 1996, the State issued $185
million of general obligation bonds which mature
annually from 1997 through 2021 with interest rates

" ranging from 4. 875% to 6%.

12. SPECIAL OBLIGATION
BONDS:

Special obligation bonds have been authorized and
issued to provide funds for the Build Illinois Program,
the State’s Metropolitan Civic Center Support Program,
and to refund any bonds previously issued under these
programs. _

The Build Illinois Program was implemented to expand
the “State’s efforts in economic development by
providing financing in certain areas. These areas
include construction, reconstruction, modernization, and

. extension of the State’s infrastructure; development and

improvement of educational, scientific, technical and
vocational programs and facilities; expansion-of health
and human services in the State; protection,
preservation, restoration, and conservation of the State’s
environmental and natural resources; and provision of
incentives for the location and expansion of businesses
in Ilinois resulting in increased employment.

The State’s Metropolitan Civic Center Support Act

‘(Support Act) was amended on September 3, 1985,.to
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allow the -issuance of bonds to refinance the State’s _
metropolitan Civic Center Support Program and to
provide - additional capital for new projects to be
financed under the Support Act. The refinancing of the
State’s Metropolitan Civic Center Support Program is
discussed further in Note 14. The ‘Support Act was
amended further on September 11, 1990, to allow the
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issuance of bonds for making construction and
improvement grants by the Secretary of State, as State
Librarian, to public libraries and library systems.
Special obligation bonds are payable primarily from
dedicated portions of the State’s sales tax and the horse
racing privilege tax and are redeemed over a period of
not more than 30 years. Additionally, these bonds have
call provisions providing for early redemption at the

option of the State, beginning 10 years following the
date of issuance, in whole or in part, in such order as the
State shall determine and within any maturity by lot at
varying preminms which decrease periodically.

Special obligation bonds outstanding and btonds
authorized but unissued (amounts expressed in
thousands) at Jume 30, 1996 were as follows:

Outstanding " Authorized
Purpose interest Rates  Amount but Unissued
Build Hlinois: :
Public infrastructure...................... 37%1t075% $ 582,688 $ 172,899
Business development................. 5.5%107.5% 7,863 1
Education.................ccounc.cc... 3.7%t07.5% 293,655 4,817)
Environment.........ccccovvveeenenenns 3.7%1t0 7.5% 12,376 1,885
Refunding.............cooooneee. R 3.7%t0 7.0% 809,965 Unlimited
1,706,547 169,978
Civic Center;
Civic centers.......... e 5.4%t0 9.2% 79,327 113,282
Libranies............... 54%1t06.4% 9418 582
Refunding.. . 6.00% t0 7.35% 85,700 Unlimited
174,445 113,864
$ 1880992 $ 283,842

Bonds issued in excess of authorized amounts for
Education will be eliminated through reallocations from
future bond sales.

Changes in special obligation bonds during the year

ended June 30, 1996, are summarized in Note 15.

Future special obligation debt service requirements
(amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30,1996 were
as follows:

Year Ending ,

June 30 ) " " Principal ~ Interest Total
1997 $ 68,005 $. -.98,259 $ 166,264
1998 69,660 96,154 165,814
1999 72,170 93,128 165,298
2000 74,310 90,410 164,720
2001 75,465 87,622 163,087

Thereafter 1,649,670 854,293 2,503,963

' $ 2000280 $ 1319866 $ 3,329,146
Less: Unaccreted appreciation.................... (128,288)
$ 1,880,992

In prior years, the State defeased certain callable
maturities of Build Illinois and Civic Center bonds by
placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable
trust to provide for all future debt service payments on
the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and
the liability or the defeased bonds are not included in
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the accompanying financial statements. At June 30,
1996, the outstanding balance of the defeased bonds
was $651.9 million. These bonds have. interest rates
ranging from 5.6% to 8.2% and their principal is to be
redeemed on various dates through 2008 at redemption
prices varying from 100% to 105%.
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13. REVENUE BONDS:

The State Constitution empowers certain State agencies
and authorities to issue bonds that are not supported by
the full faith and credit of the State. The bond
indentures include a pledge from these agencies and
authorities that income derived from acquired or
constructed assets be used to retire the debt and service
related interest. In addition, certain authorities have
issued debt which is classified as “conduit” debt of the
State.

Revenue bonds issued by individual agencies are
supported by fees, rentals, -tolls assessed to users and
loan repayments. Issuing agencies of the primary
government ‘include the Illinois Student Assistance
Commission (Student Loan Revenue Bonds) and the
State Universities Retirement System of Illinois (State
Universities Retirement System Special Revenue
Bonds). Component unit issuing agencies include the

Ilinois Housing Development Authority (Housing
Development, Multi-Family Housing, Residential
Mortgage, Multi-Family Program, Homeowner
Mortgage Revenue and Affordable Housing Program
Trust Fund Bonds), Illinois State Toll Highway
Authority (Construction Revenue Bonds), Illinois Rural
Bond Bank (Bond Bank Revenue Bonds), and
universities consisting of Chicago State University,
Eastern Illinois University, Northeastern Illinois
University, Western Illinois University, Illinois State
University, Northern Illinois University, Southern
Tllinois University and the University of Illinois
(University Revenue Producing Facilities Construction
Bonds). C-

Bonds outstanding (amounts expressed in thousands) at -
June 30, 1996, net of unamortized discounts, were as
follows: .

Amount interest Annual
Agency OQutstanding Rates Maturity To
Primary Government - -
Enterprise:
lilinois Student Assistance Commission .......... i eeeesennraens ieveeeaean $ 859348 3.90% to - 18.000%- 2025
Trust: : - - - -
State Universities Retirement System............. prearererrrneereneeans 15019 . 7.25% to 7.450% 2005
Total (Memorandum Only) Primary Government- $ 874,367
Component Unit-
Hlinois Housing Development Authority...... $ 2017926 365% to  15.000% 2031
Illinois State Toll Highway Authority...........ccccccoeieeeeeeemeerenens 957,155 3.50% to 8.400% 2017 -
lliinois Rural Bond Bank.... 50605 & 3.85% to 7.300% 2025
' 3,025,686 ' .
Universities and Colleges:
Chicago State University. 23,740 450% to  6.150% 2023
Eastem Iflinois Unversity 34,388 490% to 9.375% 2016
Northeastern llinois UniVerSity ... ...........ccveveeieceeneeeerecenenenns 2,075 6.00% fto 6.200% 2013
Western lllinois University. 39,899 410% to = 5.800% 2020
lllinois State University..................... 45,860 550% to. 7.350% 2014
Northern lllinois Unversity 45480  6.00% to  10.050% 2017
Southern Hiinois URIVEISIY............c.eevecireeerreeeeereeeeesmssnesssessnes 51,882 560% to 7.125% 2018
University of lliinois 300,648 3.00% to = B8.700% 2022
544973
Total Component Unit 3,570,659
Total (Memorandum Only) Reporting Entity - $ 444502

50

Changes in revenue bonds during the year ended June 30, 1996 are summarized in Note 15.
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Revenue bond debt service requirements, principal and 30, 1996 were as follows:

interest, (amounts expressed in thousands) as of June

Primary Govesnment
Year Ending Enterprise Trust Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal interest
1997 $ 30365 § @375 § 0 - $ - $ 30365 $ 93,751
1998 35,977 91,772 - - 35977 91,772
1959 50,263 89,710 - - 50,263 89,710
2000 49,192 8,820 - - - 49192 86,820
2001 36,005 83,870 - - 3,095 83,870
Thereafter 664,130 968,062 25,825 - 689,955 968,082
$ 8502 § 1414005 $ %85 $ -——  § 891847 $ 1414005
Less — St e ]
Unaccreted
appreciation {1,756) (10,806) (12,562)
3o 3w 3Bz
. Component Unit
Yoar Ending Proprietary . University and College Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
1997 $ 60310 $ 189,720 § 27610 § 17,156 $- 87920 $ 206,876
1998 65615 188,317 29,790 15,997 95,405 204,314
1999 68,710 184,359 30,990 15,283 99,700 199,642
2000 73,105 180,405 32,625 © 44,481 105,730 194,886
2001 78,175 176,246 33,140 13,580 111,315 180,826
Thereafter 2,900,312 2,221,032 705,054 143,756 3,605,366 2,364,788
$ 3246227 $§ 3140079 § 855,209 § 220253 $ 4,105436 $ 3,360,332
Less:
Unaccreted
appreciation (202,583) (311,119) (513,702)
$ 3,043,644 s 548,090 $ 3,591,734

Total principal debt service requirements for the
primary government include bond discounts of $4.9
million for enterprise funds. Component unit bond
discounts include $18 million for proprietary funds and
$3.1 million for university funds.

lllinois Student Assistance
Commission (Commission) -

The Commission issues student loan revenue bonds, the
proceeds of which are used to purchase student loans
from eligible lenders and to issue Stafford subsidized
and nonsubsidized loans to Illinois residents. The
bonds mature annually in varying amounts, bearing
interest ranging from 3.9% to 18%. Bonds outstanding
exclusive of refunding issues may not exceed $1,150
million ($859.4 million was outstanding at June 30,
1996, net of $4.9 million of unamortized discounts). All
student loans purchased by the Commission and all
loans financed from the proceeds of bonds issued, along

- with all revenues received from or on account of these

onds, are pledged as collateral for the bonds. Any
losses are guaranteed as to principal and interest by the
Commission’s Guarantee Loan Program, which can be
subrogated to the United States Department of
Education.

The bond resolutions provide for early retirement for
bonds maturing on or after March 1, 1997, at 102% of
par, with the premium decreasing periodically until
March 1, 2005, after which unmatured bonds can only
be retired at par value. Pursuant to the bond resolutions,
reserves for bond retirement and interest payments
aggregated $65.7 million at June 30, 1996.

Included within the $859.4 million of outstanding -
revenue bonds are $225 million of taxable revenue
bonds, Series B, Series C , Series D, Series 1996A and
Series 1996B, the proceeds of which were used to
purchase student loans. The bonds mature at various
dates, bearing interest rates as determined by the
remarketing agent that would enable the bonds to be
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sold at a price equal to their principal amount, but not to
exceed 18% per annum for the Series B and Series C
bonds, 15% per annum for the Series D and Series
1996B bonds and 12% per annum for the Series 1996A
bonds.

The bonds, if in a weekly or monthly mode, are subject
to purchase on demand of the holder at a price equal to
principal plus accrued interest on seven days’ notice and
delivery to the remarketing agent. The remarketing
agent is authorized to sell the repurchased bonds at a
price equal to their principal amount by adjusting the
interest rate.

Irrevocable letters of credit have been issued by
Sumitomo Bank, Limited (Chicago Branch) for the
Series B bonds, by Student Loan Marketing Association
(Sallie Mae) for the Series C bonds and by Bank of
America [llinois for the Series 1996A and the Series
1996B bonds. In addition, irrevocable letters of credit
have been issued by Sumitomo Bank, Limited (Chicago

Branch) and Industrial Bank of Japan, Limited (Chicago

Branch) for the Series D bonds. Under these letters of
credit, Citibank, N.A., State Street Bank and Trust
Company, N.A. and The First National Bank of
Chicago, acting as tender agent, paying agent, and bond

If the remarketing agent is unable to resell any bonds
that are “put” within 180 days of the “put” date, the
Commission is required to repay the amounts drawn on
the letters of credit for the redemption of these bonds.
Repayments of amounts drawn on the letters of credit
will be made by the Commission from the trustee
accounts. ' :

The Commission is required to pay to Sumitomo Bank,
for the Series B bonds, on the date of issuance of the
letter of credit an origination fee of .15% of the line of
credit and, thereafter, a quarterly commitment fee of
45% of the available amount of the letter of credit. On
the date of issuance of the letter of credit issued by the
Student Loan Marketing Association, the Commission

.is required to pay $50,000 and, thereafter, a quarterly

commitment fee of .6% of the available amount of the
letter of credit. For the issuance of the letter of credit
for the Series D bonds, the Commission is required to -
pay to Sumitomo Bank and Industrial Bank of Japan
$75,000 and, thereafter, a quarterly commitment fee of
.55% of the available amount of the letter of credit. On
the date of the issuance of the letter of credit for the
Series 1996A and the Series 1996B bonds, the

‘Commission paid 10% to Bank of America Illinois and

registrar for Series B and Series C bonds, for Series D -

bonds and for Series 1996A and Series 19968 bonds,
respectively, are entitled to draw the amount needed (a)
to pay interest on the bonds on each interest payment
date; (b) to pay principal and interest on the bonds
called for redemption; (¢) to pay principal and interest
on the bonds resulting from an acceleration of maturity
due to an event of default; and (d) to pay the tender
price of bonds tendered or required to be tendered for
purchase which is mot to be paid from remarketing
proceeds or from certain funds held under the indenture.
The letters of credit are valid through September 29,
1999, for the Series B bonds, through December 1,
1997, for the Series C bonds, through September 22,
- 1998 for the Series D bonds, and through February 28,
2001 for the Series 1996A and Series 1996B bonds
unless extended or renewed. If exercised, the letter of
credit for the Series B bonds carries a variable interest
rate of 2% plus the greater a) of the prime rate or b) the
Federal funds rate plus .5%. per annum. The letter of
credit for the Series C bonds carries a variable interest
rate of 1.75% plus the average yield of the 13 week U.S.
Treasury Bill. The letter of credit for the Series D
‘bonds carries the Federal funds rate plus .5% per annum
~ for the initial 30 days and, thereafter, carries the prime
rate plus 2.5%. The letter of credit for the Series 1996A
and Series 1996B bonds carries a variable interest rate,
_ however, not to exceed 20% per anoum.

a quarterly commitment fee of .55% of the -variable
amount of the letter of credit. :

State Universities Reﬂrement System
(System) -
The System issued revenue bonds to finance the design,

" acquisition, construction and equipping” of a2 pew
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permanent administrative office building. The bonds
are capital appreciation bonds with interest rates ranging
from 7.25% to 7.45%. These bonds are payable solely
from and secured by a pledge of and first lien on the net
revenues derived from investments of the System. They
are not payable from any employer or employee
contributions to the System. The bond resolutions do
not provide for early redemption prior to maturity. At
June 30, 1996, bonds outstanding'were $15 million.

Hlinois Housmg Development Authonty
(IHDA)~-

The IHDA was created in 1967 to increase the
production of low and moderate income housing in
Tllinois by providing mortgage loans. The IHDA is
authorized to have bonds and notes outstandmg in an
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $3,600
million exclusive of refunding issues. Bonds issued
must mature within 50 years from the date of issue,
bearing interest rates as determined by the IHDA.,
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Subsequent to July 1, 1983, the maximum interest rate
cannot exceed 11% or 70% of the prime rate, whichever
is greater. All revenue bonds issued to provide

" mortgage loans are secured by first mortgage liens on
the related developments.

In the event that JHDA determines that funds will not be
sufficient for the payment of the principal of and
interest on its bonds during the next succeeding State
fiscal period, the Chairman of IHDA shall certify to the
Governor on or before September of the then current
State fiscal period the amount required by IHDA to
enable it to pay such principal and interest. The
Governor shall include the amount so certified in the
State budget; however, the General Assembly has no
obligation to appropriate funds for IHDA.

At June 30, 1996, bonds outstanding aggregated
$2,035.9 million, before unamortized discounts of $18
million. Sinking funds established pursuant to bond
resolutions at year end aggregated $80.3 million. The
bonds marture annually through 2031, bearing interest
from 3.65% to 15%. The bonds provide for early
redemption at the option of IHDA, in whole or in part,
in inverse order of maturity at varying premiums which
decrease periodically.

Included within the $2,035.9 million of outstanding
revenue bonds are $414.1 million of Multi-Family
Program Bonds, $385.8 million of Homeowner
Mortgage Revenue Bonds and $105.2 million of
Affordable Housing Program Trust Fund Bonds which
are not a debt of the State of Illinois and, therefore, the
State of 1llinois is not liable for them. However, $314.1
million of the Multi-Family Program Bonds are direct
and general obligations of the IHDA and the full faith
and credit of the IHDA is pledged for their repayment.
The remainder of the bonds are special, limited
obligations of the IHDA with a claim for payment
solely from pledged property.

The THDA has also issued $69.8 million of Housing
Revenue Bonds, Series 1985 which are secured by a
joint and several guaranty of the Metropolitan Life
Insurance Company, Pittway Corporation and Metro
Properties, to provide construction and permanent
financing for one development with 600 dwelling units.
On May 13, 1987, this guaranty was replaced by a
guaranty from Fuji Bank and approved by the
bondholders of the Housing Revenue Bonds. In
addition, the IHDA has issued $12.4 million of Multi-
Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1989 which
are secured by a guarantee of the Government National
Mortgage Association, to provide construction and
permanent financing of multi-family housing
development of which certain units are intended for
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occupancy by low to moderate income persons. Also,
the IHDA has issued $70.5 million of Multi-Family
Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 1991, Series 1993 and
Series 1995. The Series 1991 and Series 1995 bonds
were used to finance the costs .of acquiring,
rehabilitating and equipping multi-family residential
rental housing projects. The Series 1993 bonds were
used to refund on a current basis a portion of the
IHDA’s Multi-Family Housing Bonds. Additionally,
the THDA has issued $61.8 million of Section 8
Housing Revenue Bonds, the proceeds of which were
used to (1) provide financing for the acquisition of
several developments, (2) pay issuance costs, and (3)
fund debt service reserves. These bonds are special,
limited obligations of the IHDA and can only be repaid
from payments received with respect to the mortgage
loans. The bonds are not a debt of the IHDA or the
State of Illinois and neither are liable on the bonds.
They are, however, included in the IHDA’s authorized
debt limitation. As of June 30, 1996, $215.9 million of
these bonds were outstanding.

Subsequent to June 30, 1996, the IHDA issued
Homeowner Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 1996 Series C
and 1996 Series D, in the amounts of $26 million and
$11.3 million, respectively. The Series 1996 C bonds
mature in 2020 through 2028 at interest rates ranging
from 5.625% to 7.58%. The Series 1996 D bonds are
convertible option bonds subject to mandatory tender no
later than September 2, 1997, at initial interest rates of
3.8% to 3.9%. o N

{llinois State Toll Highway Authority

The THA issued revenue bonds to finance construction”
of the State toll highway system and to refund all
currently outstanding bonds of the Authority. The bond
resolutions provide for early redemption at the option of
the THA, in whole or in part, at a cost not to exceed
102% of par value, declining periodically through
December 31, 2004. All unmatured bonds outstanding
January 1, 2005, are redeemable thereafter at par. In
accordance with the provisions of the bond resolutions,
debt reserves on deposit with and invested by the Bond
Trustee at June 30, 1996, aggregated $140.4 million.

Included within the THA’s outstanding revenue bonds
are $178.2 million of refunding revenue bonds, Series
1993B. The bonds mature in 2010, bearing interest
rates as determined by the remarketing agent that would
result in the market value of the bonds being 100% of
the principal amount, plus accrued interest, but not to
exceed 22% per annum.



State of lllinois

The bonds, if in a daily mode, are subject to purchase
by demand of the holder at a price equal to the principal
amount plus accrued interest on notice and delivery to
the remarketing agent. If the bonds are in any other
interest mode except a fixed rate, they are subject to
purchase by demand of the holder at the same price but
on seven days’ notice and delivery to the remarketing
agent.

If the remarketing agent is unable to resell any bonds
that are “put”, the THA has entered into a
reimbursement agreement with Societe Generale (New
York Branch) to purchase the bonds. The purchased
bonds rate will be equal to the prime lending rate plus
2% per annum, however, not to exceed 22% per annum.,
Under an irrevocable letter of credit issued by Societe
Generale, the First Chicago Trust Company of New
~ York, New York, NY, acting as tender agent, is entitled
to draw an amount sufficient to pay the purchase price
of bonds delivered to it. The letter of credit is valid
through December 31, 2009 and such payment shall be
made by the delivery of purchased bonds.

The THA was required to pay to Societe Generale, on
the date of closing of the letter of credit an origination
fee of .05% per annum of the face amount of the letter
of credit. In addition, the THA must pay .20% per
annum of the maximum available amount to be drawn
under the letter of credit In conjunction with the
issuance of the Series 1993B bonds, the THA entered
into an interest rate swap, with Societe Generale, to
mitigate the effect of changes in interest rates on its
demand bonds. The- swap effectively changes the
THA'’s interest costs on the $178.2 million bonds due in
2010 to a fixed rate of 4.92% for the life of the bonds.
The THA is exposed to credit risk of nonperformance
by Societe Generale. This risk could result in the
THA’s not receiving the agreed upon payments from
Societe Generale if the variable interest rate exceeds
4.92%. However, the THA does not anticipate
nonperformance. The amounts shown in the schedule
of revenue bond debt service requirements are based on
the fixed rate effects of this interest rate swap.

lllinois Rural Bond Bank (Bank) -

The Bank issues revenue bonds and notes whose
proceeds are used for (1) the purchase of securities of
local Illinois governmental umits to -include the
establishing or increasing reserves in securing the
payment of the bonds and/or interest on the bonds and
(2) to pay, fund or refund any bonds issued by the
Bank. The Bank is authorized to have bonds and notes
outstanding in an aggregate original principal amount
not to exceed $150 million.

Notes to the Financial Statements

In the event that the Bank determines that funds will not

- be sufficient for the payment of the principal and

interest on its bonds and notes, the Chairman of the
Bank shall certify to the Governor, as soon as possible,
the amount required by the Bank to enable it to pay
such principal and interest. The Governor shall include
the amount so certified in the State budget as soon as
practically possible; however, the General Assembly
has no obligation to appropriate funds for the Bank.

At June 30, 1996, bonds outstanding aggregated $50.6
million. Sinking funds established pursuant to bond
resolutions at year end aggregated $1 million. The
bonds mature annually through 2025, bearing interest
rates from 3.85% to 7.3%. The bonds provide for early
redemption at the option of the Bank, in whole or in
part, for bonds maturing on or after February 1, 2001, at

- 102% of par, with the premium decreasing periodically

until I-‘ebruary 1, 2007, after which unmatured bonds

- can only be redeemed at par value.

Included within the $50.6 million of _outstanding

‘revenue bonds are $3.9 million of bonds which do not

require the Governor to include in the State budget the
amount necessary for payment of principal and interest.
Payment of principal and interest on these bonds is
guaranteed by a financial guaranty bond issued by
Capital Guaranty Insurance Company.

Subsequent to June 30, 1996, the Bank issued Bond
Bank Revenue Bonds, Series 1996-B, in the amount of
$515 thousand. These bonds mature annually from
1998 through 2002 at interest ratés ranging from 4. 1%
t0 4.7%.

Universities and Colleges -

The Boards of Chicago State University, Eastern Illinois
University, Northeastern Iilinois University, Western
Nlinois University, Illinois State University, Northern
Illinois University, Southern Illinois University, and the
University of Illinois (hereinafter the “Boards™), as
empowered by enabling -acts, have issued various
revenue bonds to support construction of student
housing and other revenue producing facilities at State
universities. These bonds do not constitute general
obligations of either the State of Illinois or the Boards
but, together with interest thereon, are payable solely
from and are secured by, subject to the prior pledge and
lien of existing refunded bonds, (i) the net revenues of
the Boards; (ii) debt service gramts; (iii) income
received from certain special accounts; (iv) retained
tuition fees (subject to prior payment of related
operating and maintenance expenses); (v) certain debt
service reserves; (vi) certain repair and replacement
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reserves; and (vii) the principal of the special accounts
arising on refundings, all as defined in the various bond
resolutions. In accordance with provisions of the bond
resolutions, debt service funds and reserves on deposit
aggregated $138.7 million at June 30, 1996. The bonds
are callable prior to their maturity in accordance with
the provisions of the bond resolutions, including
premiums of up to 5%.

Contingent Liabilities - _
Metropolitan Pier and Exposition
Authority (McCormick Place) -

In September 1991, the State amended the Metropolitan
Pier and Exposition Authority Act (Act) to authorize the
issuance of $937 million of additional bonds to finance
another expansion of McCormick Place, to be effective
July 1, 1992. The Act also authorizes the McCormick
Place to levy certain taxes (MPEA Taxes) to secure the
additional bonds and for certain other purposes. The
MPEA Taxes would include (i) a sales tax within
portions of the City of Chicago on food, aicoholic
beverages, and soft drinks sold for consumption on the
premises and on certain sales for immediate
consumption off the premises, (ii) a tax at the rate of
2.5% of the gross rental receipts of hotels located within
the City of Chicago, (iii) a 6% tax on gross receipts of
the business of renting automobiles in Cook County,
Illinois, (iv) a 6% use tax on automobiles rented outside
Illinois for use in Cook County, Illinois, and (v) a tax on
taxis and livery vehicles ranging from $2 per taxi
departure to $27 per bus having a capacity of over 24
passengers. In addition, subject to appropriation,
amounts of State sales tax ranging from $61 million for
fiscal year 1996 and graduating to $93 million for fiscal
year 2004 and thereafter would be available for the
payment of debt service on the additional bonds to the
extent that the MPEA Taxes are not sufficient for such

purpose.

The McCormick Place has issued $936.4 million in
revenue bonds, the proceeds of which were used to
finance this expansion. These bonds consist of current
interest bonds, capital appreciation bonds, and deferred
interest bonds. The current interest bonds, in the
amount of $672 million, mature annually through 2006
and from 2022 through 2027, at interest rates ranging
from 4.25% to 50%. However, the $42.8 million .of
bonds bearing an interest rate of 50% were sold at a
premivm and have yields to maturity of 5.8% and
5.88%. The capital appreciation bonds and deferred
interest bonds, in the amount of $264.4 million, mature
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annually from 2006 through 2029, with a yield to
maturity ranging from 6.1% to 6.75%.

In addition, the McCormick Place has previously issued
$131.8 million of revenue bonds with interest rates
ranging from 5.5% to 6.7% to advance refund $34.3
million of revenue bonds with interest rates ranging
from 4.35% to 50% and a maturity date of 2004. The
proceeds were used to purchase U. S. governmental
securities, which were deposited in an irrevocable trust
with an escrow agent to satisfy all future debt service
requirements of the refunded bonds. As a result, the
refunded bonds are considered defeased and the State is
no longer contingently liable for them.

As of June 30, 1996, the outstanding balance of bonds
which the State is contingently obligated to pay was
$1,093.3 million. The outstanding balance of the
refimded bonds was $30.8 million.

Subsequent to June 30, 1996, the McCormick Place
issued $506.8 million of refunding bonds. Included in
these bonds are $379.4 million of current interest bonds
maturing from 1997 through 2027 at interest rates
ranging from 4.1% to 6%. The remainder are capital
appreciation bonds which mature from 2011 through
2025 at yields to maturity of 6% t0 6.25%.

Southwestern lllinois Development
Authority (SWIDA) -

SWIDA has issued $106 million of revenue bonds, the
proceeds of which were Joaned to several companies for
the acquisition of land and construction of various types
of facilities. These companies are primarily liable for
repayment of the bonds, which are secured by SWIDA
loan agreements with the companies. These bonds bear
interest rates ranging from 5.2% to 9.25% and mature
annually through 2020. The State has accepted a moral
obligation to repay the bonds in the event SWIDA and
the companies are unable to meet the bonds’ repayment -
commitments.

During 1994, Wood River Township Hospital deposited
$9.1 million of cash into an irrevocable trust with an
escrow agent to provide for the advance refunding of
$8.2 million of bonds maturing through 2003. As a
result, the refunded bonds are considered defeased and
the State no longer has a moral obligation to repay the
bonds. As of June 30, 1996, the outstanding balance of
bonds which the State is morally obligated to repay was
$85.9 million. The outstanding balance of the refunded
bonds was $7.5 million.

The SWIDA has also issued $96.2 million of revenue
bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to Shell Oil
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Company, Monsanto Company, Robinson Steel
Company, Inc., and Anderson Hospital. These bonds
are special, limited obligations of the SWIDA and can
only be repaid from payments by Shell Qil Company,
Monsanto Company, Robinson Steel Company, Inc.,
and Anderson Hospital. Unlike the bonds in the
preceding paragraph, the State has not accepted a moral
obligation to repay the bonds in the event the SWIDA
and the companies are unable to meet the bonds’
repayment commitments. At June 30, 1996, the
outstanding balance was $93.4 million.

Subsequent to June 30, 1996, the SWIDA issued $2.9

million of refunding revenue bonds, Series 1996 which
mature annually from 1997 through 2011 at interest
rates ranging from 4.1% to 5.65%. In addition, the
SWIDA issued $4 million of revenue bonds, the
proceeds of which were loaned to Kienstra, Inc., which
do carry the moral obligation of the State.

Quad Cities Regional Economic
Development Authority (Authority) -

The Authority has issued $27.2 million of revenue
bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to HDC, Inc.
and to Thoms-Proestler Company to provide permanent
financing for the acquisition and construction of various
types of facilities. These companies are primarily liable
for repayment of the bonds, which are secured by (i)
mortgages and security agreements from HDC, Inc. and
Thoms-Proestler Company to the Authority, (ii) a
Jeasehold mortgage and security agreement from HDC,
Inc. to the Authority, (iii) an assignment of leases, rents
and revenues from HDC, Inc. to the Authority, and (iv)
a guaranty by HDC, Inc. to the trustee. The bonds
mature semiannually throngh 2017 and bear interest
rates of 8.7% and 9.75% until February 1, 2004, at
which time the 9.75% will be reset to 1025% plus a
supplemental coupon. rate, if required, whose combined
rate is pot to exceed the limits of Illinois law. The State
has accepted a moral obligation to repay the bonds in

the event the Authority and companies are unable to,
repayment commitments. At June 30,

meet the bonds’
1996, the outstanding balance was $26.1 million.

The Authority has also issued $2 million of revenue
bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to Whitey’s
Ice Cream Manufacturers, Inc. -These bonds are special,
limited obligations of the Authority and can only .be
repaid from repayments by Whitey’s Ice Cream
Manufacturers, Inc. Unlike the bonds of the preceding
paragraph, the State has not accepted a moral obligation
to repay the bonds in the event the Authority or the
Company is unable to meet the bonds’ repayment

commitments. At June 30, 1996, the outstanding
balance was $2 million.

Upper lllinois River Valley Development
Authority (UIRVDA) -

The UIRVDA has issued $4 million of revenue bonds,
the proceeds of which were loaned to Waste Recovery -
Ilinois - (the Company) to finance the acquisition,
construction, equipment "and installation of a tire
recycling and tire-derived fuel processing facility. The
Company is primarily liable for repayment of the bonds,

. which are secured by an assignment and a pledge of

revenues derived from a separate loan agreement
between the UIRVDA and the Company. In addition,
the bonds will be secured by (i) moneys held by the
trustee under a debt service reserve fund established
under the indenture, (ii) guaranty agreement from Waste
Recovery, Inc., a Texas corporation and a general
partmer of the Company, to the trustee, and (iil) a

- separate mortgage and security agreement from the

Company to the trustee granting a mortgage lien on and
security interest in the project. These bonds mature
annually through 2004 and bear an interest rate of 6.5%.
The State has accepted a moral obligation to repay the
bonds in the event the UIRVDA and the Company are
unable to meet the bonds’ repayment commitments. At
June 30, 1996, the outstandmg balance was $3.7
million.

Defeased Revenue Bonds -~

In February 1996, the University of Illinois issued $4.1 -
million of revenue bonds with interest rates ranging
from 4% to 5.6% to advance refund $3.8 million of
certain callable maturities of previously issued revenue
bonds issued by Sangamon State University, which had
interest rates ranging from 4.6% to 6.375%. The net
proceeds were used to purchase U. S. governmental
securities, which were deposited in an irrevocable trust
with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt
service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result the

refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the

liability for those bonds has been removed ﬁ'om the
financial statements.

The refunding transaction has saved the University of
lllinois aggregate debt service payments of $97
thousand and will result in an economic gain or present

- value savings of $101.2 thousand over the life of the
-refunded bonds. -
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In addition, the Commission issued a total of $49.9
million of new bonds to current refund a like amount of



State of lllinois

Notes to the Financial Statements

outstanding bonds having interest rates ranging from
52% to 8%. The refunding bonds were variable rate
bonds.  Although the variable rate bonds have
maximum and minimum rate limits, the Commission
estimates that the rate will average 4.4% over the life of
the bonds.

The current refunding resulted in a difference between
the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of
the old debt of $.6 million. This difference, reported in
the accompanying financial statements as a deduction
from bonds payable, is being amortized on a straight
line basis over the remaining life of the old debt as a
component of interest expense. As a result of the

current refunding, the Commission estimates an

increase in its debt service payments of some $15.6
million over the life of the new debt and an economic
gain or present value gain of $1 million. This debt
service could range from $5.3 million to $48.3 million,
depending on interest rate fluctuations applicable to the
variable rate debt; likewise, the economic gain could
range from $2.8 million to an economic loss of $3.9
million. :

Also, the THDA issued $32.4 million of new bonds with
interest rates ranging from 3.7% to 5.95% to current
refund a like amount of outstanding bonds with interest
rates ranging from 6.3% to 10.625%. The current
refunding resulted in a difference between the
reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the
old debt of $1.4 million which will be reported as a
deduction from bonds payable and is being amortized
over the life of the new debt, using the effective interest
method, as a component of interest expense. The
issuance of the refunding bonds at lower interest rates
will cause aggregate debt service payments to be

decreased by $6.3 million and will result in an _

economic gain or present value gain of $4 million.

On May 1, 1984, the Tllinois Building Authority (IBA)
effected net defeasance for all.bond series which were
‘gross defeased in prior years, and the bond series issue

of February 1972 by depositing cash in an itrevocable

trust to provide for all future debt payments on the

57

defeased bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets
and the liability for defeased bonds are not included in
the financial statements. On June 30, 1996, $.6 million
of bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

In addition to the IBA, the State Toll Highway
Authority, the Illinois Housing Development Authority,
and State universities consisting of Chicago State
University, Eastern Illinois University, Western Illinois
University, Northern Illinois University, Illinois State
University, Southern Illinois University, and the
University of Illinois had previously defeased
outstanding bonds by placing the proceeds of new
bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future
debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly,
the trust account assets and liability for the defeased
bonds-are not included in the financial statements. On
June 30, 1996, $434.3 million of bonds outstanding are
considered defeased. These bonds have interest rates
ranging from .05% to 10.8% with principal maturing
until 2021.

Conduit Debt (not included in financial
statements)

The State of Illinois by action of the General Assembly
created various authorities for the express purpose of
providing private entities with an available low cost
source of capital financing for construction of facilities
deemed to be in the public interest. Fees are assessed to
recover related processing and application  costs
incurred. Bonds issued by the authorities represent
limited obligations payable solely from payments made
by the borrowing entities. The majority of the bonds
are secured by the property financed. Upon repayment

" of a bond, ownership of acquired property transfers to

the entity served by the bond issuance. The State has no
obligation for this debt. Accordingly, these bonds are
not reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

-At June 30, 1996, recorded amounts of revenue-bonds,

net of defeased bonds, and notes outstanding (amounts
expressed in thousands) as reported by authority
officials were as follows:
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Amount interest Annual
Authority Qutstanding Rates Maturity To
tliinois Heaith Facilities Authority..............cccccoveveeeevenene. $ 6,149,652 Variable ' 2030
Hinois Development Finance Authority: .
Environmental facilities. 1,502,597 Variable 2028
501 (c) 3 not for profit 974,711 Variable 2031
Industrial development. 921,253 ~ Variable 2025
Infrastructure. 481,397 35% to 9.0% 2021
Housing. 204,405 Variable 2028
Insured industrial revenue. 32,019 Variable 2021
Financially distressed City..............ccoceeeeveercrenrsvenneen.. 20,950 53% to 7.5% 2013
Other. 6,831 Variable 2006
4,144,163
llinois Educational Facilities Authority. ..........ocovuveeee.e 1,316,265 Variable . 2028
Hinois Housing Development Authority......................... ' ' 215,855 43% to  25.0% 2034
Southwestem lllinois Development Authority................ 93,416 65% fto 15.0% 2025
lllinois Farm Development Authofity............coveieecnene.. 67,906 4.5% to 11.5% 2038
Quad Cities Regional Economic : .
Development Authority 1,960 -Variabie 2010 .
o $ 11,989,217

14. OTHER LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS:

Other long-term .obligations reported in the General

disclosed below are as follows (in millions):

Long-Term  Obligations. Account -Group - and
Description Reference Amount
Melmpoltian Pier and Expos;hon Authonty y - -
(McCormick Place) liability...............coo..csvmnen... ceeernener e A) $ 346.8
Compensated absences........................... eerresativesseneseearessasans : (B) 480.9
Regional Transportation Authority liability.................ccccu.......... ©) 485.6
Workers' compensation liability...........ccoveeceeemeveeeeceeeeree e D) 94.2
Capital lease obligations..............c...cccvvrerveemmneseseeensceiemennns (E) 324
Hllinois Sports Facilities Authority llabalrty..............,......... ............. (3] 33.9
Installment purchase ObgGatONS...........uu.mereresieeeeermnesiiinereeeee (c)) C 224
Certificates of participation............c.cccvureereecv oo R H) 1327
Other.obligAONS...........uu...e..eeeeeeeeeeeeeseeer e eeees e sessne.. o 14
Total Other Long-Term Obligations $ 16400
- =
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Metropolitan Pier and Exposition
Authority (McCormick Place)
Liability -

In July 1984, and November 1985, the State amended
the "Metropolitan Fair and Exposition Authority Act”
(Act) to authorize the issuance of $265 and $47.5
million, respectively, for a total authorization of $312.5
million, in additional bonds. Bond proceeds were used
(1) to pay construction costs of completing the
McCormick Place expansion, (2) to pay the construction
costs of projects authorized by the Illinois General
Assembly in the future, and (3) to refund any
outstanding bonds of the McCormick Place that were
issued prior to July 1, 1984. The Act was further

(A)

amended in July and August 1986 to authorize the

issuance of refunding bonds either on a parity with or
subordinated to the 1984 and 1985 bonds. In addition,
in July 1989 the Act was amended to change the name
to Metropolitan Pier and Exposition Authority and to
expand its purposes to provide for the acquisition and
improvement of the Navy Pier in Chicago.

The Ilinois General Assembly also amended certain tax
laws in July 1984 and November 1985 to provide for
1.75% of total State sales tax revenues, 3% of 94% of
total hotel room rental receipts, and $1.7 million per
year out of 7% of State racing tax revenues to be
deposited into the Build Illinois Fund, which replaced
the Tourism Fund, as collected. The legislation
provides for credits to separate accounts within the
Build Illinois Fund of which the "McCormick Place
Account" is one and has first priority credit of the
amounts collected.

In August 1984, the McCormick Place issued $252.5
million of bonds at interest rates ranging from 7% to
10.375% and maturing annually through 2014.
Additionally, in December 1985, the McCormick Place
issued $60.1 million in bonds at interest rates varying
from 6% to 8.875% and maturing annually through
2015.

During 1986, the McCormick Place issued 1986 and
1986A Series refunding bonds. The 1986 Series bonds,
issued in the amount of $324.2 million with interest
rates ranging from 4.9% to 8% and maturing annually
through 2014, were used to defease the remaining 1984
Series bonds. The 1986A Series bonds, issued in the
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amount of $62.6 million, were used to defease certain
callable maturities of 1985 Series bonds. The 1986A
Series bonds have interest rates ranging from 3.75% to
7% and mature annually through 2015. In addition, in
March 1992, the McCormick Place issued 1992 Series
refunding bonds in the amount of $182.1 million at
interest rates ranging from 4% to 6.75% and maturing
annually through 2010. The 1992 Series bonds were
used to defease certain callable maturities of 1985
Series bonds and 1986 Series bonds. The proceeds of
the 1986, 1986A, and 1992 Series bonds were placed in
an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service
payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust
account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds
are not included in the financial statements. On June
30, 1996, the entire amount of 1984 and 1986 Series
bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

In July 1995, the McCormick Place issued $54.1 million
in bonds with interest rates ranging from 4.3% to 6.25%
and maturing anoually through 2011 to advance refund
$51.6 million of certain callable maturities of 1986
Series bonds and 1986A Series bonds which had
interest rates ranging from 6.6% to 7.6%. The net
proceeds were used to purchase U. S. governmental
securities which were deposited in an irrevocable trust
with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt
service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result,
the refunded bonds are considered defeased and the
liability for those bonds has been removed from the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. At
June 30, 1996, the outstanding balance of the defeased
bonds was $36.4 million.

The refunding transaction has saved the McCormick
Place aggregate debt service payments of $4.2 million
and will result in an economic gain or present value
savings of $2. 9 million over the life of the refunded
bonds.

The outstanding balance of the remaining 1986 Series
refunding bonds, the 1986A Series refunding bonds, the
1992 Series refunding bonds and the 1995 Series
refunding bonds was $346.8 million and is included as
"Other Obligations" in the General Long-Term
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Obligations Account Group. Future McCommick Place
debt service requirements (amounts -expressed in
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thousands) at June 30, 1996 were as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal interest Total

1997 $ 10,955 $ 21,154 $ 32,109
1998 11,505 20,585 32,090
1999 12,140 19,981 32,121
2000 12,845 19,246 32,091
2001 113,630 18,473 32,103
Thereafter 285,675 138,307 423,982
$ 346,750 $ 237,746 § 584,496

(B) Compensated Absences -

Most employees earn annual leave ranging from 1 to 2
. days per month with maximum accumulation ranging
from 20 to 50 days. At June 30, 1996, the liability for
accrued annual leave was approximately $237.3 million,
including salary related costs of $14.6 million, for the
governmental funds. Until January 1, 1984, sick leave,
which generally is eamed one day per month with
unlimited accumulation, was paid- only when an
employee was absent due to illness or other acceptable
. circumstances as outlined by personmel regulations.

Effective January. 1, 1984, upon death, retirement,
resignation or termination from State - employment,
employees are able to receive payment for one-half of
accumulated sick leave earned subsequent to January 1,
1984, or full service credit for such accumulated sick
leave under the State Employees Article of the State
Pension Code. At June 30, 1996, the liability for sick
leave earned subsequent to January 1, 1984 was $243.6

million, including $14.5 million-of salary related costs.

Thus, the State's liability for compensated absences
reported in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account.Group amounted to $480.9 million at June 39,
1996. _ As explained in Note 1-O, this amount does not
include compensated absences liabilities for proprietary
funds and component units.

| (C) Regional Transportation Authority
(Authority) Liability -

The Authority is authorized by the Regional
Transportation Authority Act to issue bonds in the

principal amount of $100 million on or after January 1,
1990 and increasing $100 million per year until January
1, 1994, for a total authorization of $500 million to be
used for Strategic Capital Improvement Projects (SCIP).
These projects are to be used to acquire, repair or
replace public transportation facilities in the
metropolitan region as approved by the Governor.
Since June 1992, the Authority has issued $500 million
of bonds with interest rates ranging from 3.75% to 9%
and maturing annually through 2025,

The bonds are general obligations of the Authority to
which the full faith and credit of the Authority is
pledged. However, for State fiscal years in which the
SCIP bonds are outstanding, the State's assistance shall
be transferred monthly from the General Revenue Fund
to the Public Transportation Fund for payment in an

-amount equal to the lesser of monthly debt service on

the SCIP bonds, or one-twelfth of the amount of the
State's assistance as provided in the authorization, The
authorization provides for $40 million for 1996, $50
million for 1997, aad $55 million for each year
thereafter. .. Although the amount of the State's
assistance is measured by the debt service on the SCIP
bonds, the assistance is not pledged for payment of or
security for the SCIP bonds. The State's assistance is
paid directly to the Authority and may be spent by the
Authority at its discretion. As -of June 30, 1996, the -
outstanding balance included in the General Long-Term
obligations Account Group is $495.6 million. - '
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Future Regional Transportation Authority debt service
requirements (amounts expressed in thousands) at June

30, 1996 were as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

1997 $ 4325 § 32,147 § 36,472
1998 7,490 31,943 -39,433
1999 7,875 31,562 . 39,437
2000 8,310 31,145 39,455
2001 8,770 30,690 39,460
Thereafter 458,825 425,413 884,238
$ 495,595 $ 582,900 $ 1,078,495

(D) Workers' Compensation Liability -

The workers’ compensation liability has been
determined using claims outstanding and a projection of
claims to be submitted, based .upon prior years'
experience of the State. Claims that will be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources have
been recorded as a liability in the General Fund and in
the Road Fund and Mental Health Fund (Special
Revenue Funds), in the amounts of $37, $16.5 and
$17.9 million, respectively. The remaining portion of
the liability, $94.2 million as of June 30, 1996, is
included in the General Long-Termm Obligations
Account Group. Of this liability, $63.6, $6.7 and $23.9
million are expected to be paid from future resources of
the General Fund, the Road Fund and the Mental Health
Fund, respectively. In addition, a $3.8 million workers’
compensation liability has been included in the

University and College fund type included in
component units.

(E) Lease Commitments -

The State leases land, office facilities, office and
computer equipment and other assets. Although lease
terms vary, certain leases are remewable subject to
appropriation by the General Assembly. If renewal is
reasonably assured, leases requiring appropriation by the
General Assembly are considered noncancelable leases
“for financial reporting purposes. At June 30, 1996,
assets capitalized under capitalized leases included in
property, plant and equipment (amounts expressed in
thousands) were as follows:

Land and land improvements.........

Equipment.....

Buildings and building improvements.......cccoceuuenenes

Less: Accumulated depreciation............cccouen.....

Primary Government
General :
Fixed Proprietary Component

Assets Fund Types Units
$ 1,980
....... $ 212 $ 1,808 2,816
22915 2,380 38,451
23,127 4,188 43,247
........ 1,468 1,456
$ 23127 § 2720 § 41,791
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Future minimum commitments for noncancelable leases  were as follows:
(amounts expressed in thousands) as of June 30, 1996

Primary Government
Capitalized Leases
- General
Year Ending Operating Long-Term Proprietary
June 30 ' Leases Obligations Fund Types Total
1997 $ 82410 § 9,908 $ 811 § 93,129
1998 61,259 9,043 - 770 71,072
1999 39,157 4,326 379 . 43,862
2000 ‘ 23,197 2,611 : 289 26,097
2001 7,606 - - 2,440 - 210, - 10,286
_ Thereafter 11,012 13486 840 25,338
Total minimum lease : ‘
payments $ 224,641 41,814 3299 $§ 269,754
Less amounts representing
interest.............. ' _ 9430 517
Present value of net minimum
lease payments..........c.ccoevvrererenennn B 32,384 § 2,782
Component Units
Capitalized Leases
University
Year Ending Operating and College Proprietary
June 30 Leases Funds " Fund Types Total
- 1997 I 5220 $ 9,559 § 503 § 15,372
1998 4,070 . 6833 242 11,145
1999 3,193 2,911 ' 18 6,122
2000 2,172 2,039 18 .. 42291
2001 1859 1297 10 3,166 |
Thereafter 13,388 3,627 ' -—— 17,015
Total minimum lease o _
payments $ 29,902 : 26,266 _ - 881 § 57,049
Less amounts representing . :
interest..........cvveeveemsiineceeeceeeens . 3,063 208
Present value of net minimum ’ '
lease payments.........ccccceereenennee.. . $ 23,203 § 673

Rental payments (amounts expressed in thousands) for ended June 30, 1996 aggregated $235,911 for the

operating leases charged to operations during the year primary government and $9,994 for component units.
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(F) fllinois Sports Facilities

Authority (Authority) Liability -

The Authority is authorized by the Illinois Sports
Facilities Authority Act to issue bonds in the principal
amount of $150 million to be used for providing sports
stadiums for professional sports teams. On March 1,
1989, $150 million of bonds were issued with interest
rates ranging from 6.8% to 7.875% and maturing
annually through 2010.

The bonds are secured by payments from the Illinois
Sports Facilities Fund which consist of annual payments
of $5 million from the State’s Hotel Operator's
Occupation Tax, $8 million from the Authority's Hotel

Tax and $5 million from the City of Chicago's share of
the Local Government Distributive Fund. The State's
maximum liability is limited to $13 million annually,
but the State anticipates that $8 million, derived from
the Authority's Hotel Tax, will reduce this liability to $5
million anpually. In fiscal year 1996, receipts from the
Authority's Hotel Tax totaled $16.9 million. As of June
30, 1996, the State's share of the outstanding principal
balance was $33.9 million.

The State (and non-State) share of future Illinois Sports
Facilities Authority debt service requirements (amounts
expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1996 were as
follows: :

Year Ending State Share Non-State Share Total

June 30 Principal interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
1997 $ 1443 $ 2627 $ 3,752 § 6828 $ 5195 $ 9,455
1998 1,549 2,520 4,026 6,554 5,575 9,074
1999 1,663 2,406 4,322 6,255 5,985 8,661
2000 1,787 2,282 4,648 5,933 6,435 8,215
2001 1,921 2,148 4,994 5,685 6,915 7,733
Thereafter 25,568 11,050 66,477 28,730 92,045 39,780
'$ 33931 § 23033 $ 88219 $ 59885 $ 122150 $ 82,918
e e e e e e e —

(G) Installment Purchase Obligations -

The State has acquired certain land, office facilities,
officc and computer equipment, and other assets
through installment purchase arrangements. Future

commitments under installment purchase contracts
(amounts expressed in thousands) as of June 30, 1996

. were as follows:

Instaliment Purchase Qbligations
General University
Long-Term Propriebyy and
Year Ending Obligations Fund Types College Funds
June 30 Principal interast Principal Intorast Total Principal Intorest Total

1997 $ 9241 % 83§ 13110 $ 88 $ 2B72 $ 2857 $ 1028 $ 3905
1988 6,76 399 6,001 %7 13,403 2,596 873 3469

1990 4,504 273 2,727 5 7.561 2461 716 3177
2000 1,305 03 93 2 1,493 2281 570 2,851
2001 281 23 - - 304 1,587 458 2,045
Thereafter - - - - - 7483 3717 11,200

Total fuhxre .

commitments...$ 22067 § 1311 § 21931 $ 1164 $ 45473 $ 19285 §$ 7362 § 26647
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(H) Certificates of Participation -

State-issued Certificates of Participation. The State is
authorized to issue certificates of participation
(“certificates”) representing the right to receive a
proportionate share in lease-purchase or installment
purchase payments to be made for the benefit of State
agencies for the acquisition or improvement of real or
personal property, refinancing of such property,

payment of expenses of such property, or payment of
expenses related to the issuance. During fiscal year

1996, the State, acting by and through the Bureau of the
Budget, issued $38.8 million of these certificates to

provide for the construction and lease purchase of-

certain correctional facilities to be operated by the
Department of Corrections at various sites within the
State. The certificates have interest rates ranging from
4.15% to 6.375% and maturing annually through 2017.
The outstanding balance of the certificates as of June
1996 ipcluded in the General Long-Term
Obligaﬁons Account Group was $38.8 million. .

The University of Illinois has also issued certificates of
participation representing - the right to receive a
proportionate share of lease-purchase or installment
payments. On August 1, 1990, the University of Illinois
issued $3.3 million of the certificates with an interest
rate of 7.25% and maturing: in 2000 to finance the
construction -of a facility to house academic units in
Area Studies and Interpational Programs. Also, on
January 1, 1991, $16.8 million of the certificates were

Notes to the Financial Statements

issued at interest rates ranging from 5.9% to 6.4% and
maturing annually through 1998 to finance the
acquisition and installation of and the construction of a
building for an electrical and high temperature hot water
cogeneration system. In addition, on April 1, 1995,
$29.9 million of the certificates were issued at interest
rates ranging from 4.1% to 5.4% and maturing semi-
annually through 2005 to finance the purchase of a firm
supply of natural gas from MidCon Gas Services
Corporation. The outstanding balance of the certificates
as of June 30, 1996 was $38.7 million and is included as

N "Other obhgauons in the component units.

Non-State-issued Certificates of Participation. The
State also finances the purchase of certain state-owned
redl and personal property through third party (mon-
State issued) certificates. These non-State issued
certificates are sold by private concerns and are repaid

by State agency appropriations pursuant to installment

purchase agreements. The outstanding balance of non-
State certificates as of June 30, 1996 included in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group was
$93.9 miltion. v

Future commitments by the State to make installment
payments to pay for the assets acquired and related
financing costs for State and non-State issued
certificates (amounts expressed in thousands) at June
30, 1996 were as follows:

Certificates of Participation

) General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
Year Ending State Issved Non-State Issued Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest ~ Principal Interest

1997 $ - $ 2065 $§ 1035 $ 4969 $ 1035 $ 7034

1998 455 2,168 2,200 " 5,447 2855 7615
1999 1,140 2,133 3,700 5,295 4,840 7428
2000 1,190 2,080 3,890 5,101 5,080 7,181

2001 1.240 2,023 4,125 4,890 5,365 6913
Thereafter............. 34,730 20,144 78,995 - 39,959 113,725 - 60,103
s$ 38755 $ 30613 $ 93945 § 65661 $ 132700 $ 96,274
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Certificates of Participation
. Component Unit
Year Ending State Issued Non-State Issued Total

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal interest
1997 $ 47%5 § 2020 $ 675 §$ %1 $ 5470 $ 2,281
1998 5,070 1,747 715 221 5,785 1,968
1999 - 7145 1,395 760 175 7,905 1,570
2000 2,955 1,108 810 126 - 3,765 1,234
2001 3435 939 865 73 4,300 1,012
Thereafter............. 15,340 2,164 455 15 15,795 2,179
$ 38740 $ 8373 $ 4280 $ 871 $ 43020 $ 10,244

(I) Other Obligations ~

The State's risk financing of auto lLiability has been
determined using an estimate of claims outstanding.
Claims for the auto liability that will be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources have been
recorded as a liability in the General Fund in the amount
of $1.7 million. The remaining portion of the lLiability,
$1.4 million as of June 30, 1996, is expected to be paid
from future resources of the General Fund.

In addition, the Tax Reform Act of 1986 requires
issuers of state and local government bonds to rebate to
the federal government arbitrage profits earned on those
bonds under certain circumstances. In accordance with
this requirement, it was determined that an arbitrage
rebate liability did not exist as of June 30, 1996.

The total of Other Obligations recorded in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group as of June 30,
1996 was $1.4 million.

(J} Metropolitan Exposition Auditorium
and Office Building Authorities -

The General Assembly, through adoption of the

"Metropolitan Civic Center Support Act" (Support Act),
created the Metropolitan Exposition Auditorium and
Office Building Fund (Fund) into which 33.5% of all
monies received by the State as horse racing taxes are
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deposited. At June 30, 1996, the balance of the Fund
was $18.6 million. The purpose of the Fund is to secure
and retire a proportionate share of locally issued
revenue bonds, the proceeds of which were used to
construct local civic and exposition centers. The
Support Act was amended in September 1985 to
provide State financial support by issuing direct, limited
obligation revenue bonds for the advanced refunding of
any civic center bond issued before July 1, 1985 and for
newly certified applicants after July 1, 1985. It was
further amended to increase the limitation of the
aggregate amount of principal issued and outstanding in
State and local bonds subject to State financial support
for all Authorities from $75 million to $200 million. In
addition, further restrictions exist as to the amount to
be committed on behalf of any single taxing authority.

On December 15, 1985, the State defeased previous
State supported guarantees by placing the proceeds of
new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all
future debt service payments on the State supported
guarantees. Accordingly, the trust account assets and
the liability for the guarantees are not included in the
State’s financial statements. The bonds used to defease
the State supported guarantees are further discussed in
Note 12, Special Obligation Bonds.
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At June 30, 1996, the unpaid principal on State
supported guarantees (amounts expressed in thousands)

Notes to the Financial Statements

were as follows:

Amount Interest Annual
Authority Defeased Rates -Maturity To
DeKalb 2,125 10.85% 2003
Joliet 2,100 9.30% to 9.40% 2003
Rockford 1,530 7.00% 1997
Peoria 1,000 '6.50% 1997
Springfield 678 6.60% 1996
Aurora 515 6.50% 1997
Decatur 505 4.75% to 6.50% 1997
Danville 460 5.00% to 5.80% 1997
8,913

Beginning July 1, 1985, the following newly certified

local governmental units have received grants ranging

Quad City
Rosemont
Centre East
Quincy

Peoria

Ogle County
Collinsville

Bureau County

Orland Park

Knox County
_River Forest

Aurora

Pekin

LaSalle County

from $.4 to $20 million through June 30, 1996:

Aledo

Benton

Herrin

Rockford

Bowdre Township
Mason County- - -
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15. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM

OBLIGATIONS:

Changes in long-term obligations (amounts expressed in

thousands) for the year ended June 30, 1996 are

summarized as follows:

Proprietary and Other General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
Accrued General Special Other

Notes Re Obligation Obligation Long-Term
Payabie Bonds. Costs Bonds Bonds Obligations
{Note 9) {Note 13) (Note 10) {Note 11) (Note 12) {Note 14)

Batance at July 1, 1995, $ 135942 § 4128500 § 9445652 § 5291793 § 1852011 $ 1,475,185

Primary Government:

Compensatad aly d, 293,460

Increase in workers' compensation

limbility. i 37

Dabt Issues. 178,289 975,000 * 80,000 * 145,475

Increase in lease and instalimant

purchase obligations. 26411

Comp dab taken. (262.096)

Amortization of bond discounts and

bond issuance costs. 520

Amortization of defarred amounts on

bond refundings 170

Increase in accrated value of capital i

Spprociation bonds. 2121 109,522 12,966

Princip s and (61,025) (719,786) (63.985) (81,075)

Excess of sctuarially detammined

retiremant costs computed in

accordance with APB 8

Over amounts recorded a3

axpenditures in goverryTental

fund types. 1,580,550

Other. (428)

Tota! Primary Government, $ - 3 120075 § 1580560 § 384736 $ 2381 3 164,857

Componant Units:

Debt Issuas. 87,949 469,670

Amcriization of bond discounts and bond

issuance costs. 1,455

Amortization of defermad amounts an bond

h g 266

Incraase in accreted value of capital

appreciation bonds 25,686

Principal retiraments and Bmminations.............c..o... {119.7Q03) (300.626)

Total component units. 31,754 196,461 - - - - -

Balance at June 30, 1996 $ 04,188 § 4445026 $ 11028202 $ 5656529 § 1880992 $ 1,640,042

* The debt issues amount represents the gross reported in the operating statements.
issuance amounts and not the net proceeds that are
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16. FUND EQUITY:

A. Fund equity reservations and designations not (amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1996
displayed separately on the combined balance sheet consisted of the following:

Fund Types Total
{Memorandum
Only)
Speciai Debt Expendabile Primary Component
Generzl Revenue Service Enterprise Trust Government Units
Furd Equity:
Retained Epmings:
Reserved for:

Revenue bond and - : -
note retk . ’ : $ 65718 $ 65718 § 221,755
program and other, : 27.578 . 27,576 55,534

Total reserved ’
retained aamings $ 93294 $ 93,204 § 277,249
E——
Fund batances:
Reserved for other:
Long-term portion of:
Federal highuay
progy 4 $ 258378 H 256,378 )
Intergovemmental receivabies..................... H 382 434,889 435271 § 6,187
Other rece oy 2,188 2288 .
Intra-Entity receivables.........« . uoaessssenicen 501 - |
. Loans and notes receivable....................... 48,507 41424 25,500 113,431 68,299
‘ 24,875 40,179 65,054

Restricted fund 447,719

Endowment and similar funds........... - - 472,083

Other. 1,108 10,811 $ 1312 13231 29,787

Total fund balances )
reserved for other § 73490 § 7085850 3 25,500 $ 1312 § 886,152 § 1,024,055
E & ;& _ ]
Unresarved:

Designated for:

Debt sarvice. $ 504,262 s 504202 $ 9,857
Total unwesarved, : ' -
designated fund balances 504,262 $ sod262 $ 9,657

As disclosed in note 1-R, the above fund equity asset accounts that are moncurrent. Specifically, the
reservations are not available to finance current $256,378 Federal highway program receivable is due
operations of State government at the balance sheet date  from the Federal government and will be received upon
or are legally restricted to a specific future use. In  the Federal government increasing their grant amount to
governmental funds, the reserves represent portions of  exceed their apportionment authorization.
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B. During the year, contributed capital decreased expressed in thousands).
pursuant to the following schedule (amounts
Contributed Contributed
Capital Fixed Assets Capital
711195 Additions Deletions = 6/30/96
Primary Government -
intemal Service:
Central Management Services: .
Statistical Services Revolving Fund............cccovuence. $ 8,157 $ 8,157
Department of Comrections:
Working Capital Revolving Fund 8381 §% 585 . 8,966
Other. 2,158 $ 321 1,837
Total Internal Service 18,696 585 321 18,960
Total (Memorandum Only)
Primary Government 18,696 585 321 18,960
Component Unit -
Development Finance Authority 18,508 18,508
Farm Development Authority 12,232 12,232
Other. 2,790 2,790
Total Component Unit. 33,530 33,530 |
Total (Memorandum Only) .
Reporting Entity $ 5222 §$ 585 § 321 8 52,490
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17. FUND DEFICITS:

Primary Govemment

The State’s General Fund, from which a sxgmﬁca.nt
portion of day to day operating expenditures are paid,
- has a GAAP deficit aggregating $951 million at June
30, 1996, although the cash basis fund balance at that
date was $426 million. This deficit results from
recognition of fund liabilities significantly in excess of
accrued revenues.

The Drivers Education Fund of the State Board of -

Education (reported as a special revenue fund) has a
deficit at June 30, 1996, aggregating $14.4 million,
resulting from reimbursement to school districts for
drivers education program costs incurred in the current
year but not paid until the subsequent year. -

The Mental Health Fund of the Department of Mental

- eliminated by future

Health and Developmental Disabilities (reported as a
special revenue fund) has a deficit at June 30, 1996,
aggregating $10.8 million, resulting from workers’
compensation claims incurred in the current year but not
paid until the subsequent year.

The State Gaming Fund of the Department of Revenue
(reported as a special revenue fund) has a deficit at June
30, 1996, aggregating $1 million, resulting from
program costs incurred in the current year but not paid
until the subsequent year.

The above Governmental Funds®
revenue - increases
expenditure reductions in the following year(s).

deficits will be
and/or
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18. CONDEN SED FINANCIAL Condensed financial statements (amounts expressed in

STATEMENTS- thousands) for the State’s discretely presented

DISCRETELY PRESENTED compo;xe};:t units for the fiscal year ended june 30, 1996
are as follows:

COMPONENT UNITS: '

CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:
BALANCE SHEETS

Governmental
lilinois East Develop- tllinois
Grain St Louis ment Housing Medical Non-Major
Insurance Financial Finance Development District Component
Corporation Advisory Authority Authority Commission Units
Assels
Due from other funds................ccome... $ o1
Due from primary govemment....... $ 58
Other cumment assets.............mmmsmemenns 3208 $ 4151 § 479 § 47,504 %41 $ 678
Property, plant, and equipmernt....... 4,240 213
Other assets. 68,299 54 1
Total Assets. $ 336 $ 4151 $ 4719 § 116803 % 5326 $ 892
Due to other funds...............ooeeernncne. $ 1 8 659 $ a1
Due to primary government............ 4
Other current habiliies...................... $ 1,400 55 $ 45
Bonds payable...........c.veeereeecennens
Other long-term liabilities.................
Total labiliies....... e eersmriseesreres 1,400 - 1 659 600 45
Equity:
Contributed capital............ccoceerernenens
Investrment in ficed assets.............. ) 4,240 213
Retained eamings...........ccuecreemecaae
Fund balance. 19% $ 4,151 4,718 115,144 486 634
Tokal EQUIY....e..oeeeeeeereemeeserems 1,956 4,151 4,718 115,144 4,726 847
Total liabilities and equity.......... $ 336 $ 4151 § 4719 § 115803 § 53% § 892
—————————
(Continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: STATEMENTS OF
REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

Govermnmental

Hlinoss East Develop- Hknows
‘Gain . Stious ment Housing Mecical Non-Major
Insurance Financial Finance  Development District Component
Corporation  Advisary Authority Autherily  Commemission Units Toad
Revenues. $ 342 3 “ 8 6 $ 45246 $ 1,358 864 47,825
Bxpencitures:
Cunert 1,566 80 13,955 1,310 424 17,36
Capital Outiays. ‘ ] 2
Debt Service } 16 k]
Transters(cut) {10,725) (10,729
Excess (deficiency) of neverues :
over (under) expenditures................. (1,224 {66) 6 20,564 @ 440 19,718
Euity-beginning, asrestated........................ 3,180 4217 4712 94,580 488 194 107,371
Equity-erding $ 1._95; 3 4151 $ 4718 $ 15144 $ 486 634 127,089
- (Continued)
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CONbEN SED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:
BALANCE SHEETS

(Conﬁnued)

, University
Proprietary and College
Comprehensive
- Health Housing State Toll " Non-Major Chicago
Insurance Development Highway . Component State
Board Authority Authority Units University
$ 15178 $ 4511 § 2,347
$ 4,418 2 . 413
. 67,281 390,026 430,681 89,358 12,653
123 747 1,768,800 2,806 100,412] .
1,992,248 140,405 22,118 & 351
s 67404 $ 2398199 § 2345304 § 118785 § 116,178
$ 14,519 $ 4500 ' § 2,370
s 4 1 . 641 & 7
13,580 199,727 “ 74,382 6362 13,573
2,017,926 857,155 50,605 23,740
| 65 296 100 3,107
13,564 2,232 238 1,052,474 - - - 61,582 - 43,061
33,530

75,651

53,820 165,961 _ 1,312,830 . 23683 e
N _2.53%)
53,820 165,961 1,312,830 57213 73115
s T 67404 § 2,396,199 §  2,345304 § 118795 § . 116,176

CONDENSED STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: STATEMENTS OF
REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

(Continued) :
Proprietary
Comprehensive Housing Stats Toll Non-Major
Health ins. Development Highway Component
Board Authority Authority Units Total
Operating revenues. ' .. $ 18976 $ 328414 § 325410 § - 9541 § 682,341
Depreciation 5 ‘ - 61 " 438 67,599 . 139 68,237
Other. 35,288 314,454 * 249,570 ‘ 8,500 607,812
Operating income (Joss) (16,373) 13522 8,241 902 6,292 | -
Other nonoperating revenue (eXPense)............ 4,151 113,163 2,028 119,342
Transfers-in (out) 10,726 2713 10,998
Transfers from (o) primary govemment. ............ 17,324 17,324
Net income for the year. ‘ 5,102 24,248 121,404 3208 ~ 153957 |
Equity-beginning. : C 48718 141,713 1,191,426 20,480 1,402,337
Contributed capital.. ' ‘ 33,530 33,530
Equity-ending R $ 53820 % 165961 $ 1,312,830 §. 57213 § 1,589,824
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:

BALANCE SHEETS
University and College (continued)
Eastern Westemn {llinols Northern Southern University  Non-Major
Hiinois lllinois State Hlinois Ilinois of - Component
University University University University University Hlinois Units Total

$ 12 $ 323 § 1247 $ 6400 § 11,286 $ 10 $ 41,415
4709 § 2,695 1,591 2,849 7,111 145,843 1,377 171,066
26,020 42,435 60,420 56,800 181,670 1,044 227 16,675 2,479,537
162,267 222,754 364,471 433,589 773.114 2,891,362 185,160 6,911,058
20,529 4,534 11,369 1,968 1,251 15,614 6,221 2,284,962
$ 213537 $ 272418 § 438174 $ 496453 $ 969,546 $ 4108342 § 209443 § 11,888,038
$ 14§ 33 $ 1933 § 6,108 $ 10,875 $ 41,415
$ 4,097 250 135 133 6,101 33648 § 318 45,610
33,632 11,928 29413 39,655 109,696 197,110 28,911 759,919
34,388 39,899 45,860 46,480 51,882 300,649 2,075 3,570,659
3438 20,416 4,152 14,438 5439 228,685 6,832 287,008
75,555 72,507 79,936 102,639 179,226 770,968 38,136 4,704,611
33,530
121,152 182,137 315,373 371,332 711,011 2,596,600 176.253 4,553,962
’ 1,556,294

15.830 17,774 42,865 22,482 79,309 740,774 (4.94_6')_ 1&39,6&
137,982 199,911 358,238 393,814 790,320 3,337,374 171,307 7,183,427
‘ $ 213537 § 272418 § 438.17 $ 496453 § 969546 § 4108342 $ 209443 $ 11,888,038
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19. SEGMENT INFORMATION -

. ENTERPRISE FUNDS:
_Selected financial information by enterprise fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

segment (émounts expressed in thousands) is as follows:

Primary Government

Department

Operating revenues
Depreciation...
Operating income (loss)

Operating transfer-out

Nonoperating revenues

Nonocperating expenses..........ccccouu.....

Net income (loss)
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Additions..... veeorrerrenas .
Deletions........ —
Net working capttal...............ooveemenreccerecenenne.
Total assets......
Bonds and other long-term
liabilities payable from:
Operatmg revenues....: .....

Other revenues................ccimrvnesrraonsennes .

Student
of Assistance -
Lottery Commission -Other
State '
Lottery Total
(1) @ 3
$ 1609181 $ 74264 '$ 227524 1,910,969
780 203 613 1,596
"~ 603,642 - 9438 17,306 630,386
602,100 T BT T T 1,837 604,448"
143 717 2,388 3,248
2,941 - 205 3,146
1,685 6,703 17,652 26,040
B 1,259 110 532 1,901
1,092 - 271 . 1,363
21,625 (195,502) 31,627 (142,250)
137,433 1,046,753 77,890 1,262,076
- . 603,983 603,983
74,826 ' 8 74,834
23,393 140,686

Total equity

The above referenced organizations amd activities

generate enterprise fund revenues as follows:

(1) Tllinois State Lottery rév;enues and operations.

€))

2) Administration of -State-authorized financial

Elected Officials and Departments
Central Management Services
Cotrections

Insurance ,

Mental Health & Developmental
Veterans' Affairs

76,913 40,380

aJd programs for post-secondary students in -

Tilinois.

Service and processing fees charged by the -
following departments, commissions, and

‘board for their operanons

Commissions

Attorney Registration & Disciplinary
-Commission

Office of Banks and Real Estate

IL Industrial Commission

Board

Board of Admissions to the Bar
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20. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The State has elected to retain most exposures to risk.
Workers’ compensation, auto liability, employee
fidelity and surety, and general Hability are “self-
insured” by the State. Claims labilities are carried at
present value, discounted at 5.4%, the average interest
rate for fiscal year 1996 general obligation debt issues.
The amounts are based on historical trend data and
known inflation and cost of living factors.

The State purchases minimal commercial insurance,
There were no significant reductions in insurance
coverage from the prior fiscal year. The amount of
settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage in the
past three fiscal years. A reconciliation of the State’s
claims liabilities for its major claims categories for the
current fiscal year and prior fiscal year (amounts
expressed in thousands) is as follows:

Changes in Claims Liability Balances
Beginning Claims Ending
Balance Incurred: Decreases Balance
FY95 $ 63913 § 56923 § 55923 § 64,913
FY96 S 64913 § 112,880 $ 76,315 § 101,478

21. CONTINGENCIES:

The State offers its employees a deferred compensation
plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plan, available to all State employees,
permits them to defer a portion of their salary until
fature years. The deferred compensation is not
available to employees until termination, retirement,
death, or an unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan,
all property and rights purchased with those amounts,
and all income attributable to those amounts, property,
or rights are (until paid or made available to the
employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and
rights of the State (without being restricted to the
provisions of benefits under the plan), subject only to
the claims of the State’s general creditors. Participants’
rights under the plan are equal to those of general
creditors of the State in an amount equal to the fair
market value of the deferred account for each
participant.

The State has po liability for losses under the plan but
does have the duty of due care that would be required of
an ordinary prudent investor. The State believes that it
1s unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims
of general creditors in the firture.

The State Lottery has entered into agreements with
insurance companies under which the Lottery purchases
annuities under group contracts which provide
payments comresponding to the Lottery’s obligation to
prize winners. The State would be liable for such future
payments if the insurance companies defaulted on their

payment obligation. At June 30, 1996, the Lottery had
purchased annuity contracts to fund future installment
payments aggregating approximately $96.7 million.
Effective July 30, 1985, the law provides that the State
Treasurer may, with the consent of the Director of
Lottery, contract to invest in securities which provide
payments corresponding to the Lottery’s obligation to
prize winners. The securities purchased subsequent to
July 30, 1985 are accounted for in the accompanying
financial statements in an agency fund at an amount
equal to the present value of these future installment
obligations:

The Ilinois State Toll Highway Authority has entered

_into commitments for road construction of $120.3

75

million. The Illinois Housing Development Authority
has entered into commitments aggregating $16.7
million for home loans.

The State receives significant financial assistance from
the U.S. Government in the form of grants and
entitlements. Entitlement to these resources is generally
conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions
of the grant agreements and applicable federal
regulations, including the expenditure of the resources
for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants are
subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors. Any adjudicated disallowance as a result of
these audits become a liability of the State.

Also, the State, its units and employees are parties to
numerous legal proceedings, many of which nommally
recur in governmental operations. All legal proceedings



Notes to the Financial Statements

State of Illinois

(except as discussed below) are not, in the opinion of
the Attorney General, likely to have a material impact
on any of the State’s fund types or account groups.

The five State-sponsored pension funds (State
Employees’ Retirement System, Teachers’ Retirement
System, State Universities Retirement System, General
Assembly Retirement System, and Judges’ Retirement
System) and participants in these systems claim that the
State is required by statute to appropriate additional
funds to these systems. The actual appropriations to
these systems for years prior to fiscal year 1996 fell
short of what the Pemsion Code specified. The
complaint was initially dismissed in the Circuit Court,
but the Appellate Court reversed. The State bas filed a
petition for leave to appeal to the Hlinois Supreme
Court, which will rule on that petition at the end of
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January, 1997. The State is contesting the matter
vigorously. It is neither possible to determine the
outcome of these proceedings nor to estimate the
possible effects there may be on future revenue or
expenditure sources. If the State is umsuccessful,
exposure will be at least $500 million.

In addition, the State and its units are involved in
certain other legal proceedings, which, if decided
adversely to the State, may require the State to make
material future expenditures for expanded services or
capital facilities or may impair future revenue sources.
It is neither possible to determine the outcome of these
proceedings por to estimate the possible effects adverse
decisions may have on future expenditures or revenue
sources. '



GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is maintained to account for resources obtained and
used for those services traditionally provided by State government which
are not required to be accounted for in another fund.



State c__»flllinois

Combining Schedule of Accounts
General Fund
June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

Public
Aid
Medicaid
Provider
General Education Common Assessment
Revenue Assistance School Program Eliminations Total

intergovernmental
Other

Loans and notes receivable 50359 y 50,259
Other assets 9,285 9,285
Total assets $ 1739670 $ 179643 $ 234006 $ 259,365 $ (67.383) $ 2,345,301

Accounts payable and acerued liabilities

$ 190,191
Intergovernmental payables

41812 152,043 2
15193 § (67,383)
53,

S ey

Loans and notes receivable

Inventories

Total Labilities and fund balances $ 1,739670 $ 179,643 §$ 234006 $ 259,365 $ (67,383) $ 2,345,301
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Public
Aid
Medicaid
Provider
General Education Common  Assessment
Revenue Assistance School Program  Eliminations Total

Federal government
Lucenses and fees

Social assistance 1,426,459 ' ' ' ' 71,426,459
Transportation 28,801 28,801
Publlc protectson and justloe 1,184,700 1 .184,790

59,444
Capital outlays 73,723 62 109
Total expenditures 11,841,421 603,261 2,203,463 1,471,661

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

‘Operating transfers to component units (1,135998)  (98,595) (.23, 593)

Capital lease financing 21,906 21,906
Net olher sources (uses) of

" {under) expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources 261,239 {9,421) - 38 - 251,856

Residual ec'{uity transfers-in 773 ‘ ' 773
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JUNE 30, 1996 S (1,0/8,044) § 127544 § —— 3§ 85 § ——  § (951,315)
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State of Illinols

Combining Schedule of Accounts - General Fund
Medicaid Provider Assessment Program
June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

Public Aid
Uofl Long-Term
Hospital Service: Care Hospital . Other Total

intergovemmental 118387
Other 30 41,734
Due from gt_h;r fgnds 10 17 1 28

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 57,098 $
1

124,709 § 8384 $ 190,191
intergovemmental payables 1
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State of Hlinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balance - General Fund

Medicaid Provider Assessment Program

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

Public Aid
Uofl Long-Term
Hospital Service Care Hospital Other Total

Other 84,007 T T 313378

397,382
Total revenues 177,829 327.894 960,421 31,045 1,497,189

Total expenditures 152,330 7,894 960,421 31,007




SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are maintained to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes.



SIGNIFICANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Department of Children and Family Services
DCFS Children’s Services Fund-to account for revenues and expenditures related to the federal Title IV-E
foster care and adoption service program.

Department of Financial Institutions
State Pensions_Fund--receipts from the sale of abandoned property. Expenditures are primarily to the
various state retirement systems for the reduction of the accrued actuarial unfunded Liability.

Department of Public Aid

Child Support Enforcement Trust Fund--child support payments, federal grants, and incentive payments

that are related to the Child Support Enforcement Program.

Food Stamp and Commeodity Fund—the receipt, distribution, and year end balance of food stamps and

commodities received by the Department of Public Aid from the federal government.

Department of Revenue
Local Government Tax Fund--to account for 15% share of various sales taxes that will be distributed to

cities and counties.

Local Government Distributive Fund-—-a portion of State income tax collections that are distributed to the

various municipalities and counties within the State. On a monthly basis, 1/12 of the income tax receipts
are transferred to this fund from the General Fund for such distributions.

Personal Propertv Tax Replacement Fund-the net revenue received from the personal property

replacement income tax. Expenditures consist of allocations to each taxing district within the State and
administrative costs.

Department of Transportation
Read Fund--monies collected for the purpose of administering State highway programs. Funding sources
include federal aid, State motor fuel taxes and various license and fee charges. Expenditures are for
highway maintenance and construction, traffic control and safety and administering motor vehicle laws and

regulations.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund--various transportation related program expenditures and the administrative cost of
supervising the use of funds apportioned to municipalities, counties and road districts. Revenue is derived
from State fuel tazes and an allocation (transfer) of State sales tax collections from the General Fund.

State Construction Account Fund—a portion of motor vehicle registration fees, weight taxes and transfers
from the Motor Fuel Tax Fund. The fund is used exclusively for the construction, reconstruction and

maintenance of the State maintained highway system.

Environmental Protection Agency
i i ~to assist units of local government in financing the construction of

wastewater treatment facilities by making direct loans at or below market interest rates.

State Board of Education

S.B.E. Federal Department of Agriculture Fund—-to account for federal grants received for the purpose of

administering various elementary and secondary education programs throughout the State.

Illinois Student Assistance Commission
Student Loan Fund-to account for monies collected on defaulted student loans from individuals and the

federal government under the student loan guarantee program. Expenditures are primarily to lenders of
defaulted guaranteed student loans.
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet
Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Departments
Aging Alcoholism & Children &
Substance Family Commerce
Services Abuse Services and
for Older Block Children’s Community Natural Employment
Americans Grant Services Affairs Resources Security

Intergovernmental 10,249 4,575 41,385 32,293 10,308
Other . N _ 53 121 52

Loaﬁ“éw and nois receivable
Other assets
Total assets

10,524 §$ 10436 § 85599

Intergovemmental payables 5,079 588 366 18 518 240
Due to other funds 21 205 13 253 182 14,743

Due to component units 241 155 58 237 5

Gebtrvadpez b s tuaniocs i

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Loans and notes receivable )
Inventories 1,969
Other ‘ e 7,358




Agencies, Boards

Departments {continued) and Authorities
Financial Mentai Rehabilitation Environmental Metropolitan
Institutions  Health and Services Protection Pier & Expo
~ Developmental Agency Authority
State Disabilities Public Pubiic Vocational © Water Pollution  McCormick Place
Pensions Mental Health Aid Health Rehabilitation Revenue  Transportation Control Revolving Expansion
842 206,025 113,961
275 2,462 5723 73,349 276,770 483,893
4,742 27,780 16,517 144 370 33,630 302

_—

aiacin

20,508
_ 185320 _ 1477
$ 57,154 % 10613 § 266338 § 37,289 8 9342 § 799,054 § 1411925 § 654177 S ——

563,943
152,819




State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet
Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agencies, Boards, and Higher

(continued) Authorities (continued) Education
Emergency  State Fire Student

Management  Marshal Assistance

State Agency Underground Commission
Boardof  Federal Aid Storage Student
Education Disaster Tank Loan Other Total

Taxes ’ o R 4.61-;%"“ ”331.542‘\
Intergovemmental 95,451 33,996 46,245 51,820 1,168,794
Other » 1 816 387 34,467

119,382

%&mmmaatmpm w”‘_ﬁ&ﬁ&’ ke i
Loans and notes receivable

Rt
15,524 47,902
Other assets _ _ 1415 185,581
Total assets - § 116327 § 34,200 § 33,194 _§ 108,688 581,141 _§ 4,339,573

. ) JacCrue
Intergovemmental payabies
Due to other funds
Due to component units 11,249
aired fvenue 15,660

Loans and notes receivable 2778 41,424
Inventories 2,154 3.131 40,179




State of Illinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Departments
Aging Alcoholism &  Children &
Substance Family Commerce
Services Abuse Services and
for Older Block Children's Community Natural Employment
Americans Grant Services Affairs Resources Security

Public utility taxes

Other taxes $ 13,174

Federal government $ 46,391 $ 55187 $ 92,006 § 262,155 $ 142446
¥ gy e T = z e v 2

oB. e e

interest and other investment income 2186 1482 489

Other _ 6,167 395 5.676 416
Total revenues 36,301 G873 264730 76.555 43,357

Curent .
Heatth and social services 54,223 323,894

Education 47,083

General government 263,770 2,383

ublic profection and justics .

Natural resources and recreation 18,092
Debt service:

Principal 17 471 24

e

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures {711) 573 (226,341) 896 (1,644) (1,469)

Operating transfers-out | (12)  (16,.248) ©®73) (10100 (12,150
Operating transfers to component units (656) (139)
Capital lease financing 92

Excess (deﬁ;:iency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures and net other
__sources (uses) of financial resources 13,963 250 8,471 11,739

i et faddaotharen: i
Reclassification of fund balance

Fund balances (deficit), July 1, 1995, as restated 12,422 30,637 73,315 32,152
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State of Nlinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

{continued) Departments (continued)
~Financial Mental Rehabifitation
Institutions Heatth and Services
Developmental
State Disabilities Public Public Vocational
Pensions  Mental Health Aid Health Rehabilitation Revenue

A

Public uti |ty taxes S ( - ) 5 209'773
Other taxes $ 3,530 357,687
‘ 4925 § 1,174,963 §$ 192,564 §$

ks

interest and other investment income

Other 18,412 _5 46,269 980
Total revenues . 46,815 26,867 1,305,389 238,833 90,393

MWMMM«MV%%M ST e sk @ SE A
Health and social services 47,574 19,363 245,533 84,987
Education 34,515
General 9,046 3 026,020

s s

Natural resources arld recreation
Debt service:
Principal 36 ‘ 13

Excess {deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (5,328) 36,601 (7,981) 3,695 {94,529)

Operating transfersout ' "(439) (39,893) 1510) TR (684,843)
Operating transfers to component units (9,579) (178) (57 (861)
Capital lease ﬁnancmg

(under) expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources 14,817 - 2,974 (9,780)

Reclassification of fund balance T me——— - = - .
Fund balances (deficit), July 1, 1895, as restated 41,329 10,309 43,872 915 32,341

56146
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Higher

Dept. (cont'd) Agencies, Boards and Authorities Education
Environmental Metropolitan Emergency State Fire Student
Protection Pier & Expo Management  Marshal Assistance
Agency Authority State Agency Underground Commission
Water Poliution McCommick Place  Boardof  Federal Aid Storage Student
Transportation Control Revolving Expansion Education Disaster Tank Loan Other Total

15,529 225,302
83,233 457,624

i B SHEREESEEN 3 ‘ # R y ‘,; i
32,851 14,583 . 4.946 65783
97.182 3308 $ 57,867 5,320 ) 4 16,958 141,853 400,948
3852236 54,970 57,867 §39.244 T 30529 764,362 505,330

637 929,029 157,758 1,189,886

13,510 - 15,309 166173 213,084

(49,893) 51,251 9,812 348 23,124 6,312

(121,744) (397,439)

(934,526) (5,693) (348) (9,245) 1.273) (80,065) (1,796,200)
(538) (8) (4,639) (29,819) (46.474)
4 3,432 4,505

(22,511) 58,243 - {516) - 13,879 5,039 34,848 106,796

(78,550) (72,550)
1,046,815 486,271 (11,897) 8,745 62,512 369,256 2,238,994

7551 A0EI08

$:71,024;304
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State q_f Ilinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Commerce and Community Affairs
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Low-income  Community

Home Energy Development/ Build

Assistance  Small Cities Job Hiinois

' Block Grant Block Training Loan
Fund Grant Partnership Programs Total

Due from other funds ‘ 27 27
Loans and notes receivable 11,470 11,4?9

U ——

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1370 $ 10027 $ 20762 $ 228 § 32,387
Intergovernmental payables ) 3 2 M 18

(1,192) (531) (1,143)




State of Illinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Commerce and Community Affairs
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Low-Income Community

Home Energy Development/ Build

Assistance Small Cities Job Hiinois

Block Grant Block Training Loan
Fund Grant Partnership Programs Total

Total revenuss 79.702 56,401 126,095 2538 264.7%

“Total expenditures - 79,702 57,009 125,461 1,668 263,840

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
S (Gndery Bxpanditiine

% oriao A o /h.gm«.:.—, mheiiietted ad e SRR s e = :
Operating transfers-in 27 27
Operating transfers-out (12) (661) (673)

Net other sources (uses) of
nancial re: 65

{under) expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources - (620) - 870 250
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State of Illinols

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Natural Resources
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Qpen Space
Lands Park
Acquisition and Petroleum and
Development Violation ~ Conservation Total

ASSETS

iR

Other assets _ . 11 11
Total assets 3 26,054 § 29,075 $ 20,342 $ 85,371
3 e e e ——

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 46 3 628 § 1839 § 2,513
Intergovemmental payables 507 4 7 518
Due to othewrfunds 5 ?8 119 182

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for encumbrances
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State of Illinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Natural Resources
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Open Space
Lands Park
Acquisition and Petroleum and
Development Violation " Conservation Total

Total revenues 13,174 7,158 6,223 26,555

R T R R

Natural reso
Debt service: )
Principal 13 11 _ 24

St v

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 6,105 3,479 (11,228) (1,644)
0 ; ’3 R s g ens gt o5 - b 0

Jpera whvobadie bl T Ebmaned mgﬂ
Operating transfers-out (10,100) (10,100)
Operating transfers to component units (139) {139)
Net other sources (uses) of '
n

Wc»!oe 1CY| Of mz{l o
{under) expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources 6,105 3,340 (974) 8,471

9



State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Employment Security
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Title HI
Social
Security Unempioyment
and Compensation
Employment Special
Services Administration Total

52
Due from other funds 12,408 3,935 16,343

Inventories 1,969 1,969

AT

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 5,471 $ 182 $ 5,653
!ptergovgmmgntal payables _ 240 240

FUND BALANCES
Reservequor:

nreserved ignated
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 48,507 $ 16,025 $ 64,532




State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Employment Security
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Title I
Social
Security Unemployment
and Compensation
Employment Special
Services Administration Total

143,351

Total expenditures 143,262 1,558 144,820

{Deficiency) of revenues
e eI

Operating transfers-out
Net_ oth_gs sources wgusas) of

=
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State Jqf Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Public Aid
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Child Food
Special Support Stamp
Purposes Enforcement and
Trust Trust - Commodity Total

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 2600 $
mment bles

$

Ty~

Deferred revenues ‘ P TTTTTl041 S 185,320
Total liabilities 4,107 36,500 185,320

Inventories 699
Unreserved, undesignated ‘ 11,015 22,718

Total fu 11,620 __28,083 699
liabilitie 5,727 85;019:
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of

Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
Department of Public Aid
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Child Food
Special Support Stamp
Pumposes Enforcement and
Trust Trust ' Commodity Total

Totagﬁ:\mvenues

EXPENDITURES

Excess (deficiency) of reven '
over (under) expenditures 40,860 (3,938) {321)
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds
Department of Public Health
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

USDA
Public Women,
Health Infants, and
Services Children Total

Due from other funds 700 700
Inventories

LIABILITIES |
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 8,497 $ 9,617 $
Intergovemmental payables 3,201 3.??_5

Total liabilities ' 12.432 24,857

. . R
$ 12,432 $ 24,857 $ 37,288




State of Illinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
Department of Public Health

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

USDA
Public Women,
Health Infants, and
Services Children Total

REVENUES |

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (7,991) 10 (7.981)
3 «'52 55 & ¥ = i o o o, Fo

Operating {ransfers-out
Operating transfers to component units
Net other sources (uses) of

A A A A

{
(under) expendlturas and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources - - -

97



State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Revenue
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

State & County &

Local Mass Local Local
State Sales Tax Transit Govemment Government
Gaming Reform District Tax Distributive

Taxes 1,898 11,740 14,430 94,671 1,216
intergovernmental
Other

nrese ignated - ey L 2
Total fund balance (deficit) (1,024) —— g oy g
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 47456 5 38504 S 45635 § 239501 § 47D
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Personal

Property
Tax Build
Replacement Illinois Total

- 23.565  22.561
$ 303736 § 39410 § 795.054




State of Mlinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Revenue
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

State & County &

Local Mass Local Local
State Sales Tax Transit Government  Govermnment
Gaming Reform District Tax Distributive

Current:
General govemment 98,635 30,223 224,538 1,073,456

“Total expenditures 98.756 30,223 224,538 1.073456 746,990
Exeess (deﬁcnency)‘ of revenues

'S0 (USES' : / JURCES :
Operatmg transfers-in 731,789
Operating transfers-out (204,900) (122,078) (5,000)

Net cthar sources (uses) of
v

- RXce sficiency)
(under) expendltures and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources (9,380) —— - - -
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Personal

Property
Tax Build
Replacement lllinois Total

37803 769592
(352,865) (684,843)
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State of lllinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Transportation
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Rail
Grade Federal/ Freight
Motor Crossing Local Loan
Road Fuel Tax Protection Airport Repayment

Intergovernmental - 263,905 12,865
Other ‘ 32,634 » 9

Loans and notes receivable 720,908
Other assets 1,477
Total assets S 755174 § 270742 § 47279 § 15700 § 23,005

rnfhss okl 15 R R R R
Accounts payable and accrued i 93,326 §
Intergovemmental payables 11,377 937 282
Due to other funds 6

Reserved for:

Loans and notes receivable

Inventories 23,271
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State
Public Construction
Transportation Account Total

20,908
1,477
s 34,247 $ 265778 § 1,411,925

$ 34124 § 149807
$ 34247 710 106,561
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
Department of Transportation

For the Year Ended June 30, 1936 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Rail
Grade Federal/ Freight
Motor Crossing Local Loan
Road Fuel Tax Protection Airport Repayment

REVENUES
p otor fud

B h)

interest and other investment income 24,017 s 654
Other 57,576 39,606
Total revenues 1,060,657 1,166,940 138,657 654
) e

Education ' B B 537
General government . 183,759 50,849 :
Transportation 1,089,396 471,243 § 20,054 138,760

fo

Capital outlays
Total expenditures

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Operating transfers-in 409,906 86,532 18,000 266 4,836
ok e g s bt d

A RN . SRR VA
ot other sources (uses) of

financial resources 208,780 (645,516) 17.250 103 4,836

Fund balances, July 1, 1995 716,333 125,930 48,271 - 17,484
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State
Pubilic Construction
Transportation Account Total

7,880 '32,55%
97,182
295,318 2,652,226

167,459 477,645

37,349
477,645 2,702,119

167,459 274,470 27,382

e 138,797 1,046,815

——— e ne p——
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State of Mlinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

State Board of Education
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Special Federal Federal
Education Department  Department
Drivers Medicaid of of
Education Matching Agriculture Education Total

Due from other funds 1,816 20 1,836
Due from component units 97 97

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 5 $ $ 3378 $ 14794
tedutti s Avhid 5 : o A

Total liabilities 31,510 . 18,577 46,634 32,019 128,740
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
) *for ket

" Unreserved, undesignated (14,428) ‘ 56)  (11,185)  (28,869)
Total fund balances (defictt) (14,426) g 2,013 —= (12,413)
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 17,084 _§ 18577 § 48647 § 32019 § 116327
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State gf Illinols

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

State Board of Education
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Special Federal Federal
. Education Department  Department
Drivers Medicaid of of
Education Matching Agriculture Education Total

Total revenues : 16,628 67,127 316,319 539,170 §39,244

EXPENDITURES

Principal 4 4
Capital outlays 12 100 287 399
Total expenditures 16,361 67,127 316,391 529,553 929,432

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Operaﬁng transfers-out

sy

an_ . 6% (5.69%)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures and other

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), JUNE 30, 1996 $ (14426) § —-= $ 2013 § - $ (12,413)
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The Debt Service Funds are maintained to account for resources obtained
and accumulated to pay interest and principal on general long-term
obligations.






SIGNIFICANT DEBT SERVICE FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

A i ) erest Fund—to account for payments of principal and interest
related to general obllgatmn bonds These bonds provide financing for the protection of the environment
within the State; the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, extension and improvement of highways; the
acquisition, construction, reconstruction and improvement of capital projects; the construction of facilities
leased back to the State; and the development of mass transportation and aviation systems within the

State.

Department of Central Management Services
ESCO COP Debt Service Fund--to account for the payment of pnnmpal and interest upon certificates of
participation issued to finance energy service agreements at various sites within the State.

Department of Commerce and Community Affairs

Illinois Civic Center Bond Retirement and Interest Fund--to account for the payment of principal and

interest upon bonds issued to finance the construction of local civic centers. Funding consists of transfers
from the Metropolitan Exposition Auditorium and Office Building Fund and investment income.

Capital Development Board

Public Building/Debt Service Fund--to account for the payment of principal and interest on debt issued to
finance improvements related to existing or planned improvements in building infrastructure.

Bureau of the Budget

Build Tlinois Bond Retirement and Interest Fund-to account for the payment of principal and interest

upon bonds issued to finance improvements related to existing or planned scientific research,
manufacturing or industrial development or expansion in Illinois. Funding consists of transfers from the
Build Ilinois Fund and investment income.

Hlinois Student Assistance Commission

ISAC COP Debt Service Fund—to account for the payment of principal and interest upon certificates of
participation issued to finance improvements related to existing or planned improvements in building

infrastructure.
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State of lllinois

Combining Balance Sheet

‘Debt Service Funds
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Central Commerce and Capital
Treasurer Management Community Bureauof  Development
General Services Affairs the Budget Board
Obligation ESCO COP Civic Center  Build lilinois

BR&I Debt Service BR&I BR &1 Public Building

pbubdcksbormm i

Intergove-;nm:ntal 2
Other

Loans and notes receivable
,ﬁ?" S

Due to other funds $ 10
Due to component units $ 884

i
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 392,721 § 2682 § 22586 $ 109512 § 234
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Ilinois Student
Assistance
Commission
COP Debt
Service Other Total

2,129
25,500
$ 530,880

$ 2259 § 886 § 530,880
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State of Nllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Debt Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Central Commerce and Capital
Treasurer Management Community Bureau of Development
General Services Affairs the Budget Board
Obligation ESCO COP Civic Center  Build lllinois
BR&I Debt Service BR&I BR&I Public Buikding

Other ' T a5 2237 § 60
Total revenues 25437 167 879 11,611 60

Debt service:
Principal 380,176 3,165 56,739
Interest 248,272

over {under) expenditu

o

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Operating transfers-out ' ' ' (95)
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (318,040)
Net other sources (uses) of

" (under) expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources 72,793 52 991 8,467 -

Fund balances, July 1, 1995, as restated 319928 1746 31,565 100,045  ——
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1996 $ 392721 $ 1,798 § 22586 § 100512 § o
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lllinois Student
Assistance
Commission
COP Debt
Service Qther Total

2,177 4,508
2,438 36 40,628

(48,252)
(318,040)

2,259 886 86,448

e &
— - 443,314

$ 2259 § 886 $ 529,762
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects Funds are maintained to account for the acquisition
and/or construction of major capital facilities.



SIGNIFICANT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Department of Central Management Services
ESCO COP Capital Projects Fund—-to account for proceeds from issuance of certificates of participation for
energy service agreements at various sites within the State. Also to receive lease payments from other State

agencies for the agreements.

DPA COP Capital Projects Fund--to account for proceeds from the issuance of certificates of participation for
the construction and purchase of a building for use by the Department of Public Aid.

EPA COP Capital Projects Fund--to account for proceeds from the issuance of certificates of participation for
the purchase and renovation of a building for use by the Environmental Protection Agency.

Department of Commerce and Community Affairs
Build [llinois Bond Fupd--te account for the proceeds of bond sales from the Build Illinois Bond Program.
The proceeds are used to finance improvements related to scientific research, manufacturing, and industrial
development or expansion.

Department of Transportation »
Transportation Bond Series A Fund—to provide funds through the sale of bond issues for State highway

acquisition, construction, reconstruction, extension and improvements, including the repair and
reconstruction of unsafe and substandard bridges on roads maintained by counties, municipalities,
townships and road districts.

Transportation Bond Series B Fund-to provide funds through the sale of bond issues for mass

transportation and aviation purposes including, but not limited to, the acquisition of mass transportation
equipment, including rail and bus and other equipment for counties under the Regional Transportation

Authority.

Bureau of the Budget

Series FY95a COP Capital Projects Fund—to account for proceeds from the issuance of certificates of

participation for the construction and lease purchase of correctional facilities within the State.

Series FY96a COP Capital Projects Fund-—-to account for proceeds from the issuance of certificates of

participation for the construction and lease purchase of correctional facilities within the State.

Capital Development Board
Capital Development Fund-to account for proceeds from bond issues and disbursements for capital
development projects within the State.

i : ) ibutory Trust Fund--to account for local, state and federal funding for the
constructmn and remodehng of bmldmgs, and the purchase of land and equipment in connection with the
various contributing educational institutions, State departments and agencies as authorized by law.
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State of lllinoils

Combining Balance Sheet

Capital Projects Funds
June 30, 1996 (Expressad in Thousands)

Departments Agencies, Boards and Auth.
Commerce & Central Bureau Capital
Community Management of the Development
Affairs Services Transportation  Budget Board
Build
inois
Bond . Other Total

Intergovemmental 5,016 | 5,016
Other 85 85
Due from component units 8,632 ' 8,632

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 8558 $ 7,946 $ 241 $ 57466 § 1014 $ 75225
Intergovernmental payables 6,61§ 189 8,209

Total liabilities 15.181 10,520 241 54,561 1,203 91.706

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

for

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 46964 $ 48117 $ 64757 $ 37914 $ 98675 $ 12,112 § 308,539
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Capital Projects Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Departments Agencies, Boards and Authorities
Commerce & Central Bureau Capital
Community Management of the Development
Affairs Services Transportation Budget Board
Build
Iilinois
Bond - Other Total

EXPENDITURES

Transportation 977 7§ 178,601 | ‘ 80,826
Natural resources and recreation 30,808 9,639 1 40,448
Capital ouﬂayg _ _ \ 570 14,526 191,936 51 207,083

over (under) expendi

res (20,334) (178,601) 344 (240.661)  (11,426)  (494,290)
OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF '

Operating transfers-out (10) - (473) (315) (816} 1) (7,000) (8,635)
Operating

transfers to component units {36,559) (81,305) (3,815 (121,679)
ﬁﬁtw&;&rﬁ-»»wﬁvww s sy - ” o e v 4 ; :

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures and net other
tinancial resourcas

Mf&ka,bxﬁw/ﬁm»mim.m 3 il o Eote AR AR ?u‘;am S X i 8 i 7 LR ﬁ& :
previously reported 32,704 15,912 20,669 (59,581) 11,572 21,276
Restatement/reclassification of fund balance _ 8_84 _ _ 884
Fund balances (deficit), July 1, 1995, as restated 32,704 16,796 20,669 - ~ (59,581) 11,572 22,160
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1996 $ 31783 § 48117 $ 54237 § 37673 $ 34114 $ 10,909 $ 216,833
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State gf’ Hlinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Capital Projects Funds
Department of Central Management Services
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

ESCO COP DPA COP EPA COP
Capital Capital Capital
Projects Projects - Projects Total

Due from component units 8,632 ‘ " T 8,632
Total assets $ 10605 $ 19272 § 18,240 § 48,117

m.\a.w «c..Es i & R S AR S T ARG S BRI o AR,
“Unreserved, undesignated I $ 10605 $ 19272 § 18240 48117
Total fund balances 10,605 19,272 18,240 48,117
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State q=f Nlinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Capital Projects Funds

Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

ESCO copP DPA COP EPA COP
Capital Capital Capital
Projects Projects - Projects Total

Current.
General government 179 . 137

Excess ?deﬁcie'ﬁ@cm;) 6?‘ revenues
over (under) expenditures (6,033) 92 (14,453) (20,3%4)

Proceeds from certificates of participation - ’ i 14 32,603 51,907
Net other sources (uses) of
financial resources (158) 19,180

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1996 $ 10605 $ 19,272 § 18240 $ 48,117
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State of lllinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Capital Projects Funds

Department of Transportation
June 30, 1936 (Expressed in Thousands)

_ Transportation
Bond Bond
Series-A Series-B Total

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 4500 § 3446 § 7.846
Intergovemmental payables
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State of Hlinols

Combining Statement of Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Capital Projects Funds

Department of Transportation
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Transportation
Bond Bond
Series-A’ Series-B Total

EXPENDITURES

(Deficiency) of revenues
(under) expenditures ) ‘ ‘ (86,671) (91,930) {178,601)

obligation bond issues ' 101,390 111,094 212,484
Operating transfers-out (315) (315)
Net other sources (uses) of

“and net other sources (uses) :
of financial resources 14,719 18,849 33,568
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State of Hlinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Capital Projects Funds
Bureau of the Budget
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Series FY95a Series FY96a
COP Capital  COP Capital
Projects - Projects Total

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
A o P s oy

ofal

ities

Unreserved, undesignated
Total fund balances
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Capital Projects Funds
Bureau of the Budget

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Series FY95a Series FY9%a
COP Capital  COP Capital
Projects Projects Total

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 401 108 509

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 401 (57) 344

RN

:ilm sources (uses) of
financial resources 19,940 17,389 37,329
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State of Hlinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Capital Projects Funds
Capital Development Board
June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

CDB
Capital Contributory
Development Trust Total

A 00

nd balan ) -— 34,114

Total fu

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 88030 $ 10645 § 98,675

124



State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Capital Projects Funds

Capital Development Board
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

CDB
Capital Contributory
Development Trust Total

Total revenues 1 18,674

EXPENDITURES

[ virre? gy

SRR R G S e e e R & % w A i I

Transpori%iiori - } 248 248

Natural resources and recreation 9,639 9,639

Capital outlays 191,346 590 191,936
e m e o . o - - Sw—— — —————

i -mmwxs!oncy revenues , &
over {under) expenditures (241,235) 5§74 © (240,661)

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
BrieseE Uspecial

Operating transfers to component units o : ' T 80752) (553)  (81,305)
Net other sources {uses) of
financial resources » 334,930 334,356

i byt w-w\g«gwd mm R %g ¥
sources (uses) of financial resources 93,695 93,695
Fund balance (deficit), July 1, 1995 (59,581) - (59,581)
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are maintained to account for the operations where the
intent of the State is to provide services to the general public in a manner
similar to private business enterprises.



SIGNIFICANT ENTERPRISE FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Attorney Registration and Disciplinary Commission
Operating Fund--to account for the activities of the Commission which include maintaining a master listing

of licensed attorneys and investigating and prosecuting complaints against Illinois attorneys.

Department of Central Management Services
Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund-—to provide health and dental insurance to participating

local government entities. Premiums are collected from units of local government and the insurance plan is
administered by private companies.

Teacher Health Insurance Security Fund--to provide health benefits for the _Teachers’ Retirement System

recipient and dependent beneficiaries.

Department of Insurance
Office of the Special Deputy Receiver—to account for certain activities of the special deputy appointed by the
director of the Department of Insurance. The special deputy is empowered to manage the affairs of

insurance companies placed in conservation, rehabilitation or liquidation.

Department of Lottery
State Lottery Fupd-to account for all receipts and expenses from the operation of the State Lottery. The
net proceeds are transferred to the General Fund.

~ Student Assistance Commission

Designated Account Purchase Program Fund-to account for bond proceeds used to purchase defaulted

loans from lenders. Revenue is generated primarily from investment income and bond proceeds.

Illinois Opportunity Loan Program Fund--to account for a direct loan program that assists full-time Illinois

college students.
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State of Hllinois

Combining Balance Sheet

Enterprise Funds

June 30, 1396 (Expressed in Thousands)
Departments Agencies,
Central Boards and
Management Commissions
Services Insurance Lottery Student
~Office of Assistance
the Special State Commision
Deputy Lottery :
Receiver Fund Other Total
ASSETS

intergovemmentai 661 7101 7762
Other 4,350 1,537 16,213 6304 4,352 32,756
Due from other fun 16,108 243 16,351

S

o AR bt il : el
Restricted assets ($103,011 cash equivalents) 107,912 107,912
Total current assets 40,716 1,951 60,839 170,355 26,462 300,323

Pwrg‘;értmlant and equipment, net T 824 T3 2,235 4,428
Other assets 3 3
Total assets $ 40,716 $ 1954 $ 137433 §$ 1046753 § 35220 $§ 1,262,076
e S ] 4 i : : Py B . .‘ i - - g . it e———

y i

" Accounts payable and accrued fiabilities 14595 $ 1527 § 21150 § 13595 & 40979 $ 55,846
Intergovernmental payables 2 2 4

Due to other funds 83 1591 7 334

91 5,045
‘revent 421 5

14,045 036
14,749 1,954 39.214 365,857 20,799 442,573

FUND EQUITY
Retqined earnings:

Unreserved 25,967 7.012 14,413 47,392
Total fund equity 25,967 23,393 76,913 14,413 140,686
Total liabilities and fund equity $ 40716 $ 1954 §$ 137433 § 1,046,753 § 35220 $ 1,262,076
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State of Nllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Retained Earnings - Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Bepartrnents Agencies,
Central Boards and
Management Commissions
Services Insurance Lottery Student
Office of Assistance
the Special State Commission
Deputy Lottery '
Receiver Fund Other Total

Other B 3173 26,412 358 485 30,428
Total operating revenues 126,424 45,884 1,609,181 74,264 55,216 1,910,969

Prizes and ¢laims 835,968 838,968
Interest 49,285

General and administrative

perating expenses

Operating income (loss) 18,304 603,642 9,438 {(998) 630,386
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State of Hlinols

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Enterprise Funds
For the Year Endled June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Department Agenaes,
Central Boards and
Management Commissions
Services Insurance Lottery ~ Student
Assistance
the Special State Commision
Deputy Lottery
Receiver Fund Other Total

\ 143,064
Cash paymems for other operating activibes (806211)  (216675) (6.404)  (1,029,290)

4,349 543,463

Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities (799) (7.300) (830) (8,929)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AC"I'NITIES

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1.016 — 24857 (278) 25595

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 25,175 41 4272 46,834 1,579 77,901

YCASHANDCASHEQUNALENTS,JUNEM 199

Recomillaﬂonofopenﬂngme(loss)tonetash

s it i o iy %@mmam A A R : i 5 3 2 F A SR r”

(Increase) decrease i inventory (536) (24) (560)
{Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 60 124 184
lmw(m) in m W and aeu;g_ed Ilabims 9,906 (735) 2475 (578) 2791 13,859
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State of Illinols

Combining Balance Sheet - Enterprise Funds

Department of Central Management Services
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands) .

Local
Government Teacher
Health Heatth
Insurance Insurance
Reserve Security Total

Total current assets 14,652 26,064 40,716
Total assets $ 14652 § 26,064 § 40,716

Y0 ana.d biites. S i 43 $ 1025
Intergovemmental payables ' 1 1 2
Due to other funds 26 57 83
Other ki

FUND EQUITY

Retained earnings, unreserved 10,258
_'!'ghl fund equity " 10,258

e e Sy

jabllities

4,652
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings - Enterprise Funds
Department of Central Management Services

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Local
Govemment Teacher
Health Health
Insurance Insurance
Reserve Security Total

OPERATING REVENUES

perating revenues

Total o 36,202 90.222

OPERATING EXPENS

RS

A i o v i A
Net income

Retained eamings, July 1, 1995
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds

Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

Local
Govemment Teacher
Health Heaith
Insurance Insurance
Reserve Security Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provuded by operatmg actlvmes 2,332 21.827 24,159
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dmdends oni lnvesnnents ) ' o o 557 459 1,016

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the balance sheet:
Total cash and cash equivalents per the balance sheet $ 13419 § 2286 $ 35,705
Add restnded wsh equnvalenw

‘ provlded by opentmg activltios'

Operating income $ 3,132 § 15172 § 18,304
Adjustments to reeoncule operatmg income to net cash

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued fiabilities - (353) 10,259 9,906
Increase (decrease) in intergovernmental payables 1 1
Increase (decrease) in due to o;r]er funds - 6 57
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State of lllinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Enterprise Funds

Student Assistance Commission
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Designated
Account Opportunity
Purchase Loan
Program Program Total

ASSETS

Intergovemmental ' . s : 7101 T
) 5,539 765 6,304
Prepaid expe 38 325 263

s s i

Loans and notes receivable 666,917 28,961 696,878
Restricted assets 179,151 179,151

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 13,595 $ 13,595

Other liabilities ' ' ' ' 936 936
Total current liabilities 361,256 4,601 365,857

FUND EQUITY
Retained eamings :
Reserved for:

Total fund equity T ' 71,134 5779 . 76913
Total liabilities and fund equity $ 099432 § 47321 S 1046753
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State of llinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings - Enterprise Funds
Student Assistance Commission

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 {(Expressed in Thousands)

Designated
Account Opportunity
Purchase Loan
Program Program Total

OPERATING REVENUES
S AR gy

OPERATING EXPENSES
Costs of sales and services 655 655

SRS O R A R

Othe ' 1,352 1,352
Total operating expenses 64,171 655 64,826

717
(2,941)
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds

Student Assistance Commission
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Designated
Account Opportunity
Purchase Loan
Program Program Total

CASH FLO\I‘{S FROM OPERATING ACTIVI'I1ES ‘

Cash payments for other operating activities 16,675) {21 6,%%5)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (101,009) 8,895 (92,114)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Operating tmnsfers-out to other funds ‘ (511) (511)
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 123,943 (2,552) 121,391

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH'. FLows FROM INVESTING ACTMTIES |
Purchase of investment securities (152,956) (5,226) (158,182)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of mvestment securities : 175,637 6,663 182,300

1,329
4,269

Reconclliation of cash and cash equivalents to the balance sheet:
Total cash and cash equivalents per the balance sheet $ $ 5598 §$ 25,195

Reconciliation of openg income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income .

A R e R S £ Fie éggm"v
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (107,106) 6,505 (100,601)
(Increase) decrease in pregiid expenses (1__) 125 124
Total adjustments ) (108,182) 6.630 (101,552)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (101,009) § 8895 5  (32.114)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are maintained to account for the operations of state
agencies which render services to other state agencies or governmental
units on a cost-reimbursement basis.



SIGNIFICANT INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Central Management Services
State Garage Revolving Fund—to account for the operation and maintenance of State garages including the
servicing and repair of all automotive equipment owned or controlled by the State. Revenues consist of

charges to user agencies.

Statistical Services Revolving Fund-to account for the purchase, maintenance and operation of electronic

data processing and information devices used by State agencies. Revenues consist of charges from the user
agencies.

Communications Revolving Fund--to account for the expenses related to telecommunications services for State
agencies. Revenues consist of reimbursements from user agencies.

Health Insurance Reserve Fund--to account for the self-insurance medical and dental plan for State

employees and qualified dependents. This fund records all contributions, appropriations, interest,
dividends and expenses related to the plan.

Department of Corrections

Working Capital Revolving Fund—-to account for the income and expenses associated with the industrial
operations at the several State institutions. :
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State q_fIIIinais

Combining Balance Sheet
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

Departments
Central
Management
Services Corrections
Working
Capital
_ Revolving Other Total

Other " 1,299 729 26 2 054
Due from other funds 140,546 3,688 486 144,720

R A ok R AT 0730

Restricted assets
Property, plant and equipment, net

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 148343 § 4499 3% 407 $ 153,249

Intergovemmental payables 73 29 102
m M- o 2 i 3 A s v s . s

"Total current iiabilities ' ' 170,299 6,529 1136 177,964

Other obugattops ( 17 10,928

D EQ L L o . .

Contributed capital 9,292 8,966 702 18,960

Retained eamings, unreserved 51,574 14,126 1,457 67,157
Total fund aquity 60,866 23,092 2,159- 86,1 17_
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State of Illinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings

Internal Services Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 {Expressed in Thousands)

Departments
Central
Management
Services Corrections
Working
Capital
Revolving - Other Total

OPERATING REVENUES
sl ¢ e ST

896,192

Total operating revenues ‘ 849,891 40,494 5,807

OPERATING EXPENSES

General and administrative

Income (ioss) before operating transfers 175,245 {1,149) (359) 173,737

RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1996 $ 51,574 § 14,126 $ 1457 § 67,157
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State of Hlinols

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Depariments
central
Management
Services Corrections
Working
Capital
Revolving Other Total

CASH FLOWS FROM ORERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipis fom other operating activiies : '
Cash payments for other operating activities (982) (1,748)

Net cash provided by operating activities 0 5 873 133,521

Operating transfers to component units
Operating tansfers to primary government (1,094)
Other noncapital financing activities - 245

26) (19,483)
Interest paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts

ther mpual and related financing actmbes

Net cash provnded by mveshng achvmes
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

‘Adjustments to recondiie operating
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 15,562 1,581 62 17,205

(88,687) 1.81 (86,131)

(Increase) decrease in due from component units 551 8 5 564
(Increase) decrease in inventory 8 (480) 303 (95)

Sy decraas o s

(119) 51

Increase (decrease) in due to component units 70) {70)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues 3) @)
ity =a - ilbe: . — ——
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State of linols

Combining Balance Sheet - Internal Service Funds
Department of Central Management Services
June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

State Statistical Commun- Health
Garage Services ications Insurance
Revolving Revolving Revolving Reserve Total

Due from other funds 6,196 16,124 17,800 100,426 - 140,546
Due from component units 15 23 2,267 5,259

Restricted assets 108
Property, plant and equipment, net 15,841 30,020
e T T o T T T T T TR ——— S ————

s ; AR

UABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 657 $ 5925 $ 16162 $ 119699 $ 148,343
lntergovemrpenhl payables 25 49 7 73

Total current liabilities 9,486 16,602 23,348 120,863 170,299
Other cbligations 2103 4154 4,654 10,011

Ql 5
Contributed capital A
Retained eamings, unreserved 1,203
Total fund equity

28,741 51,574
28,798
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings - Internal Service Funds

Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Statistical Commun- Health
Garage Services ications Insurance
Revolving Revolving Revolving Reserve Total

849,891
OPERATING EXPENSES
Costs of sales and services 21,805 44 409 72,5877 138,791
TR ey sy NN RO SRAG ) e o gtz S 2 o SRisc sec s e i i N 2 m;vw

4,008
Other 1,026 6,768
: 29.101 88,752

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 74 1,697 1,771

4,810

168,988

175,245

(168,988)

(168,988)

Retained eamings, July 1, 1995 1325 20,061 23,931 e 45317

RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1996 $ 1,203 $ 21630 $ 28741 $ —-— $ 51,574
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State of Hlinols

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Internal Service Funds

Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

State Statistical Health
Garage Services Communications Insurance
Revolving  Revolving Revolving Reserve Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVI“ES

Cash payments for other operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities

'RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (141) (1,027) (1,515) (2,683)
Principal paid on bond matuntm and equxpment contxacts (632) (10,554) (8,271) (19,457)

N
CASH FLOWS FROM lNVESTING ACTMTIES
Interest and dividends on investments 74 1,741 1,815

Net cash provnded by investing actlvmes _ 74 1,741 1,815

77,021 121,026
17,870 $ 62,936

1.1
24869 $

2,716 § 17,481

$

provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (235) $ 3471 § 6080 § 167291 $ 176607
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash

Chang&eismln assets énd liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (68) 1,399 2,781 561 4,673
(Inclease) decrease in due from other funds (593) (2,140) 201 (86,155) (88,687)
s — & O s i - o~ el
increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,029 (8,156) 27,288 18,688
Increase (decrease) in intergovemnmental payables 1 (44) (59)
Increase (decrease) in due to other lugds 245 (§§) (910) (119)

R R SN R O R R RO R prE R A T e ——————————————————: S tttit—tte— . ———_—-——
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $§ 2301 § 5434 § 14271 § 108,096 § 130,102
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

Trust and Agency Funds are maintained to account for assets held by the
State acting in the capacity of trustee or agent.



SIGNIFICANT TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS:

Office of the Attorney General
Consumer Trust Fund--to account for court ordered restitution and penalties received by the Office of the
Attorney General as receiver under the Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act.

Department of Employment Security .
i —to provide for unemployment insurance benefit claims.

Funding is through employer contributions and Federal Unemployment Trust advances.

Department of Financial Institutions

Unclaimed Property Trust Fund-to receive specified proceeds from the sale of abandoned property and to
pay claims related to such property.

Industrial Commission _
Self-Insurers Security Fund—to cover claims for compensation made on self-insured employers with respect to

employment related injuries and diseases.

STATE PENSION FUNDS:
See Note 10 on page 42 for description of pension funds.

AGENCY FUNDS:
Treasurer

Public Treasurers' Investment Pool Fund-—to hold and invest public funds deposited by local Treasurers to

enhance investment opportunities - in effect a mutual fund.

Department of Central Management Services
Deferred Compensation Plan Fund-to defer gross compensation of any State employee and invest the funds

until retirement, death or extreme hardship.

Department of Insurance
Security Deposit Fupd--to hold securities on deposit by domestic and certain foreign domiciled insurance
companies in the State for protection of all policyholders, policy obligations and creditors of the companies.

Department of Lottery

Deferred Lottery Prize Winpers Trust Fund--to hold the proceeds of investments that will be paid to Ilinois

State Lottery prize winners. Investment contracts are executed by the State Treasurer with the State
Lottery Director's approval in a manner which ensures the timely payment to prize winners.
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet
Trust and Agency Funds
June 30, 1996 (Expressad in Thousands)

Trust Agency
Non-
Expendable
Expendable Other Pension Total

Taxes 311,286
Intergovemmental 12,720
Other - 17 1 ,222.098
,_":.t.y . Yot e : o
assets 933,437 933,437
Total assets $ 1999840 $ 3342 § 25,746,392 §& 6487577 § 34,237,151

ceounts payable and accrued liabilit 43, H 518,
Intergovernmental payables 2837 § [ 2,480,597 2,483,540
Due to other funds 4,049 185 83,230 87,464
Due to component units 58 58

" Total liabllities 51,937 12 6,487,577 8,701,555
FUND BALANCES

Net assots available for plan benefits 23,584,663 23,584,663
Other 1,312 1,312
Unreserved, undesignated 18,351 3,330 21,681
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet
Expendable Trust Funds
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agencies, -
Elected Boards and
Officials Departments Authorities
Attomey Employment  Financial  Industrial
General Security Institutions Commission

Consumer Unemployment Unclaimed Self-Insured
Trust Compensation Property Employers'
Fund Trust Trust Liability Other Total

Taxes
Intergovernmental

Due to component units

Deferred revenues 2,259
bilities

Encumbrances 225 70 295
Unemployment compensation benefits . ) 1,927,945 1,927,845

89 40

$ 8017 § 11690 § 1999830
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State gj‘ltlinoz'.s'

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses
of Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Expendable Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agencies,
Elected Boards and
Officials Departments Authorities
Attomey  Employment Financial Industrial
General Security Institutions Commission

Unemployment Unclaimed Self-insured
Consumer Compensation Property Employers'
Trust Trust Trust Liability Other Total

35856
1,376,986

340 1,338,870

General govemr'}tment 3,605

Social assistance 1,286,105 2,005 701 1,288,811

Public protection and justice 455 455
A . " S,

it

Excess (deficiency) of revenues .
over (under) expenditures 52,765 29,857 (314) 1,570 83,878
2678
Operating transfers-out (12,969) (29,724) (2,114) (44,807)
Net other sources (uses) of

financial resources {12,969) (29,724) 564 (42,129)

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1996 $§ —— $ 1927945 $ 4116 $ 4,896 $ 10946 $ 1,947,903
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State of lllinols

Combining Balance Sheet
Pension Trust Funds
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

General State State
Assembly Judges’ Employees’ Teachers' Universities
Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement

System System System System System

Due from component units 2,945
Property, plant and eqtﬂpment, net

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued lisbilities $ 29 § 170 § 5135 § 614764 § 8,768

Due to other funds - 59 18 89 7 19

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for net assets
ailable Tor pian b
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State
Board of
Investment’ Eliminations Total

$ 25,746,392
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State of llinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Balances

Pension Trust Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1896 (Expressed in Thousands)

General State State
Assembly Judges' Employees' Teachers' Universities
Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement

System System System - System System

OPERATING REVENUES

¢ _ 3 :
5,671 30,320 1,554,117 477,654
Total operating revenues 9,212 52,235 845,387 2,342,563 822,027

General and administrative
Depreciation

Fund balances, July 1, 1895 40,698 214,104 3,923,097 12,641,865 4,674,200
—
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State
Board of
Investment Eliminations Total

$ 610644 §  (610,648) 2629527
610,644 (610,648) 4,071,420

T

15,510 (15,510) 21,021
8 8 2,163

150,718

153



State gf]llinois

Combining Balance Sheet
Agency Funds
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Elected
Officials Departments
Central
Treasurer Management Public
~Public . Services Insurance Lottery Aid

Treasurers' ~Employee's  Security  Defered Loftery Child Support
Investment Deferred Deposit Prize Winner's Enforcement
Pool Compensation Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund Other Total

66,904
Intergovernmental 1,905 1,905
Other 5,358 $ 577,593 50,244 633,195

Due to other funds 108 2 $ 147 82w§“73

83230
Depository and other liabilities _ 768,561 $ 906,335 1,511,239 $ 577,593 145,507 3,909,235
Total liabilities _ $2234612 § 768638 $ 906,335 $ 1,511,386 § 577,503 § 489,013 § 6,487,577
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State of Illinois

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
All Agency Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash Receivables Due From
and Cash Intergovem- Other
Equivalents Investments Taxes mental Other Funds
ORGANIZATION/FUND
Treasurer: )
Public Treasurers' Investment Pool
Balance July 1, 1995 $§ 1,929,193 $ 13,621
Additions 2,229,254 5,358
Deductions 1,929,193 13,621
Balance June 30, 1996 2,229,254 5,358
Central Management Services:
State Employees’ Deferred
Compensation Plan
Balance July 1, 1995 318 $ 620,969
Additions 83,412 279,131
Deductions 83,242 131,950
Balance June 30, 1996 488 768,150
Insurance:
Security Deposit
Balance July 1, 1995
Additions
Deductions
Balance June 30, 1996
Lottery:
Deferred Lottery Prize
Winners Trust
Balance July 1, 1995 4,341 1,448,565 24
Additions 172,763 234,895
Deductions 176,971 172,207 24
Balance June 30, 1996 133 1511,253 - =
Department of Public Aid:
Chiid Support Enforcement Trust
Balance July 1, 1995 . 545,905
Additions 124,696
Deductions 93,008
Balance June 30, 1996 577,593
Other:
Balance July 1, 1995 284,731 $ 73140 $ 1413 53,757 § 22635
Additions 2,329,327 66,904 1,898 150,140 20,336
Deductions 2,291,644 73,140 1,406 153,653 22,635
Balance June 30, 1996 322,414 66,904 1,905 50,244 20,336
Total-All Agency Funds:
Balance July 1, 1995 2,218,583 2,069,534 73,140 1,413 613,307 22,635
Additions 4,814,756 514,026 66,904 1,898 280,194 20,336
Deductions 4,481,050 304,157 73,140 1,406 260,306 22,635
Balance June 30, 1996 $ 2552280 §$ 2279403 $ 66904 $ 1905 $ 633195 $ 20336
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ASSETS (CONT.) LIABILITIES

Accounts Depository
Due From Payable Intergovern- Due To and
Component Other Total and Accrued mental Other Other Total
Units Assets Assets Liabilities Payables Funds Liabilities Liabilities

$ 1942814 $ 81 $ 1942628 § 105 $ 1942814
2,234,612 153 2,234,351 108 2234612
1,942,814 81 1,942,628 105 1,842,814
T 2234612 153~ 2,234.351 108 T 2,234,612
621,287 78 , $ 621209 621,287
362,543 75 2 279,061 279,138
215,192 78 131,709 131,787
768,638 75 2 768,561 768,638
$ 841,291 841,291 841,291 841,291
355,416 355,416 355,416 355416
290,372 290,372 290,372 290,372
906,335 906,335 906,335 906,335
1,452,930 105 1,452,825 1,452,930
407,658 4,642 230,621 235,263
349,202 4,600 172,207 176,807
T 1,511,386 147 1,511,239 1,511,386
124,696 124,696 124,696
93,008 93,008 93,008
577,593 T 577593 577,593
$ 120 13,871 449,667 13,394 253,807 90,630 91,836 449,667
108 18,186 2,586,899 27,813 907,142 206,841 322,176 1,463,972
120 4,955 2,547,553 26,920 914,703 214,498 268,505 1,424,626
108 27,102 489,013 14,287 246,246 82,973 145507 489,013
120 855,162 5,853,894 13,553 2,196,435 90,840 3,553,066 6,853,804
108 373,602 6,071,824 28,041 3,141,493 211,593 1,311,970 4,693,097
120 295,327 5.438,141 27,079 2,857,331 219,203 955,801 4,059,414

$ 108 § 933437 § 6487577 $ 14515 § 2480597 $ 83230 § 3,909,235 $ 6,487,577
——

—— SmeSEmSETYERES  SEE————  Al—— e ———— S——————  —————
e T ———— e e
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

General Fixed Assets Account Group is maintained to account for fixed
assets acquired or constructed for use by the State for general
governmental purposes. These include all fixed assets of the primary
government except those accounted for in the proprietary and fiduciary
fund types.



State of lllinols

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Deletions/ Balance
July 1, 1995 Additions  Net Transfers June 30, 1996

Land and fand improvements

REEh AR ren i Sttt trnbri

State of Hllinois _ 5
Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets

By Function
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

Balance Deletions/ Balance
Function July 1, 1895 Additions  Net Transfers June 30, 1996

General govermnment,
Pty o

Depamnemgwénd agem::es (3.619) 496,712_
Total general government (6,941) 877,079

Public protection and justice 1,307,851 41,764 (49,807) 1,399,422
Natpral resources and recreation 725,844 20.4?1 (23,797) 770,062

189,723 181,880
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State q_f Hlinois

Schedule of General Fixed Assets

By Function
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands) '

Land Buildings
and Land and Building
Function Total Iimprovements Improvements  Equipment

General govemment

: 2 6,4¢ 27
Departments and agencies 10 13,440 402,17
Total general govemment 877,079 19,928 677,716 179,435

979,636
266,197
pal

Public protection and justice
Natural resources and recreation
Ansportation

Toi;j Wgene{ra! ﬁed assefs
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GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group is maintained to account
for the State’s unmatured general obligation bonds, unfunded retirement
costs, and other long-term obligations.



State of Illinois

Schedule of Changes in General Long-Term Obligations
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Accrued General Special Other
Retirement Obligation Obligation Long-Term
Costs Bonds Bonds Obligations Total

BALANCE JULY 1, 1995 $ 9445652 $ 5291,793 § 1,852011 § 1,475,185 $ 18,064,641
e e s 5460 SS9UE0

;Debt issues 975,000 80,000 145475 1,200,475
Increase in lease and instaliment purchase obligations 126,41_1 2641

Principal reti[gamwems and terrninations (719,786) (63,985) (81,075) (864,846)

G

ey

g

161



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

162



COMPONENT UNITS

The Component Units Section includes legally separate organizations for
which the elected officials of the primary government are financially
accountable. It also includes certain other organizations because of the
nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government.



SIGNIFICANT COMPONENT UNITS DESCRIPTIONS

GOVERNMENTAL:

Illineis Grain Insurance Corporation-to promote the State's welfare by improving the economic stability of

agriculture.

is Fi —to provide a secure financial basis for and to furnish assistance to
the city of East St. Louis.

minQiS_QeJ@bmnﬂnLEinanQe_Anthgnﬂ—to provide funding for industrial, commercial and manufactlmng

development in areas of Illinois with critical unemployment.

Medical Center Commission~to combine the resources of diverse medical institutions to promote low cost
medical care in the City of Chicago, accelerate scientific research, improve dmgnostlc methods, and train health
care professionals.

PROPRIETARY:
rehensiv T Board--to prov1de an alternate market for health insurance for eligible

Illinois residents having a preexisting health condition.

inoi i —to make loans and issue notes and bonds for the acquisition,
construction and rehabilitation of housing and to make loans to encourage home ownership.

Illinois State Toll Highway Authority--to operate a toll highway system to promote the public welfare, and to
facilitate vehicular traffic by providing convenient, safe, modern and limited access highways within Illinois.

UNIVERSITY AND COLLEGE:
i —~to operate, manage, control and maintain Chicago State

Board of Trustees of Chicago State University:
University. The Board was created on January 1, 1996 with the dissolution of the Board of Governors of State
Colleges and Universities.

inoj ity-to operate, manage, control and maintain Eastern Illinois
University. The Board was created on January 1, 1996 with the dissolution of the Board of Governors of State
Colleges and Universities.

Board of Trustees of Western Illinois University-to operate, manage, control and maintain Western Illinois
University. The Board was created on January 1, 1996 with the dissolution of the Board of Governors of State
Colleges and Universities.

Board of Trustees of Illinojs State University-to operate, manage, control and maintain Illinois State
University. The Board was created on January 1, 1996 with the dissolution of the Board of Regents

Board of Trustees of Northern Illinois University--to operate, manage, control and maintain Northem Tllinois

University. The Board was created on January 1, 1996 with the dissolution of the Board of Regents.

inoi jvi —~to operate, manage, control and maintain Southern Mlinocis
University. The Board was created on July 1, 1949. Southern Illinois University consists of campuses at
Carbondale and Edwardsville. In addition, the University operates a medical school.

f Universi is~to manage the University of Illinois. The Board is a separately
elected body created by law on July 1, 1876. The University of Illinois consists of campuses at Champaign-
Urbana and Chicago. In addition, the university operates a medical school.
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State of Illinois

Combining Balance Sheet - Component Units

All Fund Types and Account Groups
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental  Proprietary

Fund Types Fund Types University and College Funds
Chicago Eastem Westemn
2 State Hlinois lllinois

University University University

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Receivable
“intergovernmental 8,425 45,655 3,283
Other : 289 41,700 2,807 8,486 5,619

Due from other funds . =] 19,689 2,34? 12

L 6ans and notes receivabie 71,292 1,488,065 858 3.821 “1.834

Restricted assets ($41,738 cash equivalents) 425 382,228

Property, plant and equipment, net 4,453 1,773,476 100,412 162,267 222,754
e AP TR 4 i x R n "

Liabilities payable from restricted assets 28,401
Other liabilities 47 131,857 161 866 301

“Total liabilities 2,705 3,330,376 43,061 75,555 72507

EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

Long-term portion of:
Intergovemmenhl and other recelvables

Unreserved:
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University and College Funds (continued)

Tiiinois Northermn Southern University Non-Major -
State Winois Hiinois of Component
University University University Ninois Units Total

344 2,445 1,843 61,995
4,943 7,830 21,729 64,509 4,055 161,867
323 : 11,29 10 41,415

Eee e 4 EkEi 3 ;026

9,357 7,165 14,055 52,831 4,258 1,653,537

6,824 389,477

364.471 433,589 773,114 2,891,362 185,160 6,911,058
AT S 51 1417 4

782
102,639

m‘ ARG
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State of Hlinois

Combining Balance Sheet

Component Units - Governmental Funds
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Winois East St. Louis

Grain Financial  Development  Housing Medical Non-Major
Insurance Advisory Finance Development Center  Component
Corporation  Authority Authority Authority . Commission Units Total

ASSETS

eceivab . .‘
Intergovemmental 2,323 4,600 1,502 78,425
Other . 24 143 122 289
Due from other funds - 91 91

assets ‘ ‘ 425 425

SR ed

Property, plant and equipment, net 213 4,453
Other assets 1 55

“Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,400 $ 37 $§ 45 § 1,812
Due to other funds $ 1 s 659 81 751
Dge fo primarﬂym government : 4 4

Total liabilities

FUND EQUITY
investment in fixed assets 4,240 213 4,453

Irowﬁg-te;rn péFﬁon of:
Intergovernmental and other receivables $ 1,587 4,600
anns and notes receivable 68,299

gt

e e S e .

Unreserved, undesignated 1,956 2,564 i 35,479 390 623 41,130
Total fund equity 155 7,151 4716 115,144 272 B47 131,542

Total liabilities and fund equity $ 33% § 4151 % 4719 % 1158035 532% S 892§ 1247
e —— - _ e —— =
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State of Mllinols

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Component Units - Governmental Funds
For the Yaar Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
under) expendi and net

Ersvssgy 2 A S AP SN
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State of lllinois

Combining Balance Sheet
Component Units - Proprietary Funds
June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Comprehensive
Health Housing State Toll Non-Major
Insurance Development Highway Component
Board Authority Authority Units Total

Loans and notes receivable, curent 26,548 - 729 27,277
Restricted assets ($41,738 cash equivalents) 23,451 41,657 786 65,894

Total current assets 67,281 405,204 435,099 93,871 1,001,455

NOES IRCeva 3580

Restm:led assets 162,815 140,405 13,114 316,334
Property, plant and equipment, net 123 747 1,769,800 2,806 1,773,476
Othfmssets _ 74,041 6 74,047
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 309 § 80,311  § 45691 § 610 $ 129,708
Intergovemmental payables 2,304 2,304
Due to other funds 14,519 4,509 19,028

; R T ity ik furttan : SRR X e 2 Ry A Fdetot
Notes payable current 600 600
Revenue bonds payable, current 30,790 27,390 2,130 60,310
Other llabilitis o 10,484 1 19 416 290 1,667 131,857

Revenue bonds payable
Other obligations
Total liabilities

TR . EOTEETG ZM}' :
Retained eamings:

Reserved for:
Rgve:me bond and note retirement 80,287 140,440 1,028 221 755

otal fun 33t 6! 12,8 i
Total Iiabiliiies and fund equity $ $ 2308199 §$ 2 ,373 $ 118 795 $ 4929702




State of Illinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings

Component Units - Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Fxpressed in Thousands)

Comprehensive
Health Housing State Toll Non-Major
Insurance Development Highway Component
Board Authority Authority - Units Total

“Total operating revenues 18.976 328.414 9641 682341

OPERATING EXPENSES

General and administrative
Depreciation
Other
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State of Illinois

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Component Units - Proprietary Funds
ForﬁnYurEndodJum:O,ﬁOﬂExptmed!ndes)

Health Housing State Toll Non-Major
Insurance Development Highway Component
Board Authority Authority Units Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
E Teceived Kom Sales

Cash receipts from cther operating activities 2,502,350 . , 2.5
Cash payments for other operating activities (2,766,555) (69,012) (9,823) ,845,390)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activites {15,505) (11.388) 72875 (3.595) 41.2%

wNet’E”s“ﬁ”ﬁwndedbynu‘ucapﬂalfmam actlvmes ' e — 10,725 v g: .
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

o g e

(179) %(137.'1'7‘7)

Reeondlhbonofcashandmhoqummmmbalmsheﬂ:
Total ﬁﬁw“gng per the balance sheet

Reconciliation of opelahng income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operahng income (loss)

ncTedse (decn : § ‘ 80
increase (decrease) in defested revenues (112) (112
Increase (decrease) in other Rabiliies . 490 4770 5,260

f st i e b it

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTMITIES S (15805 §  (11888) § 72875 § (3346 S a12%
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BUDGETARY SCHEDULES

Budgetary Schedules provide a comparison of the legally adopted
budgeted amounts with actual results of operations on a budgetary (Non-
GAAP) basis.
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State of Illinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

General Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

General Revenue Special Account
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

REVENUES:

Federal govemment 3,078,000 3,257,726 179.726
Othe 1,132,000 1,142,937 10,837
Less:

AR bkl st ARy 4 & S R R R ROS 4 2 AN &
Social assistance ) 1,505,354 1,466,753 (38,601)
Public protection and justice 1,207,071 1,189,530 (17,541)
Natural resources and recreation 111,270 110,605 (665)

Excess (deficlency) o
over (under) expenditures 1,101,976 1,584,188 482,212 1,225,000 1,193,720 (31,280)

o

(2,118,000)

AL

‘Budgetary fund balances {

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1996 § (810417)$ (298670)$ 511,747 § 76,873 § 45412 §  (31,461)

—
————

« A\M‘Mmm‘h‘ e RS
(354,393) (354,393) 51,873
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Education Assistance Common School Total
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) . Budget Actual Over (Under)

3,078,000 3,257,726 179.726
- 216 216 50,000 50,379 379 1,182,000 1,193,532 11,532

424 407 (17) . 6,841,252 6,782,009 (69,243)

1,505,354 1,466,753 (38,601)
1,207,071 1,189,530 (17,541)

(230,005) (216,245) 13,760 {2,142,754)  (2,142,257) 487 (45,783) 418,406 465,189

- (135) (136) - {22) (3,318,000) (3,335,658) (17,658)

91,935 91,935 et (130,574) (130,574) - (341,158) (341,159) -

3 66,930 § 80,586 § 13,656 $ (129,328) § (119,708) $ 9620 §$ (795942)§ (292,380) § 503,562
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State of lllinols

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Highway Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Road Motor Fuel Tax-State
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

1,745 1,738 (4] 25,000 10,971 (14,029)
1,114,155 1,108,205 (5,950) 1,152,200 1,161,370 9,170

General govemment 186,099 184,292 (1L.B07) 50,578 T 2as)
Transportation 1,142,791 1,083,373 (49.418) 8,208 ' (250)
- 1,440 1,440 -~

Operating transfers-out

Excess (deficiency) of revenues ow
Sonditires aind Cther SoUres (4

Budgetary fund balances {deficits), July 1, 1995 295,432 295,432 - 120,390 120,350 -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 $ 196017 8 248718 § 52,701 $ 124855 § 114,887 § (9,968)
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Grade Crossing Protection State Construction Account Motor Fuel Tax-Counties

Final Variance Final Variance Final " Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

270,499 283,356 18,857

$ 20,016 $ 19,948 $ (68) 464,237 464,237 - $ 167000 % 162,190 $ (4,810)

20016

(20,016) (18,948) 68 (193,738) (174,881) 18,857 (167,000) (162,190) 4,810

119,071 “116,966) (16,966)

$ 45,711 § 45779 $ 68 $ 190560 %8 217276 § 26716 § (23766)$  (16,987) $ 6,779

{continued)
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State of Ilinois
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Highway Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

{continued)
Motor Fuel Tax-Municipalities Motor Fuel Tax-Township
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

REVENUES:

Refunds
Total revenues

PMERRIER 5
General govemment
Transportation $ 234000 8% 227463 $ 6537y $ 76,000 $ 73613 § (2,387)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (234,000) (227,463) 6,537 (76,000) (73,613) 2,387

Operating transfers-out

Excoss (deficlency) of revenues over (under)

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1995 (23,795) (23.7“9%) - (7,700) (7.700) .

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1996 § (33,095)8% (23,823)% 9272 % (11,0000 % (7,709) $ 3,291
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

1,440 1,440 -

100,896 189,011 88,115

(1,379572)  (1,396,142) (16,570)

534,909 534,909 -

§ 489,282 § 578,141 § 88,859
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State of Illinois
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

University Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1956 (Expressed in Thousands)

Board of Govemnors Board of Regents
Final Variance Final ) Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

41,645 40,723 (922) 85,582 82,502 (3,080)

R i & é } i 68 Ep0ng n@;;az; (21) izt &9 ; 56 i z(1 1)
Capital outlays 2,534 1,638 (896) 7,459 6,444 (1,015)
Total expenditures ) . 42,338 40,051 (2,287) 85,496 79,188 (6,308)

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES:
Operating transfors-in - 6

i

R e o

cxpondltﬁr;: and other sources (uses)
of financlal resources (752) 619 1,371

(7) 3,249 3,256
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Southem lllinois University income University of lilinois Income Other

Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

37 4 (33)
73,920 73,689 (231) 176,930 180,914 3,984 42,345 36,974 (5,371)

111 RETE -_— 342 342 - 75 36 (39)
7,129 6,655 (474) 15,866 13,018 (2,848) 2,368 2,306 (62)
179,306

(708) 1,836 2,544 (5,493) 3,254 8,747 3,307 (1,169) (4,476)

(continued)
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State of Illinois
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

University Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

{continued)

Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under)

““Refunds 37 4 (33)
Total revenues 420,422 414,802 (5,620)

Social assistance ‘ ' 1)
Capital outiays : 35,356 30,061 (5.295)
Total gxpendi:;ges — _ 423556 406,644 (16,912)

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES:

Operating transfers-in 1,740 148
RS N AT A ‘ SEE e :

' Excess {deficlency) of reventies over

expendlﬁ%ﬁ& other sources (usosim
of financial resources (3,653)

7,789 11,442
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State of Illinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

University Funds - Board of Governors
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Eastemn Hlinois Income Westem lllinois Income
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budggt Actual QOver (Under)

Education 19,263 18,875 (388) 20,473 19,491 (982)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
aexpenditures {179) 722 901 (514) (50) 464

Operating transters-out (36) (36) - (23) (23) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

o

‘Budgetary fund (deficits), July 1, 1995 (459) (459)  —— @05 (108 -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 § (674) § 228 § 802 § (642) § (173) § 469
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

39,736 38,366 (1,370

(564) (564)

§ (1,316) § S5 8 1,371
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State of Illinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
University Funds - Board of Regents

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

llinois State Income Northem Hlinois Income
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

REVENUES:

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Education 16,708 34,996 (1.712) (3,570)

obegﬁyngméom T(44) (44) - (49) @9 ==

Excess (deficlency) ot reventes over {under)

Budgetary fund (deficits), July 1, 1995 (421) (a21) - (6,862) (6,862) -=

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 § (423) $ 531 § 954 $ (6,867) $ (4.565) $ 2,302

134



Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under)

(3 (s3) -

(7.283) (7.283)
$ (7.290) $ (4.034) § 3,256
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State of Hlinots

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial

Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Special State Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Secretary of State
Live and Leam Code Departments
“Final Vanance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

taxes
mt\% A R & AT
Public utility taxes 212,144 212,144 -
Federal government 1,083,424 1,253,530 160,106
Other 2,939,677 3,088,765 WMQ%

expenditures (20,505) (20,492) 13 (265,352) 564,742

bioridecindoenviivk it ey

Operating transfers-in T ) 20904 20904  --— 1,131,358 1,127,951 (3.407)
Operating transfers-out {5) {5) - (1.698,019) (1,729,717) {31,698)

expenditures, other sources (uses) of
financial resources and budgetary funds-
nonbwu%gewd accounts 394 407 13 (615,526) 179,463 794,989
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Agencies, Boards & Commissions Other Total

Fmal Vanance Final Variance “Final Vanance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

227,617 894
1,324,884 1,392,333 67,449
3,523,261 120,117

15,473
108,085

14,579
191,294

ek At S e e

215,481
300

(24,558)
57,304 56,141 (1,163) 73,820 59,883 (13937)  1.283,386 1,264,879 (18,507)
(9,702) (9.:493) 209 (6.857) (6,866) (9  (1,714583) (1,746,081)  (31.488)

52,310 14,870 (37,340) (84,958) 27,079 112,037 (647,780) 221,919 869,699
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State of Illinols

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Code Departments
For the Year Ended June 30, 1936 (Expressed in Thousands)

Central Management Services Children and Family Services
Finat Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) . Budget Actual Over (Under)

18,000 § 12145 §
Other 653,797 697,973 44,176 - 5,838 5,838

Public protection and justice
Natural resources and recreation
Capital outlays 119 119 - 13 103 -

expenditures ' 5568 132,018 126,450 (74,962) 22784

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF

Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (83,513) (83,513) -—

T

W

i

nonbudgeted accounts (77,952) 48498 126,450 (91,062) 6,691 97,753
Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1995 (123,944)  (123,944) - (17,674)  (17,674) -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1996 § (201,806)$ (75446)8 126450 § (108,736)$ (10,983) § 97,753
e e e
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Commerce and Community Affairs Natural Resources Public Aid
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

$ 6,360 § 5188 § (1,972) $ 713,196 $§ 818489 § 105,293
$ 9715 § 9,716 § 1 30,297 28,826 (1.471) 738,558 854,259 115,701

1,798,323 1,583,762 (214,561)

58 56 (2) 9,499 (24

(14,851) (14,330) 521 (9,500) (10,001) B9 (357569 88986 446555

(333) "1782 2,115 (3.000) (1,567 1433 (323.257) 101,763 425,020

19,867 19,867 - 30,181 30,181 - (132,083)  (132,083) -

$ 19,534 $ 21,649 § 2115 § 27,181 § 28,614 § 1433 $ (455340)8 (30,320) % 425,020
= e

(oontir!ued)
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State of Illinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Special State Funds - Code Departments

For the Year Ended June 30, 1956 (Expressed in Thousands)

(continued)

Revenue . Transponation
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) . Budget Actual Over (Under)

REVENUES:

s

Other 419,371 436,947 17,576

Public protection and justice
Natural resources and recreation
Capital outlays 327 326 (1)

ES) OF Pl

NANCIAL RESOURCES:

s Shhaa ‘gzmmww:m.\y{)

OTHER SOURCES (US!

~ nonbudgeted accounts (13,120) 11,748 24,868 (3,874 2177 6,051

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1995 202,316 202,316 - 8,024 8,024 —

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1996 § 189,196 § 214,064 § 24868 $ 4,150 $ 10,201 § 6,051

1%



Other Code Departments Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budgat Actual Over (Under)

093,424
2,939,677

50,163 §  (16,909)
1,087,938 1,055,206 (32,733)

'(20,922)
(1,920)

111209

(102,928) 8, 179,463 794,980

23,761 23,761 - 10,448 -

$ (79167)8 32132 $ 111,299 § (605,078)§ 189,911 § 794,989
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State of Illinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Uses of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Employees Deferred
Compensation Plan Health Insurance Reserve
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) . Budget Actual Over (Under)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (83,513) (83,513) -

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1995 1,065 1,065 - (125,008)  (125,009) -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 $ 419 § 979 § 560 $ (202315)§ (76425)$ 125,890
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Total

Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

5,568 132,018 126,450

(83,513) (83,513) -

1952)

(123,944) (123,944) -

$ (201,806)8 (75446)§ 126,450
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State of Mlinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Department of Children and Family Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Child Care and Development DCFS$ Children's Services
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

REVENUES:

EXPENDITURES:

A b A

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (883) 2,683 3,566 (74,079) 20,101 94,180

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other sources (uses) of
el e e ot il g

iy s s

BUDGETARY FUND (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 $  (10,727) § (7,159) § 3,568 § (98,009) § (3,824) § 94,185
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

$ (108736)§  (10,983) § 97,753
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State of Hlinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Department of Commerce and Community Affairs
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands) '

Metropolitan Exposition
Auditorium and Office Building Tourism Promotion
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

REVENUES:

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
_General govemment ! A 24,508 23,990 (518)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 9,715 9,715 - (24,566) (24,045) 521

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other sources (uses) of
financia

A A

62 4 : 2243

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1996 $ 18,624 § 18,624 $ —-= § 910 § 3,025 § 2,115
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Total
Final Varance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

$ 19,534 § 21,649 § 2,115
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State of lllinols

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Special State Funds - Department of Natural Resources

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Wildlife and Fish Park and Conservation
. Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

REVENUES:

Refunds 750 642 (108)
Total revenues

14 ~20,000 20,010 10

ope Badectk ‘ B & : — - .
- (12,100) (10,100) 2,000

Operating transfers-out {1,400) (1,400)

Budgetary fund batances, July 1, 1995 3,870 3,870 - 26,3 26,311 -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1996 $ 709 $ 859 § 150 § 26,472 § 27,755 § 1,283
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Total

Final Variance
Budget Actual  Over (Under)

35907 33,372 (2,535)

9,523 9,499 (24)
45,407 43463 (1,944)

30,181 30,181 -

$ 27181 § 28614 8 1,433




State of Mlinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Department of Public Aid
For the Year Ended June 30, 1956 (Expressed in Thousands)

University of lllinois

Hospital Services County Hospital Setvices
Final Variance Final Vanance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

Pty

Refunds

Total revenues 99,290 184,369 85,079 733,850 327,590

iy vty ; cal bt wibats . & &
Total expenditures 173,400 165,631 (7,769) 858,075 727,205 (130,870)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

S R A AR T A

P from general and special obligation bond issues

Operating transfers-in 44,700 -
Operating transfers-out

financial resources TSN 430) 8,438 69,868 {451,815) 6,645 458,460




Care Provider Fund for Persons

with Developmental Disabilities Long Term Care Provider Hospital Provider
Final Variance . Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

28,770 30,349 1,579 320,294 323,777 3,483 586,140 400,403 (185,737)

00,000 100,000  =- 200,C 200,000 -
- 176 176 - 449 449
@ @ - (100,016)  (100,016) - (200029)  (200,029) -

(505) 1,249 1,754 (537) 3837 4,474 191,094 80,248  (110,846)

(continued)
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State of Hlinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Department of Public Aid
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

{continued)

Local Initiative Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

REVENUES:

“"Retunds \
‘Total revenues 1,440,754 1,672,748

drocdekelson st bt SR SRR > , Sduch A b Dy Zud NN AN
Total expenditures 21,743 21,253 (490) 1,798,323 1,583,762 (214,561)

Expes‘s" (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

e a

b A : ‘mms‘ : bt Z i % AR ShER
Proceeds from general and special obligation bond issues 300,000 300,000
Operating transfers-in 21,680 22,500 820 66,380 67,825
Operating transfers-out ) Q) - (332.068) _ (355,048)  (22,980)
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State of Hllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial

Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Special State Funds - Department of Revenue
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Gaming State and Local Sales Tax Reformn
Final Variance Final Vanance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

REVENUES:
T

__General govemment _ 9;3&11 93,081 (130) 30,118 30,118 -

expenditures 183,895 201,775 17,880 118,566 125,264 6,698

Excess (deficlency) of revenues over (under)
oxpendltures and other sources (uses) of

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 § 12,019 § 29,900 $ 17,881 § 15,775 § 21,713 § 5,938




R.T.A. Occupation and

Use Tax Replacement lliinois Sports Facilities Income Tax Refund
Final Variance Final Variance Final Varance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

5 18,000 § 18,000 $ -

(15,059) (15,059) - - - —_ (2,796) (2,796) —-—

$ ~ (649) § 251 § 900 § -~ § -- § -- $ 958 $ 958 § e

(continued)
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State of Mlinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Department of Revenue
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

{continued)
McCormick Place Expansion Project Local Govermnment Distributive
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual QOver (Under)
REVENUES:

expenditures - - - (726,585) (726,584) 1

Excass (deficlency) of revenues over (under)

expendituras and other sources (uses) of

s

At b i - ——

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 $ - - $ - $ - $ (1,958) $ {1,953) § 5




Personal Property Tax Replacement Build Winois Total
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual QOver (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

" 419,371

10,807 10,951 144 346,186 346,186 - (84,986) (60,263) 24,723

$§ 163051 § 163,195 § 144 5 ow=w § == $ - $ 189,196 § 214,064 § 24,568
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State of Hlinois

Combining Schedule of Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Department of Transportation

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Public Transportation Downstate Public Transportation
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

8,852) ;
(8,852) 22,860

“Total axpenditures 175,000 166,148

{Deficlency) of revenues (under) expenditures (166,148) 8,852

WOperatlr;gmf Al : i A it

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

Budgetary fund balances, July 1, 1 - ' 7} R 7,096 7,996 o
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 $ 877 $ 26§ 903 $§  5027$ 10175 $ 5148




Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

183,912 (13,948)

(197,860) (183,912) 13,948

8,024 8,024 -

$ 4,150 $ 10,201 § 6,051




State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Other Code Departments
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Alcoholism and Substance Abuse Agriculture
Alcoholism & Substance Abuse Block Grant Agricultural Premium
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actuzl Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

“Refunds 1 - 1)
Total revenues 58,700 49,439 (9,261) 20,163 20,398 235

e

General govemment 9,190 9,108 82)
Public protection and justice 5,833 5,794 (39)
Gitral FesotrcesTAnd Toerealio

s | 5
- 0 b Ter

“Operating transfers-out . (56) (56) -

8 over (under)

Budgetary fund balances (deficits}, July 1, 1995 974 974 - (2,747) (2,747) -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 § (634) § (6,880) $ (6,246) § (3,156) $ (2,974) § 182
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Mental Health & Developmental Disabilities Financial Institutions Nuclear Safety

Mental Health State Pensions By-Product Material Safety
Final Variance Final Variance Finai Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

100 " 80 (20)
30,552 27,429 (3,123) 57,403 77,652 20,249 32,512 32,512 -

23,851 23,851 -
29,588 29,588 -
9,003 7,878 (1,125)

13)

{667) (1,877) (1,210) (5,165) 16,232 21,387 -= 7 - -

(1,136) 26 (128)

1794 1,794 . 30,087 30087  ——
$ ®$ (1,%44)$ (1,335) § 33932 § 55319F 21,387 § == § ~—— § ——
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State of lllinois ,

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Other Code Departments
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

{continued)
Lottery State Police
State Lottery State Police Services
Final i Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

"Refunds 50 31 19)
Total revenues 920,800 879,775 (41,025) 34,730 18,053 (16,677)

General govemment 432,108 287,744 {144,365) -
Public protection and justice 16,414 (18,758)
s ; _— . o —— . " Mt

Excess (deficlency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures _ 488,253 591,625 103,372 {1,762) 1,319 3,081

Operéﬁhg%sfa;srm

(585,044)  (594,186) (9,142)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
T T oxpenditires; ind other souirc

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1995 (16,235) (16,235) - 888 888 -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1996 § (108426)$% (14,196) $ 94230 § (874) 2,207 § 3,081
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Ovaer (Under)

151 111 (40)
1,154,860 1,105,258 (49,602)

38,631 38,631
470,887 326,440 (144,447)

(586,236)  (595,503) 9.267)

$ (79167 % 32,132 § 111,299
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State of Mlinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Agencies, Boards and Commissions
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

Environmental Protection Agency State Board of Education
Final Variance Final Varnance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

39,152 (45,849)

136,469 83,477 (52,992)

339 a4 (15) 11 3 @)
Total expenditures 105544 100,728 @,816) 136,480 83,480 (53,000)

'OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Operating transfors-in 25,004 25,004 -
Operating transfers-out

PR

financial resources 75,560 8,967 (66,593) - (3,836) (3,836)
Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1995 64,828 64,828 —— (15376)  (15,376) —

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1996 § 140,388 $ 73795 § (66593) § (15376)8  (19212) § (3,836)
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Other Agencies,

State Fire Marshal Boards, and Commissions Total
Final Vanance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual QOver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

15,734 16,674

126 128 (@ 7 7

Sl

137,711 84,544 (53,167)
5 8)

; L2k 3,33 7,683
512 (50) 1,228 1,222 (6) 2,090 2,011
42,235 {11,547) 91,054 86,233 (4,821) 375,313 301,129 (74,184)

- 3 3 32,300 31,134 (1,166) 57,304 56,141 (1,163)
(9,624) (9,465) 159 77) (27) 50 (8,702) (9,493) 209

175877 6749 24,336 (5.663)

,310

6,802 6,802 - 29,757 29,757 - 86,011 86,011 -

$ (10,785) § 13551 § 24336 $ 24,094 § 32,847 § 8753 $ 138321 § 100,981 §  (37,340)
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State of Mlinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Special State Funds - Environmental Protection Agency

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Water Pollution Control Revolving Vehicle Inspection
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Current:

Total expenditures _ 80,173 79,544 25,371 21,184 (4.187)

. . S L S
Budgetary fund balances, July 1, 1995 62,591 62,591 - -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1996 $ 90,518 § 67,739 § (22,779) § 49,870 § 6,056 §  (43,814)
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

105,544 100,728 (4,816)

64,828 64,828

$§ 140,388 $ 73,795 §  (66,593)
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State of Minois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - State Board of Education
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Special Education
Drivers Education Medicaid Matching
Final Variance Final Varance

Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)
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State of Mllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Office of the State Fire Marshal
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Fire Prevention Underground Storage Tank
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under). Budget Actual Over (Under)

Education ' B T 1,242 1,067 (175)
General govemment 65 65 - 548 536 (12)
Pub 8,951 8,726 (225) 1,615 1,527 (88)

g

Excess (deficlency) of revenues over (under)

expenditures 1,176 (12,794) 10,204 22,998

Operating transfers-out (220) (220) - T 6,408) (9,245) 159

Excess (deficlency) of revenues over (under)
S A P S A TR R ATl R

; ¥ i = SR MRS
Budgetary fund balances, July 1, 1995 2,910 2,910 - 3,802 3,892 -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 §

7.521 § 8,697 § 1,176 §  (18,306) $ 4,854 § 23,160



Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over {Under)

126 123 (3)
34.272 46,839 12,627

1,242 1,067 (175)
613 601 (12)
10,566 10,253 (313)

30,688

(7,963) 16,211 24,174

(9,624) (9,465)

N L
6,802 6,802 -

$ (10,785) § 13,551 § 24,336
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State of Mlinols

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Special State Funds - Other Agencies, Boards and Commissions

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Commerce Commission Housing Development Authority
Public Utility Fund Minois Affordable Housing
Final Variance Final Varianco
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

REVENUES:

Loss:
Refunds 4 4 -
Total revenues 15,143 16,064 921 20,520 25,244 4,724

24,795 24,789 (6)

Goneral govemment
Public protection and justice 14,895 13,961 (934)
Natural resources and recreation 684 677 7}

(1,178) 686 1,864 (4,275) 455 4,730

Excess (deficlency) of revenues over (under)

;‘xpelldm.lm and other sources (uses) of

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 § (103)$ 1,761 § 1,864 §$ 20,615 § 25,345 § 4,730




Commissioner of Banks & Trust Companies Metropolitan _lfiﬁr and Exposition Authority

Metropoitan Fair and Exposition
Bank and Trust Company Authority improvement Bond Total
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

377 137 (240) $ 32,300 $ 31,124 § (1,176) §7.472 56,050 (1,422)
16,775 14,323 (2,452) 31,670 28,284 (3,386)

$ 3,582 $ 5,741 § 2,159 § -= $ - $ - $ 24,094 § 32,847 § 8,753




State of Mllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial

Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Bond Financed Funds

Feor the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Commerce and Community Affairs Transportation
Build lllinois Bond
Final Variance Final Varance
Budget Actual  Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

ys = T e I —
Total expenditures 82,864 (3,645 185,000 180,096 (4,904)

Sl S

ral and special obiigation bond issues 100,000 79,200 (20,800) 207,500 212,484 4084

foutiado et brwtboopions:

" Proceads from gene

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

Budgetary fund balances (deficit), July 1,

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1996 § 61645 § 44490 § (17,155) $ 54,869 $ 64,757 $ 9,888
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Capital Development Board

Capital Development Bond Other Total
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual  Over (Under) Budget Actual QOver (Under)

e s 5200 5200 - 318,667 (6,158)
344427 338,785 (5642 25,554 0 oA eAT500  EA.005— 17585

|
|

(578) (578) —= "11,988 11,988 —— 91,933 91,933 -

$ 121495 % 76320 § (45175) § 12334 $ 11,3158 (1,019) § 250,343 $§ 196882 §  (53,461)




State of Illinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Bond Financed Funds - Department of Transportation

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

Transportation Bond Series "A" Transportation Bond Series "B"
Final Variance Final Varance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

_pxpondltum (88,581) (88,577) 4 (96,419} (91,519) 4,900

Operating transfers-out

Exgess (deff_gie_ney) of revenues over { {under)

33,985 - (1.616)  (1,616) -

Budgetary fund balances, Juty 1, 1995 33,985
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 $ 55,904 § 46,798 $ (9,106) § (1,035) § 17,959 § 18,984




Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under)

(185,000)  (180,096) 4,904

$ 54,869 § 64,757 $ 9,888
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State of Hlinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Debt Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressad in Thousands)

Build lllinois General Obligations
Bond, Retirement and Interest Bond, Retirement and Interest
Final Variance Final Vanance
Budget Actual Qver {Under) BudgL Actual Over (Under)

EXPENDITURES:
Debt servnoe

PG

1,181,559

197,801 193,480 (4,321)

udgetary und balances, July 1, 1995 1,223 1223 292,779 292,779 g
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1996 § 1219 § 1315 § 9 S 3316675 365678 § 34,011




Other Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

14,586 14,586 - 1,380,275 1,389,625 9,350

7886 7.886 -= 301,388 301,888 -

$ 7,596 $ 9,297 § 1,701  $ 340482 § 376,290 § 35,808
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Federal Trust
For the Year Ended June 30, 1995 (Expressed in Thousands)

Code Dapartments Agencies, Boards & Commissions
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Refunds 2,30 - 337 (1,964)
Total revenues 1,214,269 1,110,612 (103,657) 1,054,817 907,799 (147,018)

General govemment 547,048 273,386 (273,662)
Transportation 139,769 138,769 -

Capital outlays 9730 6202 (3,438) 174 1,387 787)
Total expenditures 1639540 _ 1,006.044 _ (553296) 1,100,047 __ 915,234 (182,659)

Operating transfers-in 31,937 31,937 -
Operating transfers-out (4005)  (491)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures, other sources (uses) of financial
resources and budgetary funds-nonbudgeted

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1996 § (514.435)5  (61,2B2)$ 453,153 § (138021)$ (102,385) § 35,635




Other Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

610 - (610) 2,911 337 (2,574)
214,197 157,462 {56,735) 2,483,283 2,175,873 (307,410)

i

38,230 19,664 (18,566) 1,007,249 858944  (148.305)
61,415 35,162 (26.253) 608,463 308,548  (299,915)
10,983 10,983 - 150,752 150,752 -

4818 4,622 (196) 16,722 12,301 {4.421)
246,152 155,342 {90,810) 2,986,639 2,159,880 (826,759)

$ (6,238) 29,418 § 35657 §$ (658,694)8 (134,249)$ 524,445

2



State of Nlinois
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Federal Trust - Code Departments
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Children and Family Services Commerce and Community Affairs
Final Varnance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

1,720 82 (1,638)
40,073 38,379 (1,694) 393,930 292,214 (101,716)

General govemment 546629 273,174  (273,655)
Transportation
_Social

' 31

“Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (1,675) 1,480 3,155 {152,988) 18,009 171,997

175,511
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Public Health Rehabilitation Services Other Code Departments
Final Variance Final Variance " Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

(67,504) (9,213) 58,291 (29,939) 6,284 36,223 (173,165) 6,808 179,973

(465) (465) - (28,236) (28,236) i




State of lllinois
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Federal Trust - Code Departments
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressad In Thousands)

{continued)
Total

Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

2,301 337 (1,964)

Total revenues 1,214,269 1,110,612 (103,657)

TR A o HOACS I bt Je i e St SRS ; : RS e stk i
nonbudgeted accounts (426.290) 26,863 453,153
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Federal Trust - Department of Children and Family Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressad in Thousands)

Federal Projects

Local Effort Day Care
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

expenditures {1,675) 570 2,245 - 910 910




Total

Final Variance
Budget Actual QOver (Under)

(1,675) 1,480 3,155




State of llinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Uses of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Federal Trust - Department of Commerce and Community Affairs '

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Low income Home

Energy Assistance Block Grant Community Servicas Block Grant
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

(170)
19,697 (2,533)

Total expenditures 121,014 80,772 41.142) 25,563 17,935 (7.628)

Exqeas (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

Operating transters-out ” (469 -- 1,469 (256) [0 249

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
g huichdvinidhon oy

‘Budgetary fund (deficits), July 1, 1985 (1.541) (541 =C (3.027) (3027 ~-

BUDGETARY FUND (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1896 $§ (32074 % (2410) § 20,664 §$ (6,616) $ (1,272) § 5,344

[
o




Community Development/

Small Cities Block Grant Job Training Partnership Total
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

300 21 (279) 650 58 (592) 1,720 82 (1,638)

71,350 58,748 (12,602) 207.500 133,866 (73,634) 393,930 292,214 (101,716)

163,056 55,832 {107,224) 236,385 118,666 (117,719) 546,918 273,205 {273,713)

“(13.408) (36521) " (36521) (54,494) -

$ (105641)8 (10501) 8 95140 § (67,156)%  (21,793) § 45,363 $ (211,487)8  (35976)8 175,511

239



State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Federal Trust - Department of Public Health

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressad in Thousands)

Public Health Services U.S.D.A. Women and Infant Care

Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

Refunds 10 - 10) 179 179 g
Total revenues 53,490 45387 - (8,103) 181,421 185,281 3,860

i 3 ysn-xwwj 5 o . . BRI TS :
2,542 1,340 {1,202) 499 478 (21)
Total expenditures ' 68,707 51,260 (18,447) 211,929 184,027 (27,902)

X

‘Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1995 "(4,899)  (4,899) —13.343) (13,343)  —=
BUDGETARY FUND (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 $  (21,116)S  (10772)$ 10,344 § (43851)$  (12,089)§ 31,762




Matemal & Child Health

Services Block Grant Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

10 (10) 199 179 (20)
26,690 25,462 (1,228) 261,601 256,130 (5A471)

47 47 - 3,088 1,865 (1.223)
47,469 30,056 (17.413) 329,105 265,343 (63.762)

135 13 —-  (18,107)

$ (206498 (4.459) $ 16,185 §  (85611)  (27,320) § 58,291
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State of Illinoils

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Federal Trust - Department of Rehabilitation Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Vocational Rehabilitation Old Age Survivors Insurance
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual QOver (Under)

REVENUES:

Aefunds 5 e )

SR Awﬁw‘-wmﬂ&‘\m. M&;ﬁ&h TATRBCALE aﬁu SRR e .,.\3&(4%) SRR (m» g

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

Budgetary fund (deficits), July 1, 1985 (1,289) (1.289) - (3.084) " (3,084) "

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1996 § (20,971) $- 4,217 § 25,188 $  (13,806) $ (2,771) $ 11,035

242



. Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

3,990 y
170,709 136,318 (34,391)

(465) (465) -

{4
$ (3478 1,446 $ 36,223

73) (4,373) -
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State of Minois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Federal Trust - Other Code Departments
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Employment Security Transportation
Title lli Social Security & Employment Service Federal/Local Airport
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Refunds ' 300 - (300)
Total revenues 170,700 155,604 (15,096) 100,335 139,362 39,027

General government 219 212 @ . -
Transportation ' 139,769 139,769 -
Social assistance 170,281 142,&.24 (27,637) -

cy) of revenues over (under

(1,975) 10,876 12,851 (39,434) (407) 39,027

Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
axpenditiites; other soUrcos I of financlal

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1995 2,561 2,561 - . 2,652 2,652 -~

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 § 586 § 13,437 $ 12851 §  (36,782) 8 2,245 $ 39,027




Public Aid Aging Alcoholism and Substance Abuse

Special Purposes Trust Services for Older Americans Alcoholism and Substance Abuse
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

35,155 29,514 (5,641) 53,082 42,976 {10,106) 18,623 13,831 (4,792)

S o~ o W s

(124,086) 733 124,819 1,691 (2,497) (4,188) (9,361) (1,897) 7,464

(26.232)  (28,232)

2,501)

(2,413) (2,413) - (8,671) (8,671) - {1,737) (1,737) -

$ (122794) 8 2025 $ 124819 § (69848 (11,172) § (4,188) $ (11,098) $ (3.634) $ 7,464

{continued)
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State of Hlinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Federal Trust - Other Code Departments
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

(continued)

Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

2583

Refunds 377 76 (301)
Total revenues 377,895 381,287 3,392

General govemment ) 219 212
Transportation 139,769 139,769
Social assistance 185,291 142,654

(173,165) 179,973

(28,236) (28,236)

budgé‘tary funds-nonbudgeted accounts

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

L (169,464

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1995 (7,608) (7,608) -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 $ (177,072) § 2901 § 179,973
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Federal Trust - Agencies, Boards and Commissions

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Board of Education Other Agencies, Boards and Commissions
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

EXPENDITURES:
Current

682 306 (286) 1,492 891 (501)

Capital outiays
969,701 839,676 (130,025) 131,246 78,618 (52,628)

{Deficlency) of revenues (under) expenditures
and budgetary funds-nonbudgeted (24,744) (6,237) 18,507 (23,294) (6,166) 17,128




Total

Final
Budgel

Actual

Variance
Over (Under)

warsees
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State of Mlinois |

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Federal Trust - State Board of Education

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressad in Thousands)

S.B.E. Federal 8.B.E. Federal
Department of Agriculture Department of Education
Finat Variance Final Vanance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

EXPENDITURES:

Curent

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (14,725) (12,690) 2,035 (9.915) 6,557 16,472

revenues over (under)

Excess (deficlency)

expenditures and budgetary funds-nonbudgeted




Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

{24,640) (6.133) 18,507
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State of Illinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Federal Trust - Other Agencies, Boards and Commissions

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressad in Thousands)

Environmental Protection Agency Criminal Justice Information Authority
U.S. Environmental Protection Criminal Justice Trust
Final Vanance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

EXPENDITURES:

Cument:
Biiblc:

Total expenditures 43,448 29,067 (14,381) 32,322 18,804 (13,518)

{Deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures
m ey oo e i manres

e s

o R e WA e AL it dbrs St Wt réie

BUDGETARY FUND (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 $ (4,501) § (2,379) § 2122 § (5472) $ {(2,808) $ 2,664
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Emergency Management Agency

Federal Aid Disaster Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) - Budget Actual Over (Under)

(4,578):

$ (17,899) 8 (5,557) $§ 12,342 § (27,872) § (10,744) § 17,128



State of lllinois
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Revolving Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1956 (Expressed in Thousands)

Central Management Services Corrections
Working Capital
Final Variance Final N Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

frtt

Total revenues

T 178,055 172,981  (5074) 41,582 41,250 (@32)

Public protection and justice 44,974 38415 - (6,559)
Capy outlays 14.7_15 (54) 2,704 408 {2,296)

PR

7 2 3 Ees iR i St bty i
expenditures (16,349) (4,234) 12,115 (6,006) 2,427 8,523

pH

Excoss {deficlency) of revenues over (under)
expendituras and other sources (uses) of .
_financlal resources (4,246) _




Other Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

9,974 10,254 280 229,611 224,485 {5,126)

(53) 700 847 (63)
44,974 38,415 (6,559)
801 4886 (315) 18,220 15,515 (2,705)

96 o242l

{30.986).

(3,140) 2,082 5,222 (é5,585) 275 25,860

{3,140) 785 3,925 (25,585) (1,063) 24,522
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State of linois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Revolving Funds - Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Garage Statistical Services
Final Vardance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

REVENUES:
Other.

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Geper&! govemment

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures (754) (1,664) {1,110) (8,591) {6,576) 2,015

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources
isas) of fiancial regotrces

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1995 (3,786) (3,786)

14,823 14,823 -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1996 $  (4540)$ (56528 (1,112) § 6232 § 8,244 § 2,012




) Communications Total
Final Variance Final . Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

(7,004) 4,206 11,210 (16,349) (4,234) 12,115

sy

961 961 - 11,998 11,998 -

$ (6,043) $ 5,160 $ 11,203 § (4,351) 7.752 $ 12,103
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State of Illinols
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Uses of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

State Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Public Aid
Central Management Services Child Support Enforcement Trust
Final Varnance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

REVENUES:

Other 89,267 93,028 3,761 44,094 166,878 122784
Total revenues 90,067 93,527 3,460 126,472 234,321 107,849

General government 112,614 91,736 (20,878) 734 734 -
Social assistance ‘ ‘ 121,741 83,774 (37,967)

Total expandltures 112,632 . 91,754 {20,878) 124 185 86,055 (38,130)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

Operating transfers-out @ R R ) (6,500) (4.471) 2,029

‘Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (136,465) (136,465) -

‘and budgetary funds-nonbudgebd accounts (22,569) 1,760 24,329 (140,678) 7,330 148,008

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1995, as

R

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1935 as
reclassified (212) (212) -= 6,744 6,744 - o

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1996 § (22,781) $ 1,548 $ 24329 § (133934) % 14074 § 148,008




Capital Development Board Student Assistance Commission

Revenue CDB Contributory Trust State Scholarship Commission Student Loan
Final Variance Final Variance Final Varniance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

838 873 35 14,554 14,554 - 103,214 75,351 (27,863)
351,223 335,522 (15,701) 15,079 15,079 - 210,000 153,310 (56,690)

201,599 153,597 (48,002)

36,211 20,419 (15,792) - (89) 202,200 153,926 (48,274)

21 €3)) -— @5 (65 10

(310,199)  (310,189) — (15,709) (15,709) -

(740) (6s1) ‘ 725 _(e81) (8.406)

21,657 21,657 - 6,220 6,220 - 30,341 30,341 -

$ 26,470 $ 26,561 $ 91 § 5480 $ 5,569 § 83 § 38,066 $ 29,660 $ (8,406)

{(continued)
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State of Hllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Uses of Financial Resources

and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
State Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

(continued)

Other Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Other 10,039 10,297 258 262,006 360,981 98,975
Total revenues ‘ 12,326 12,501 175 805,167 844,260 39,093

Education 1183 343 (851) 200792 153,839 (48.853)

Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (5,091) - (467,4564) (467,464) -~

and budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (10.617) (360) 10,257 (162,066) 12,302 174,368

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1995, as

femvetmaicg

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1995 as
reclassified

5,263 5,263 - 70,013 70,013 -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 § (5:354) $ 4,903 $ 10,257 $  (92,053) $ 82315 § 174,368
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State of Mlinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Uses of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

State Trust Funds - Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed in Thousands)

Local Government
Health Insurance Reserve Group insurance Premium
Final Variance Final ~ Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

expenditures (12,244) 17,100 (10,321) (3,083) 7,238

Excess (deficlency) of revenues over
expenditures, other (uses) of financlal resources




Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

(22,569) 1,760 24,329




State of Minois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
State Trust Funds - Department of Revenue
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 (Expressed In Thousands)

Home Rule Municipal
Retailers Occupation Tax County Option Motor Fuel Tax
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

Total revenues 293,133 293,133 - 23,090 23,000 -

Total éipendltures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
s Sy G

Excoss (deficloncy) of rovenues over (under)
oxpenditures and budgetary funds-

6,656

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1996 § 22,414 §

B
Fr
rS
“
I
|

$ 4,100 $ 4,100 $ -




Federal Home Investment Trust Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

35,000 19,299 (15,701) 351,223 335,522 (15,701)

$ (44) § 47 $ 91 § 26,470 $ 26,561 § N
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State of Hlinois

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
Other Sources and Uses of Financial Resources - GAAP Basis

All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds
For tha Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed in Thousands)

1996 1995 1994 1993 1992
REVENUES
Income taxes. $ 735028 $ 6862484 6341405 $ 5927379 $ 58545604
Sales taxes ' .- 6,520,321 6,271,692 5,984,237 5,514,941 5,183,617
Motor fuel taxes. 1,197,288 1,154,482 1,098,820 1,056,565 1,032,741
Public utility taxes 1,047,020 985,016 1,011,616 970,740 952,493
Other taxes 2,901,397 3,266,077 3,110,413 2,739,100 1,972,536
Federal govemment 8,409,885 8,639,857 8,404 474 8,078,948 7,075,372
Licenses and fees. 1,020,758 1,001,099 996,453 1,144,715 1,317,403
Interest and other investment income........ccoceeevvens 351,718 311,898 202,119 171,410 254,302
Other. ‘ 1,099,356 1,035,374 1,308,394 552,133 470,987
Total revenues 29,898,029 29,527,979 28,457,931 26,155,931 23,905,055
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Health and social Services.............ccoveevvererereevvnnas 8,732,071 8,623,643 7,855,039 7,387,137 6,369,477
Education : 5,752,793 5,395,845 5,128,035 4,857,626 4,679,110
General govemment 4,917,335 4,571,183 4417 418 4,182,189 3,967,119
Social assistance. 4,131,674 3,995,466 4,698,546 4,706,918 4,649,024
Transportation 2,627,170 2,713,372 2,535,653 2,372,496 2,605,775
Public protection and justice. 1,481,413 1,437,874 1,412,870 1,168,459 1,114,520
Natura! resources and recreation...........cccceoeen..... 364,848 388,607 426,270 369,944 394,158
Debt service:
Principal 456,350 443,676 427,646 394,935 379,301
Interest. : 433,587 444,490 396,971 380,755 350,639
Capital outlays 366,518 290,361 263,573 272,729 253,729
Total expenditures 29,263,759 28,304,517 27,562,021 26,093,188 24,762,852
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over :
{under) expenditures 634,270 1,223 462 895,910 62,743 (857,797)
OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Proceeds from notes and general/special
obligation bond issues.........c.ccccevevereeereeecrecenen. 728,944 776,220 686,929 522,808 588,673
Proceeds from general/special obligation
refunding bond issues 318,040 501,162 880,673 435,203
Operating transfers-in 4,395,048 4,149,874 3,559,780 3,546,143 3,402,400
Operating transfers from component units................. 18 40 113
Operating transfers-out . {3,790,475) (3,564,180) (3,002,277) {4,136,820) (3,965,878)
Operating transfers to component units..................... (1,402,746) {1,377,869) (1,284,315)
Capital lease financing 26,411 10,71 23,148 41,719 21,245
Payrnent to refunded bond escrow agent................... (318,040) (501,162) (880,673) (438,686)
Proceeds from certificates of participation 90,052 18,802
Proceeds from certificates of participation refunding.. 2,483
Net other sources (uses) of financial
resources 47,252 13,598 (16,622) (26,150) 46,440
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and net other sources (uses)
of financial resources $ 681,522 $ 1,237,060 879,288 § 36593 §$ (811,357)

*  As restated
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1991 1990 * 1989 1988 1987
$ 5472105 $ 5338959 $ 4,677,087 4347136 $ 3,971,306
5,263,439 4,825,537 3,937,291 3,702,870 3,468,103
1,020,294 947,840 725,929 702,731 689,929
927,745 913,222 910,247 886,181 915,512
1,903,844 1,980,669 2,047,575 1,989,493 2,046,166
5,583,518 5,083,032 4,687,304 4,470,240 3,761,450
839,862 830,495 776,878 740,294 702,947
339,960 373,813 302,439 196,881 148,446
416,791 390,013 278,257 529,767 626,084
21,767,658 20,683,580 18,343,007 17,565,593 16,329,943
5,117,272 4,501,034 3,885,003 3,406,599 3,409,809
4,667,968 4,480,114 4,047,950 3,808,737 3,891,431
4,147,658 3,608,186 2,459,592 2,211,305 2,067,110
3,935,452 3,350,807 2,983,126 3,321,892 2,500,106
2,540,051 2,207,848 1,954,240 1,877,167 1,863,351
1,089,656 988,815 888,238 844,861 781,381
429,966 420,014 363,986 310,510 306,999
354,320 324,240 280,653 262,899 254,236
343,337 378,989 367,814 407,287 421,635
367,077 367,790 303,723 299,659 253,260
22992757 20,627,837 17,534,325 16,751,016 15,749,318
(1,225,199) 55,743 808,682 814,577 580,625
621,703 635,530 528,152 553,609 356,845
181,164 340,738
3,204,329 2,893,649 2,515,717 2,324,086 2,381,840
(3.861,013)  (3,520,707) (2,960,409) (2,788,269) (2.838,487)
35,642 39,369 20,272 36,671 31,244
(224,211) (340,738)

16,671

661 21,465 104,732 126,097 (68,558)
$_ (1224538 § 77,208 $ 913,414 940674 $ 512,067
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State of linois

Ratio of General and Special Obligation Bonded Debt
To Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed In Thousands Except Ratio and Per Capita Data)

Net General and Special

Obligation Bond Debt
For the Equalized General and Special Obligation Bond Debt Ratio to
Year Ended Assessed Less Debt ~ Assessed Per
June 30 Population Value Total Service Fund Net Value Capita
1986 11,349 §$ 86,281,000 $ 3947880 $ 141161 $ 3,806,719 441 % § 33542
1987 11,393 92,988,000 4,132,020 155,318 3,976,702 4.28 349.05
1988 11,392 99,720,000 4,456,376 167,180 4,289,196 4.30 376.51
1989 11,410 107,416,000 4,756,265 203,301 4,552,964 4.24 399.03
1990 11,431 117,543,328 5,144,930 214,029 4,930,901 419 431.36
1991 11,543 127,707,027 5,520,230 251,506 5,268,724 4.13 456.44
1992 11,613 136,609,057 5,918,461 257,655 5,660,806 414 487.45
1993 11,697 144,468,536 6,274,656 355,254 5,919,402 410 506.06
1994 11,752 150,144,693 6,699,950 361,549 6,338,401 422 539.35
1995 11,830 e 155,899,112 ¢ 7,143,804 ) 416,068 6,727,736 432 568.70
1996 (a) 7,537,521 489,319 7,038,202
e-estimated

(a)- Population and Equalized Assessed Value data are not available.

Source: Nlinois Property Tax Statistics - lllinois Department of Revenue.
U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census.
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State of lllinois

Ratio of Annual Debt Service for General and Special Obligation
Debt to Total Revenues and Expenditures - GAAP Basis

All Governmental Fund Types

(Primary Government and Component Units)
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed in Thousands Except Ratio Data)

For the
Year

Ended Total

June 30 Principal Interest Debt Service Revenues Ratio Expenditures Ratio
1987 $ 230,535 § 291451 $ 521,986 $ 16,329,943 320% § 15,749,318 331 %
1988 238,385 296,343 534,728 17,565,593 3.04 16,751,016 3.18
1989 256,620 305,289 561,909 18,343,007 3.06 17,534,325 3.20
1990 294,075 302,188 596,263 20,683,580 2.88 20,627,837 2.89
1991 323,270 299,723 622,993 21,767,558 2.86 22,992,757 2.7
1992 349,878 296,405 646,283 23,905,055 2.70 24,762,852 2.61
1893 369,687 318,813 688,500 26,155,931 263 26,093,188 2.64
1994 410,292 323,309 733,601 28,463,037 2.58 27,567,179 2.65
1995 427,902 350,295 778,197 29,555,580 263 28,311,850 275
1996 440,080 352,906 792,986 29,945,854 265 29,281,140 2.71
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State of Minols

Revenue Bond Coverage
Proprietary

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years {Exp din Th ds Excapt C oo Data)

Direct Net Revenue

Fiscal Gross Operating  Available for Debt Service Requirements

Year Revenues Expenses  Debt Service ~ Principal interest Total Coverage
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

llinols Student Assistance Commission -

1987 $ 27,063 $ 4819 $ 2444 $ 16,770 $ 13,152 § 29922 .75
1988 32,251 4717 27,534 27,480 18,395 45,875 .80
1988 33,440 5,668 27,772 30,960 21,744 52,704 53
1990 59,665 (a) 7.101 52,564 58,795 (a) 31,251 88,048 60
1991 73,133 (b) 12,859 60,274 33,200 (b) 17,184 50,384 1.20
1992 121,320 (c) 9,600 111,720 58,890 (c) 38,526 97,216 1.15
1993 131,411 (d) 12,591 118,820 88,930 (d) 40,367 109,297 1.09
1994 202,314 (e) 13,053 189,261 140,680 (e) 42,548 183,228 1.03
1895 117,416 (f) 14,142 103,274 81,720 () 44,596 108,318 0.97
1996 124,164 (g) 15,338 108,826 61,025 (g) 47,692 108,717 1.00
COMPONENT UNITS

liinois State Toll Highway Authority -

1987 $ 355898 (h) § 61978 $ 293918 $ 119875 (h) $§ 15823 § 135698 217
1988 241,031 67,178 173,853 4,865 39,835 44,800 3.88
1589 213,941 75,269 138,672 4,025 40,776 44,801 3.10
1990 246,802 85,909 160,693 4,285 40,517 44,802 3.59
1891 247,381 99,256 148,125 15,735 40,231 55,966 2.65
1992 258,248 101,506 158,742 27,230 48,385 75,615 207
1993 262,209 90,311 171,898 17,710 47,818 85,528 2.82
1994 293,092 127.132 185,960 21,545 52,149 73,694 225
1995 314,657 186,967 127,690 24,250 53,962 78212 1.63
1996 325410 167,580 157,830 25,750 54,354 80,104 1.97
liinols Housing Development Authority -

1887 $ 183,587 $ 10940 § 172857 $ 210,920 $ 155580 § 388,500 a7
1988 181,256 10,589 170,687 119,682 152,505 272,187 83
1989 191,766 13,137 178,629 73,811 157,220 231,031 77
1880 198,080 11,4268 186,654 89,455 165,763 255,218 73
1881 521,256 (1) 12,224 509,032 421,485 (i) 176,302 507,787 85
1882 277,018 () 12,979 264,039 146,388 () 184,577 330,985 .80
1993 272,845 (k) 14,6851 257,994 328,678 (k) 172,455 501,131 51
1994 320,589 () 18,429 311,180 793,354 () 149,200 942,563 33
1985 220,268 (m) 16,446 203,822 226,107 (m) 121,482 347,588 .58
1996 360,854 (n) 174,138 188,718 173,148 (n) 128,502 302,648 82
Illinois Rural Bond Bank -

1992 (o) $ 1,343 S 700 § 843 $ 85 H 29§ 374 1.72
1993 1,917 ] 535 1,382 630 1,384 2,014 .69
1994 2,528 842 1,886 1,135 1,730 2.885 86
1935 3,068 564 2,504 1,325 2455 3,780 .88
1998 3,338 511 2827 1,875 2,932 4,807 .59

(a) The Commission advance refunded their previously issued bonds in January, 1990. The amount of the

proceeds utilized for refunding was $27,570,

(b) The Commission redeemed $33.2 million of principal with bond proceeds in February, 1991,
() The Commission redeemed $58.89 million of principal with bond proceeds in January, 1992.

(@) The Commission redeemed $88.27 million of principal with bond proceeds in December, 1992,
{e) The Commission redeemed $135.86 million of principal with bond proceeds in February, 1994.
(?  The Commission redeemed $49.695 million of principal with bond proceeds in February, 1895.

(9) The Commission redeemed $49.9 million of principal with bond proceeds in February, 1996,

(h)  The Authority advance refunded their previously issued bonds in February, 1987. The amount of the

proceeds utilized for refunding was $139,145.

@  The Authority advance refunded their previously issued bonds throughout the year. The amournt of the
proceeds used for refunding was $301,737.

0  The Authority advance refunded their previously issued bonds throughout the year. The amount of the
proceeds used for refunding was $58,750

(k) The Authority redeemed $56.005 million of principal with bond proceeds Swoughout the year. In addition, the
Authority used $4.241 million from the sale of mortgage loan receivables to redeem previously issued bonds.

()  The Authority redeemed $146.645 million of principal with bond proceeds throughout the year.

(m) The Authority redeemed $57.625 million of principal with bond proceeds in November, 1994

(n) The Authority redeemed $32.44 million of principal with bond proceeds in November, 1995,

©

First year the Bank issued revenue bonds.
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State of Illinois

- Revenue Bond Coverage *

- University and College

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed in Thousands Except Coverage Data)

Net Revenue/
Fiscal Revenues/ Expenditures/ Additions Available Debt Service Requirements
Year Other Additions  Other Deductions for Debt Service Principal Interest Total chelag_
1987 282,713 $ 244,686 38,027 $ 17426 13,860 31,286 1.22
1988 287,026 251,129 35,897 18,011 12,477 30,488 1.18
1989 270,353 244,188 26,165 19,667 11,470 31,137 0.84
1990 304,535 262,707 41,828 20,358 12,078 32,436 1.29
1991 313,066 253,813 59,263 20,031 22,233 42,264 1.40
1892 336,807 272,979 63,828 20,160 26,176 46,336 1.38
1993 413,427 345,794 67,633 19,323 27,546 46,869 144
1994 361,832 295,495 66,337 21,600 27,224 48,824 1.36
1995 362,303 291,301 71,002 21,495 29,232 50,727 1.40
1996 457,926 383,897 74,029 25,059 28,754 53,813 1.38

* Chicago State, Eastern, Northeastern, Westemn, lilinois State, Northern, Southern lllinois, and the University of lllinois.

The above amounts do not include student tuition and fees which are generally available, if necessary, to cover bond debt

service requirements. The tuition and fees amounts, if included, would significantly increase debt service coverage.

273



State of Hlinois

Population by Age Group
ILLINOIS
1980 Percent 1990 Percent
Under 5 years 842,324 7.4 % 848,141 74 %
5-19 years 2,836,273 24.8 2,451,088 215
20 - 44 years 4,221,949 37.0 4,553,416 39.8
45 - 64 years 2,264,972 19.8 2,141,412 18.7
65 years and over 1,261,911 11.0 1,436,545 1286
Total 11,427,429 100.0 % 11,430,602 100.0 %
UNITED STATES
1980 Percent 1990 Percent
Under 5 years 16,298,350 7.2 % 18,354,443 74 %
5-19 years 56,117,954 248 56,976,857 29
20 - 44 years 84,112,743 37.1 95,765,733 385
45 - 64 years 44,518,372 19.6 46,371,009 186
65 years and over 25,498,386 1.3 31,241,831 126
Total 226,545,805 100.0 % 248,709,873 100.0 %
Sources: llinois Bureau of the Budget, Current Population Reports:
Local Population Estimates, Series P-26, August, 1987.
Hiinois Bureau of the Budget, Current Population Reports:
Population Estimates and Projections, Series P-25, July, 1988.
Mlinois Bureau of the Budget, Data From 1990 Census,
Summary Tape File 1, July, 1991.
State of lllinois
Total Personal Income
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years
Per Capita Personal
income
Amount Percent United
Year (millions) Change Hlinois States
1987 $ 184,628 461 % $ 16214 § 15,290
1988 196,392 6.37 17,241 16,189
1989 209,713 6.78 18,412 17,278
1990 225,718 7.63 19,782 18,494
1991 238,875 5.83 20,898 19,568
1992 249,834 4,59 21,677 20,177
1993 263,910 5.63 22,728 21,016
1994 274,364 3.96 23,470 21,696
1985 290,985 6.06 24,745 22,788
1996 305,772 5.08 25,847 23,812
Source: Survey of Current Business,

U.S. Department of Commerce
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State g’ Ilinois

Employment/Unemployed

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unemployment
Total Rate

Year Employment Unemployed (Percent)
1987 5,252,933 443,833 7.8 %
1988 5,381,292 405,617 7.0
1989 5,568,758 361,875 6.1
1590 5,590,325 359,517 6.0
1991 5,524,245 390,259 6.6
1992 5,500,050 476,793 8.0
1993 5,540,375 440,613 7.4
1994* 5,602,368 398,597 6.6
1995* 5,725,906 315,996 52
1996* 5,803,589 319,481 52

* Due to changes in the employment survey, the results of
the employment survey beginning in 1994 and after are
not comparable to earlier reports.

Source: U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau

of Labor Statistics Employment
and Eamings.
State of llinois
Employment by Industry
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed In Thomnd;)
1887 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996
Mining 24 22 21 20 19 18 17 15 14 13
Construction 191 201 209 218 213 200 197 206 214 217
Manufacturing 927 959 981 988 965 921 928 944 959 974
Transportation and ’
Public Utilities 289 298 302 307 307 302 307 314 321 327
Wholesale and Retail
Trade 1,205 1,232 1,271 1,263 1,259 1,240 1,238 1,262 1301 1331
Finance, Insurance
and Real Estate 354 365 370 375 380 376 381 390 385 384
Services 1,148 1,203 1,269 1,326 1,357 1,385 1,437 1,487 1546 1601
Government 722 729 743 755 770 773 775 777 795 806
Total 4,860 5,009 5,166 5,252 5270 5215 5,280 5,395 5,535 5,653

Source: U.S. Department of Labor.
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State of llliriois

Contracts for Future Construction
And Residential Building Activity

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

Contracts For Residential Buikiing
Future Activity

Construction Valuation

Year (millions) Pemnits  (millions)
1987 § 9,029 51284 § 3,631
1988 10,247 45,184 3,639
1989 10,700 47,440 3,982
1990 11,800 41,070 3,695
1991 8,923 32,357 3,008
1992 10,026 37,358 3,582
1993 10,851 40,381 3,882
1994 11,041 47,168 4,891
1995 11,182 48,506 4918
1996 11,556 49,304 4,915

Sources: Dodge Division, McGraw Hill
Information System Co.

U.S. Department of Commerce,
Housing Units Authorized by
Building Permits.
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State of INlinois

Sales of All Retail Stores

Annual
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed in Millions)

Percent of Change
United
Year lllinois {linois  States

1987 $ 72,793 81% 63%
1988 77,561 6.6 71
1989 80,967 44 6.6
1990 86,235 6.5 6.0
1991 90,380 4.8 23
1992 91,792 1.6 23
1993 93,777 22 6.0
1954 97,313 38 73
1995 101,481 4.3 6.7
1996 103,725 22 49

Source: Monthly Retail Trade, U.S.
Department of Commerce.



State of Hllinois

Cash Receipts from

Farm Marketings
For the Last Ten Calendar Years (Expressad in Millions)

Livestock Crops
Other Total Total
Livestock Livestock Livestock
Dairy and and ) Other Total and
Year Cattle Hogs Products Products Products Com Soybeans Wheat Crops Crops Crops
1986 $ 757 § 1,008 § 339 § 51 § 2155 $ 2550 $ 1776 $ 84 § 202 § 4612 $ 6,767
1987 798 1,062 348 56 2,262 1,858 1,733 126 196 3,913 6,175
1988 812 1,024 338 70 2,244 1,795 1,982 213 227 4217 6,461
1989 791 984 365 108 2,248 1,992 1,820 372 274 4,458 6,706
1980 802 1,206 357 112 2,477 2,768 2,059 259 375 5,461 7,938
1991 740 1,172 339 93 2,344 2,681 1,958 125 401 5,165 7,509
1992 720 1,042 352 88 2,202 2,780 2,026 199 426 5431 7,633
1993 711 1,112 327 98 2,248 2,868 2,302 182 483 5,835 8,083
1994 688 941 335 101 2,065 2,949 2,547 178 484 6,158 8,223
1995 622 901 323 101 1,847 3,116 2,334 248 479 6,177 8,124
1996 *

* Information unavailable

Source: Agricultural Outiook, U.S. Department of Agriculture
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State gflllinais

Largest Manufacturers
(Ranked by Number of Employees)

Number of
Number of lliinois
Company Employees Installations
Caterpillar, Inc. 17.450 5
Abbott Laboratories 12,200 2
Motorola, Inc. 6,000 2
Ford Motor Company 4,963 2
Mitsubishi Motor Mfg., Inc. 4,000 1
Olin Corporation 4,000 2
Chrysler Corporation 3,750 1
Granite City Steel 3,000 1
Honeywell 3,000 1
Sundstrand Aerospace 2,700 1
Northrop Grumman Corp. 2,600 1
Baxter Healthcare Corp. 2,500 1
General Motors 2,500 1
Nabisco, Inc. 2,400 1
Northwestemn Steel & Wire Co. 2,400 1
Maytag 2,386 1
Zenith Electronics Corp. 2,200 1
Fel-Pro, Inc. 2,000 1
General Tire Company 2,000 1
Rock Island Arsenal 2,000 1
Excel Corp. . 1,850 1
Brach & Brock Confections, Inc. 1,800 1
Ingersolt Milling Machine Co. 1,800 1
lowa Beef Processors, Inc. 1,800 1
Kraft USA 1,800 1
Bridgestone/Firestone, Inc. 1,680 1
Kelly-Springfieid Tire Co. 1,608 1
Acme Metal, Inc. 1,600 1
Keystone Steel & Wire Co. 1,600 1
Centrai Steel & Wire Co. 1,500 1
Chicago Tribune 1,500 1
Donneliey & Sons Co., RR. 1,500 1
John Crane, Inc. 1,500 1
S & C Electric Co. 1,500 1
Sweetheart Cup Co. 1,500 1

Source: lllinois® Manufacturer's Directory,
1994 (latest statistics available).
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State of Illinois

Bituminous Coal Production
Annual '

For the Last Ten Calendar Years (Expressed in Thousands of Tons)

Percent
Total
Year Surface Underground Total of U.S.
1987 21,573 39,188 60,761 6.9 %
1988 20,585 39,011 59,596 6.3
1989 19,603 40,528 60,131 6.2
1980 18,646 43,011 61,657 6.0
1991 15,903 44,132 60,035 6.1
1992 12,848 47,484 60,332 6.2
1993 7,937 34,207 42,144 4.5
1984 9,246 44,781 54,027 53
1995 6,878 42,659 49,537 40
1996 a . 4,102 21,719 25,821 44

a - through June

Source: lllinois Department of Mines and Minerals.



